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SUNIL HEALTHCARE LIMITED 
Regd. Office: 38E/252-A, Vijay Tower, Shahpurjat, New Delhi-110049

CIN- L24302DL1973PLC189662 / Email: info@sunilhealthcare.com / Webiste: www.sunilhealthcare.com
Tel: +91-11-49435555/00  Fax: +91-11-43850087                     

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 49th Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company will be held on 
Wednesday, the 27th September, 2023 at 12:30 P.M./IST through Video Conferencing (VC)/ other Audio Visual Means 
(OAVM) for which Registered office of the Company at 38E/252A, Vijay Tower, 3rd floor, Panchsheel Commercial 
Complex, Shahpur Jat, New Delhi-110049, shall be deemed as the venue for the meeting, to transact the following  
business (es):-

Ordinary Business

1.	 To consider and adopt the audited annual financial statements i.e. the Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account 
and Cash Flow Statement (both standalone and consolidated) of the Company for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2023 together with report of the Board of Directors and Auditors’ thereon, and if thought fit, to pass, with 
or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT the audited annual financial statements i.e. the Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account and Cash 
Flow Statement (both standalone and consolidated) for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and the Reports 
of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, have already been circulated to the members and produced at the 
meeting be and are hereby received, approved and adopted.”

2.	 To consider the re-appointment of Mr. Krishna Venkatachalam Rajan, (DIN: 02777067) as Non- Executive 
Director, who retires by rotation, and, being eligible, offers himself, for re-appointment and to consider and if 
thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, including any 
amendment(s), statutory modification(s) and/or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force, Mr. Krishna 
Venkatachalam Rajan, (DIN: 02777067), Non- Executive Director, who retires by rotation,  and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed.”

By order of the Board of Directors
For SUNIL HEALTHCARE LIMITED             		                  

	 Reg. Office: 
SATYENDU PATTNAIK	 38E/252A, Vijay Tower, Shahpurjat, New Delhi-110049
COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER	 CIN No: L24302DL1973PLC189662
M. No. FCS 7736	 Phone No: +91-11-49435555/00 Fax No. 011-43850087
Place: New Delhi	 Email ID:  info@sunilhealthcare.com	
Dated: August 11, 2023	 Website: www.sunilhealthcare.com



2

SUNIL HEALTHCARE LIMITED

Notes

1.	 THE MINISTRY OF CORPORATE AFFAIRS (MCA) INTERALIA HAS VIDE ITS GENERAL CIRCULAR No. 10/2022 
DATED DECEMBER 28, 2022, GENERAL CIRCULAR No. 02/2022 DATED MAY 05, 2022, GENERAL CIRCULAR 
NO. 02/2021 DATED JANUARY 13, 2021 READ WITH GENERAL CIRCULAR NOS. 20/2020 DATED MAY 05, 
2020, 14/2020 DATED APRIL 08, 2020, 17/2020 DATED APRIL 13, 2020 AND CIRCULAR NO. 22/2020 DATED 
JUNE 15, 2020 (COLLECTIVELY REFERRED AS MCA CIRCULARS), AND THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 
BOARD OF INDIA (SEBI) VIDE ITS CIRCULAR NO. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 DATED  JANUARY 05, 
2023, CIRCULAR NO. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62, DATED MAY 13, 2022, SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD 2/
CIR/P/2021/11 DATED JANUARY 15, 2021 READ WITH CIRCULAR NO. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 
DATED MAY 12, 2020 (COLLECTIVELY REFERRED AS SEBI CIRCULARS), PERMITTED CONVENING OF 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING (VC)/ OTHER AUDIO VISUAL MEANS 
(OAVM), WITHOUT PHYSICAL PRESENCE OF THE MEMBERS. IN PURSUANCE WITH THE MCA CIRCULARS, 
PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, SEBI CIRCULARS, AND SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND 
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS, THE 49TH AGM OF THE COMPANY IS BEING CONVENED THROUGH VC/
OAVM. THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY SHALL BE DEEMED TO BE VENUE OF THE AGM. 

2.	 GENERALLY, A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING (AGM), IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF 
AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER. SINCE THIS 49TH AGM IS BEING CONVENED THROUGH VC/OAVM 
ONLY, PURSUANT TO MCA CIRCULARS/SEBI CIRCULARS, PHYSICAL ATTENDANCE OF THE MEMBERS HAS 
BEEN DISPENSED WITH. ACCORDINGLY, THE FACILITY FOR APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES BY MEMBERS WILL 
NOT BE AVAILABLE FOR THIS AGM AND THEREFORE, THE PROXY FORM, ATTENDANCE SLIP AND ROUTE 
MAP ARE NOT ANNEXED HERETO.

3.	 INSTITUTIONAL INVESTORS/CORPORATE MEMBERS INTENDING TO AUTHORISE THEIR RESPRESENTATIVE 
TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING, PURSUANT TO SECTION 113 OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT 2013, ARE REQUESTED TO SEND TO THE COMPANY A CERTIFIED COPY OF THE BOARD 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THEIR REPRESENTATIVE FOR THE PURPOSE OF REMOTE E-VOTING OR 
ATTEND AND E-VOTING ON THEIR BEHALF AT THE MEETING. THROUGH VC/OAVM.

4.	 The members can join the 49th AGM in VC/OAVM mode 30 minutes before and 15 minutes after the 
scheduled time of the commencement of meeting after following the process and manner of login at 
InstaMeet, are given in this Notice under Note no. 21.

5.	 The attendance of the members/shareholders attending this 49th AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted 
for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

6.	 The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain close from Thursday, 21.09.2023 
to Wednesday 27.09.2023 (both days inclusive). 

7.	 The Members are requested to note that, the Company has appointed M/s Alankit Assignment Limited at “4E/2, 
Alankit House, Jhandewalan Extension, New Delhi 110055, Contact no. 91-11-4254 1234 email id: rta@alankit.
com, lalitap@alankit.com, as Registrar and Transfer Agent to look after the work related to shares held in physical 
as well as demat mode.
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	 Nomination facility

8.	  The Members who hold shares in the physical form and wish to make/change in nomination in respect of 
their shareholding in the Company, as permitted pursuant to the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, may do so by submitting to the Company the prescribed Form SH-13 duly filled in to Company’s 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA). If a Member desires to cancel the earlier nomination and record a 
fresh nomination, he/she may submit the same in Form No. SH-14. Members who are either not desiring to 
register for Nomination or would want to opt-out, are requested to fill out and submit Form No. ISR-3. The 
said forms can be downloaded from the https://www.sunilhealthcare.com/pan-kyc-details and also from the 
website of RTA of the Company. Members are requested to submit the said form to their DP in case the shares 
are held in electronic form and to the RTA in case the shares are held in physical form, quoting their folio no.The 
Nomination form can be obtained from RTA by emailing at rta@alankit.com, lalitap@alankit.com, by quoting 
their folio number.

9.	 Members, who are holding shares in identical orders of names in more than one folio, are requested to write 
to the Company’s Share Transfer Agents M/s Alankit Assignment Limited at “4E/2, Alankit House, Jhandewalan 
Extension, New Delhi 110055” for consolidation into one folio.

10.	 The Members are requested to notify immediately changes, if any, about their name, postal address, e-mail 
address, telephone/mobile numbers, PAN, power of attorney registration, Bank Mandate details, etc. 

i)	 To their Depository Participant (“DP”) in case the shares are held in electronic form and 

ii)	 To the Registrar at M/s Alankit Assignment Limited at “4E/2, Alankit House, Jhandewalan Extension, 
New Delhi 110055”, Contact no. 91-11-4254 1234 email id: rta@alankit.com, in case the shares are held 
in physical form, in prescribed Form No. ISR-1, quoting their folio number and enclosing the self-attested 
supporting document. Further the queries related to the shares may be raised to RTA. 

11.	 For receiving all communication (including Annual Report) from the Company electronically:

(i)	 Members holding shares in physical mode and who have not updated their email address with the 
Company are requested register/update the same by writing to the Company with details of Folio number 
and attaching self-attested copy of a PAN card at cs@sunilhealthcare.com/ info@sunilhealthcare.com or to 
Alankit Assignment Limited at rta@alankit.com, lalitap@alankit.com

(ii) 	 The members holding shares in electronic form may get their email id’s updated with their respective 
Depository Participants.

(iii) 	 Temporarily updation of email id for receiving Annual Report alongwith Notice and e-voting/
video conferencing Instructions of the 49th AGM: The member may temporarily update their email id 
by dropping email alongwith signed request letter to our E-voting and Video conferencing Agency Link 
Intime India delhi@linkintime.com or to the Company at cs@sunilhealthcare.com.

12.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number 
(PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, 
requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat 
accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the Company /     M/s Alankit 
Assignment Limited.
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	 INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS

13.	 The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under section 170 
of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of contracts or Arrangements in which the Directors are interested, 
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant documents referred to in the 
accompanying Notice and the Statement will be available electronically for inspection by the members during 
the AGM without any fees by the members. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to 
cs@sunilhealthcare.com.

	 DISPATCH OF ANNUAL REPORT THROUGH ELECTRONIC MODE

14.	 In consonance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the Notice of the 49th AGM alongwith the Annual 
Report for financial year 2022-23 and other communications is being sent only to those members, whose email 
id are registered with the Company/ RTA/Depositories till August 25, 2023 (cutoff date) for sending the Notice. 

	 The Members who had joined the Company as member after August 25, 2023 till September 20, 2023 (7 days 
prior to date of Meeting) may write to cs@sunilhealthcare.com, rta@alankit.com  or lalitap@alankit.com.

	 The Members may note that the Notice of the 49th AGM alongwith the Annual Report for financial year 2022-23 
will also be available on the Company’s website at www.sunilhealthcare.com, website of the Stock Exchange at 
www.bseindia.com on the website of the E-voting and Video conferencing Agency viz. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.
at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/.

15.	 Pursuant to the provisions of the Section 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the IEPF Authority  
(Accounting, audit, Transfer and Refund), Rule, 2016 (“The Rules”) Unpaid/Unclaimed Dividend are required to 
be transferred by the Company to Investor Education & Protection fund (The IEPF) established by the Central 
Government after the completion of seven years. Further according to the Rules, the shares in respect of which 
dividend has not been paid or claimed by the shareholders for seven consecutive years shall also be transferred 
to the demat account created by the IEPF Authority, however, the company did not declare dividend after 2008-
09. The Company has transferred the unpaid or unclaimed dividend for the financial year 1999-2000 to 2008-09 
as per the relevant provision of the Companies Act 2013.  Thereafter, The Company did not declare any dividends.

	 Further, those shareholders, whose dividends were transferred in IEPF Account may still claim refund by filing 
refund application in form IEPF-5. After filing of the said form, printout of the same to be submitted alongwith 
indemnity bond, acknowledgment, self-attested form alongwith other necessary documents as mentioned 
in detailed procedures for claiming of refund at IEPF portal http://www.iepf.gov.in/IEPF/refund.html , and for 
verification purpose to Mr. Satyendu Pattnaik, Company Secretary, The Nodal Officer, Vijay Tower, 38E/252-A, 
Shahpur Jat, Panchsheel Park Commercial Complex, New Delhi-110049, contact no. 011-49435555.

16.	 Non-Resident Indian Members are requested to inform our RTA M/s. Alankit Assignment Limited, immediately 
of:

I.	 Change in their residential status on return to India for permanent settlement.

II.	 Particulars of their bank account maintained in India with complete name, branch, account type, account 
number and address of the bank with pin code number, if not furnished earlier. 
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17.	 In terms of Regulation 40(1) of the Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be 
transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from April 1, 2019, except in case of request received 
for transmission or transposition of securities. Further, SEBI had fixed March 31, 2021, as the cut off date 
for the re-lodgement of transfer deeds and the shares that are re-lodged for transfer shall be issued only 
in dematerialized mode. The requests for effecting transfer/transmission/transposition of securities shall 
not be processed unless the securities are held in the dematerialized form. Transfers of equity shares in 
electronic form are effected through the depositories with no involvement of the Company. The Members, 
who have not, yet got their shares dematerialized are requested to opt for the same in their own interest 
and send their share certificates through Depository Participant(s) with whom they have opened the 
dematerialization account to the Share Transfer Agent of the Company. The promoters of the Company 
have already converted their 100% physical shareholding into demat form.

18.	 As the AGM of the Company is to be conducted through VC/OAVM, the Members desirous of getting any 
information/clarification relating to any of the business mentioned in notice of the AGM of the Company 
or intending to raise any query at AGM are requested to write to the Company Secretary at email id at cs@
sunilhealthcare.com or info@sunilhealthcare.com at least Seven days before the Meeting i.e. by September 
20, 2023, so that the information required can be made readily available.

19.	 The 49th AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and MCA/SEBI circulars.

20.	 Voting through electronic means: 

a.	 In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 (including any statutory modification (s) or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force) and provision of Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure 
Requirement) Regulation, 2015 , the Company is pleased to provide members facility to exercise their right 
to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the 49th Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic 
means and the business may be transacted through e-Voting Services. The company has engaged services 
of Linkintime India Private Limited for availing of Instavote platform for casting the vote through “remote 
e-voting”/ e-voting. 

b.	 The facility for e-voting shall be made available at the AGM and the members attending the meeting who 
have not casted their vote by remote e voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting through 
e-voting. Necessary instruction are given under Note no. 23 (C) of this Notice.

c.	 The members who have casted their vote by remote e- voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM 
but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again at the AGM.

d.	 The remote e-voting period will commence at 9:00 A.M. on Sunday, the 24th September, 2023 and will 
end at 5:00 P.M. on Tuesday, the 26th September, 2023. During this period, Members of the Company 
holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on cut-off date i.e. Thursday, the 
20th September, 2023, may cast their vote by remote e-voting at InstaVote platform of LIIPL. The remote 
e-voting module shall be disabled by Link Intime Pvt. Ltd  (LIIPL), E-voting agency for voting thereafter. 
Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the shareholder, the shareholder shall not be allowed to change it 
subsequently.
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e.	 Remote e-Voting Instructions for shareholders post change in the Login mechanism for Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode, pursuant to SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020:    
The detail instructions for Remote e-voting are as under:

	 Pursuant to SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode can vote through their demat account maintained 
with Depositories and Depository Participants only post 9th June, 2021.

	 Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts to access 
e-Voting facility.

	 Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode/ physical mode is given 
below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

I) Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL

•	 If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit 
the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is 
launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is 
available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will have 
to enter your User ID and Password. 

•	 After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting 
services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you 
will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service 
provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

•	 If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register 
is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online 
for IDeAS “Portal or click   at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/
IdeasDirectReg.jsp

•	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system 
is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have 
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number 
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on 
the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected 
to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click 
on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will 
be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 
voting during the meeting.
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II) Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL

•	 Existing user of who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login 
through their user id and password. Option will be made available to 
reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for 
users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/
home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi.

•	 After successful login of Easi / Easiest the user will be also able to 
see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service 
provider i.e. NSDL, KARVY, LINK NTIME, CDSL. Click on e-Voting service 
provider name to cast your vote.

•	 If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available 
at  https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

•	 Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 
demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in  www.cdslindia.
com home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending 
OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat Account. 
After successful authentication, user will be provided links for the 
respective ESP where the E Voting is in progress.

III) Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities 
in demat mode) & 
login through their 
depository participants

•	 You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for 
e-Voting facility.  

•	 Once login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click 
on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository 
site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting 
feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name 
and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting.

IV)  Individual Shareholders 
holding securities 
in Physical mode 
& evoting service 
Provider is LINKINTIME.

1.  Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instavote.
linkintime.co.in  

Ø   Click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and register with 
your following details: - 

A.	 User ID: Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical 
form shall provide Event No + Folio Number registered with 
the Company.

B.	 PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number 
(PAN) (Members who have not updated their PAN with the 
Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence 
number provided to you, if applicable. 

C.	 DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation 
(DOI) (As recorded with your DP / Company - in DD/MM/YYYY 
format) 

D.	 Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number 
(last four digits), as recorded with your DP/Company. 

•	 Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form 
but have not recorded ‘C’ and ‘D’, shall provide their Folio 
number in ‘D’ above 
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Ø Set the password of your choice (The password should contain 
minimum 8 characters, at least one special Character (@!#$&*), at 
least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital 
letter). 

Ø   Click “confirm” (Your password is now generated).

2.     Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab. 

3.     Enter your User ID, Password and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code 
and click on ‘Submit’. 

4.   After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for 
e-voting. Select ‘View’ icon. 

5.     E-voting page will appear. 

6.    Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your 
desired option ‘Favour / Against’ (If you wish to view the entire 
Resolution details, click on the ‘View Resolution’ file link). 

7. AAfter selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on 
‘Submit’. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm 
your vote, click on ‘Yes’, else to change your vote, click on ‘No’ and 
accordingly modify your vote. 

V)	 Institutional shareholders:

	 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to 
log on the e-voting system of LIIPL at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and register themselves as 
‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’. They are also required to upload a scanned certified true 
copy of the board resolution /authority letter/power of attorney etc. together with attested specimen 
signature of the duly authorised representative(s) in PDF format in the ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / 
Corporate Body’ login for the Scrutinizer to verify the same. 

	 Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode & evoting service Provider is 
LINKINTIME, have forgotten the password: 

o	 Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and further Click ‘forgot password?’ 

o	 Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and Click on ‘Submit’. 

• 	 In case shareholders/ members is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her 
registered e-mail address. 

• 	 Shareholders/ members can set the password of his/her choice by providing the information 
about the particulars of the Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account 
Number (last four digits) etc. as mentioned above. 

• 	 The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special character (@!#$&*), 
at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter. 
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Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL have forgotten the 
password: 

• 	 Shareholders/ members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User 
ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned depository/ depository participants 
website.
	It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost 

care to keep your password confidential. 
	For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for 

voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.
	During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till they have 

voted on the resolution(s) for a particular “Event”.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode:

In case shareholders/ members holding securities in demat mode have any technical issues related 
to login through Depository i.e. NSDL/ CDSL, they may contact the respective helpdesk given below:

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 
helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 
toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30  

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.
com or contact at 022- 23058738 or 22-23058542-43. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in physical mode/ Institutional 
shareholders & evoting service Provider is LINKINTIME.

In case shareholders/ members holding securities in physical mode/ Institutional shareholders have 
any queries regarding remote e-voting, they may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (‘FAQs’) and 
InstaVote e-Voting manual available at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in, under Help section or send 
an email to enotices@linkintime.co.in or Contact Mr. Rajiv Ranjan of LIIPL, C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, 
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai 400 083, Maharashtra, India or call at: - Tel: 022 –4918 6000.

f. 	 General instructions:

i) 	 The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the 
Company as on cut-off date of 20th September, 2023.

ii) 	 Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the Company after sending of the 
notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. Wednesday 20th September, 2023, may obtain the login 
ID and password by following the instructions of Remote e-voting

iii) 	 A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners 
maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote 
e-voting /voting at the Annual General Meeting through e voting.

iv) 	 A member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his right to vote through remote e-voting but 
shall not be allowed to vote again at the AGM.

v) 	 Mr. Tara Chand Sharma, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No.5749 and CP no is 4078) and 
Proprietor of M/s. Jain Sharma & Associates, Company Secretaries, Jaipur  has been appointed as the 
Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting and remote E voting process in a fair and transparent manner.
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vi) 	 The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the Annual General Meeting unblock 
the votes cast through remote e voting and e-voting  in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the 
employment of the Company and shall make within two working days of the conclusion of the Annual 
General Meeting, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, 
forthwith to the Chairman or  a person authorised by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and 
declare the result of the voting. 

vii) 	 The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website www.
sunilhealthcare.com  and on the website of LIIPL at  https://instavote.linkintime.co.in  after the declaration 
of result by the chairman or a person authorised by him in writing. The result shall also be immediately 
uploaded at website of the BSE Limited and shall be forwarded to the Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited.

viii) 	 Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions shall be deemed to have been passed on the 
date of AGM i.e. 27th September, 2023.

PROCESS FOR JOINING AND ATTENDING THE 49TH AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM 

21.	 The Company will provide VC/OVAM facility to its members for participating in Annual General Meeting. The 
Company has appointed M/s Link Intime India Private Limited, as an agency to Provide Video conferencing and 
evoting facility in the 49th Annual General meeting at its Insta meet platform at https://instameet.linkintime.co.in  

A)  	 The following are guidelines and procedure to be adopted by the Members for joining and attending the 
AGM at InstaMeet platform:

1. 	 Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instameet.linkintime.co.in

Ø    Select the “Company” and ‘Event Date’ and register with your following details: - 
A.	 Demat Account No. or Folio No: Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. or Folio No

•     Shareholders/ members holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit 
Beneficiary ID

•     Shareholders/ members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character 
DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

•   Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall provide Folio Number 
registered with the Company 

B.    PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Members who have not updated 
their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company, shall use the sequence number 
provided to you, if applicable. 

C.    Mobile No.: Enter your mobile number. 
D.    Email ID: Enter your email id, as recorded with your DP/Company. 

Ø    Click “Go to Meeting” (You are now registered for InstaMeet and your attendance is marked 
for the meeting).

	 Please refer the instructions (annexure) for the software requirements and kindly ensure to install the 
same on the device which would be used to attend the meeting. Please read the instructions carefully 
and participate in the meeting. You may also call upon the InstaMeet Support Desk for any support on 
the dedicated number provided to you in the instruction/ InstaMEET website.

B)	 Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Speak during the Annual General Meeting through 
InstaMeet:

1.	 Shareholders who would like to speak during the meeting must register their request 7 days in advance 
(till September 20, 2023) with the company on the mentioning their name, demat account number/
folio number, email id, mobile number at cs@sunilhealthcare.com or info@sunilhealthcare.com , the 
management will exercise its discretion based upon numbers of speaker and availability of time.



11

SUNIL HEALTHCARE LIMITED

2.	 Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first basis depending upon the provision made by the 
company. 

3.	 Shareholders will receive “speaking serial number” once they mark attendance for the meeting.

4.	 Other shareholder may ask questions to the panellist, via active chat-board during the meeting.

5.	 Please remember speaking serial number and start your conversation with panellist by switching on 
video mode and audio of your device.

	 Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting/ management will announce the 
name and serial number for speaking. 

C) 	 Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Vote during the Annual General Meeting through 
InstaMeet:

	 Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutinizer/ moderator during the meeting, shareholders/ 
members who have not exercised their vote through the remote e-voting can cast the vote as under:

1.	 On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-Voting “Cast your vote”

2.	 Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile number/ 
registered email Id) received during registration for InstaMEET and click on ‘Submit’. 

3.	 After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the option “Favour/ 
Against” for voting. 

4.	 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the number of 
shares (which represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under ‘Favour/Against’.

5.	 After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have decided to vote, click 
on “Save”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “Confirm”, else 
to change your vote, click on “Back” and accordingly modify your vote. 

6.	 Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change your vote 
subsequently.

Note:	 Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet facility 
and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred 
from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting facility during the meeting. Shareholders/ 
Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting prior to the Annual General Meeting will be eligible 
to attend/ participate in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet. However, they will not be 
eligible to vote again during the meeting. 

	 Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected 
through broadband for better experience.

	 Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download 
stream) to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

	 Please note that Shareholders/ Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops 
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network.  
It is therefore recommended to use stable Wi-FI or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid 
glitches.
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In case shareholders/ members have any queries regarding login/ e-voting, they may send an email to 
instameet@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022-49186175.

D) 	 Guidelines to attend the AGM proceedings of Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.: InstaMEET

	 For a smooth experience of viewing the AGM proceedings of Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. InstaMEET, 
shareholders/ members who are registered as speakers for the event are requested to download and 
install the Webex application in advance by following the instructions as under:

a)	 Please download and install the Webex  application by clicking on the link https://www.webex.com/
downloads.html/  
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or

b)	 If you do not want to download and install the Webex application, you may join the meeting by 
following the process mentioned as under: 

Step 1 Enter your First Name, Last Name and Email ID and click on Join Now. 

    1 (A) If you have already installed the Webex application on your device, join the meeting by 
clicking on Join Now 

    1 (B) If Webex application is not installed, a new page will appear giving you an option to 
either Add Webex to chrome or Run a temporary application. 
Click on Run a temporary application, an exe file will be downloaded. Click on this exe 
file to run the application and join the meeting by clicking on Join Now 
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Annexure to the Notice
ANNEXURE: 1

Information on Directors recommended for appointment/re-appointment of Director as required under 
Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Details required as per Secretarial Standard (SS2) as 
under:-

Name of Director Mr. (Amb.)Krishna Venkatachalam Rajan 
DIN 02777067
Date of Birth /Age 12.03.1941
Date of Appointment 13.02.2019
No. of share Held in the Company NIL
Qualification Former Member of the Indian Foreign Service.
Brief Resume and Nature of Experience Mr. K.V. Rajan has nearly forty  years of diplomatic service, he 

was entrusted with diverse responsibilities which covered 
political, economic, cultural, academic, media-related and 
multilateral work and developed intimate knowledge about 
most countries and major international institutions in the world. 
After retirement as Secretary, Ministry of External Affairs his 
services were extended in the capacity of Advisor, Minister of 
External Affairs.

Directorships held in other public Companies 
[excluding foreign and private Companies]

Nil 

Memberships / Chairmanships of Audit & 
Stakeholders Relationship Committees of 
other Public Companies 

1 (Chairman of Stakeholder Relationship Committee of Sunil 
Healthcare Ltd.)	

Inter-se relationship with other Directors No relation with other director
Terms & Condition of appointment or 
re-appointment along with detail of 
remuneration sought to be paid

Re-appointment as Non-Executive Director, retire by rotation.
No remuneration will be paid except sitting fees.

Last Remuneration Drawn Rs. 51,000/- (Sitting Fees)* 
No. of Board meeting attended during the 
year (FY 2022-23)

5

Note:    * After TDS @10%
              1) No directors, Key Managerial Personnel’s or their relatives except Mr. K.V. Rajan, being appointee for 

position of Director, retire by rotation are directly or indirectly concerned/interested in the  
Resolution no. 2.

By order of the Board of Directors
For SUNIL HEALTHCARE LIMITED             		                  	 Reg. Office: 

38E/252A, Vijay Tower, Shahpurjat, New Delhi-110049
SATYENDU PATTNAIK				                     CIN No: L24302DL1973PLC189662
COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER		  Phone No: +91-11-49435555/00 Fax no 011-43850087
FCS-7736						      Email ID: info@sunilhealthcare.com	
Place – New Delhi        					     Web; www.sunilhealthcare.com
Dated- August 11, 2023	 					      
Email: cs@sunilhealthcare.com
Contact No. 011-49435541
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SUNIL HEALTHCARE LIMITED 
Regd. Office: 38E/252-A, Vijay Tower, Shahpurjat, New Delhi-110049

CIN- L24302DL1973PLC189662 / Email: info@sunilhealthcare.com / Webiste: www.sunilhealthcare.com
Tel: +91-11-49435555/00  Fax: +91-11-43850087  

BOARD’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
SUNIL HEALTHCARE LIMITED

Your Directors have great pleasure in presenting the 49th Directors Report on the business and operations together 
with the audited financial statement of your Company for the year ended 31st March 2023. 

FINANCIAL RESULTS
                                   					                                                             (` in Lacs)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22

Revenue from Operation 11182.95 11637.29 11049.10 11916.41

Other Income 162.92 155.42 449.64 167.55

Total Revenue 11345.87 11792.71 11498.74 12083.96
Total Expenditure including other 
Expenditure (Excluding Depreciations & Interest) 

9252.26 9856.15 9432.48 10177.88

Profit before depreciation and Finance Cost 2093.61 1936.56 2066.26 1906.08

Finance Cost 416.75 348.88 416.75 348.88

Depreciation 701.00 630.57 701.18 630.73

Profit before tax (continued operation) 975.86 957.11 948.33 926.47
Less: - Tax Expenses Net (continued operation) 278.17 279.43 280.12 284.41

Profit after Tax from (continued operation) 697.69 677.68 668.21 642.06
Profit before Tax (discontinued operation) 0 0 0 0
Less: - Tax Expenses Net (discontinued operation) 0 0 0 0
Profit after Tax from (discontinued operation) 0 0 0 0
PBT (both continued & discontinued operation) 975.86 957.11 948.33 926.47
PAT (both continued & discontinued operation) 697.69 677.68 668.21 642.06
Other Comprehensive Income (4.11) (5.97) (64.02) (18.36)
Total Comprehensive Income 693.58 671.71 604.20 623.76
Earning per Shares (both continued and 
discontinued operation)

6.80 6.61 6.52 6.26

COMPANY OVERVIEW AND STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

The Directors of the Company are glad to inform you that your company is the leading Hard shell capsule manufacturer 
in India and Pioneer in double lock and triple lock technology for capsules in India. The Company had started 
production of HPMC Capsule in August 2018 and in short span of time the sales brought in from HPMC have led to 
better performance.

Your company also have Global Presence with Subsidiaries in USA and Mexico during the year. The company is WHO-
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GMP certified Company and has also been recognized as “Star Export House” by GOI. The management is optimistic 
about the future outlook of the company in short, medium and long-term. 

The Plant of your company is located at Alwar which is easily accessible by air, road and rail. Indira Gandhi International 
Airport is the nearest Airport located at a distance of 163 kms. It is also connected well by roads to some major cities 
of Rajasthan like Jaipur.

The Company deals in Business segment of Manufacturing Empty Hard Capsule Shells and the choice in nine size 
available are 00, 0SEL, 0EL, 0,1,2,3, 4, 5. The company has increased its installed capacity from 13 billion to 15 billion 
capsules at the existing facility in financial year 2021-22. The company enjoys immense credibility in various Global 
Market. The management of the company Continued focus on achieving cost optimization and yield improvements 
through Economies of Scale. The company also renewed interest in the business with an aim to become the one of 
the leading Hard Shell Capsule manufacturer in the world.

IMPACT OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC ON OPERATION OF THE COMPANY

FY 20 saw the onset of Covid-19 Pandemic at the closing stages of the Financial Year in India and still in FY 21, financial 
year 22 and starting of financial year 2023, India and most part of world are in third and fourth waves of the Covid-19 
pandemic, caused much loss of life and economy. 

Challenges of inclement Raw material pricing, coupled with increase in logistics cost due to increase in fuel price due 
to Covid-19 and recent war which is going on between Russia and Ukraine since long period of time, demand side 
uncertainty is a deterrent on the earnings of the Company, however, the company has taken various steps to curb the 
cost and make its product more qualitative, affordable and competitive.

The physical and emotional wellbeing of employees of the company continues to be a top priority for your Company, 
the Company has taken several initiatives to support employees and their families during this difficult phase of 
pandemic

The Company has attempted to mitigate the impact of this pandemic on its Operations through strict adoption of the 
prescribed Health and Safety Guidelines of the Honourable State and Central Governments. Work from home facilities 
had been provided to team members as per the recommendations of the Authorities. At the Plant level, Operations 
had been undertaken keeping all requisite considerations of Health and Safety at the forefront. 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

During the F.Y. 2022-23 (standalone) the Company had reported Turnover/Revenue from operation of ` 11182.95 
lakhs as against  ̀  11637.29 Lakhs in the F.Y. 2021-22 with marginal decrease by 3.90%, Profit before depreciation and 
Finance Cost increased by 8.11%, Profit before Tax increased by 1.96%, Profit after Tax increased by 2.95% and Loss in 
other comprehensive Income (OCI) reduced by 31.16% as compared to financial year 2021-22.

During the F.Y. 2022-23, the Company had reported on a consolidated basis, the total revenue from the operation is  
` 11049.10 Lakhs, Profit before depreciation and Finance Cost is ` 2066.26 Lakhs, Profit before tax is  ` 948.33 Lakhs 
and Profit after Tax is  ` 668.21 Lakhs and other Comprehensive Income is  ` (64.02) Lakhs. 

The Management of the Company is committed to improve the performance in the coming year to achieve better 
production, sales and profit by using the optimum product mix and explore new avenue to achieve overall growth of 
the Company. Further there is no change in the nature of the business of the company.

FOREIGN WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY AND SUBSIDIARY OF THE COMPANY 

During the year the company had Wholly Owned Subsidiary namely “Sunil Healthcare North America LLC” in the 
United States of America, which was registered on 26th July, 2016 and a subsidiary namely “Sunil Healthcare Mexico 
SA DE CV”” in the city of San Luis Postosi, Mexico, United Mexican States, which was registered  on 1st February, 2017.
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DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES PERFORMANCES 

Pursuant to the provision of Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act 2013, a statement containing salient features of 
financial statement of subsidiaries in FORM AOC-1 is attached herewith and marked Annexure A.  In accordance with 
section 136 of Companies Act 2013, the separate financial statements in respect of each of the subsidiary companies 
shall be kept open for inspection at the registered office of the Company during working hours for period of 21 days 
before the date of Annual General Meeting. Your Company will also make available these documents upon request by 
any member of the Company interested in obtaining the same.

EXPANSION OF THE PROJECT 

The Company has its production capacity of manufacturing of Empty Hard Capsule shell of 13 billion p.a. since 
financial year 2017-18. During the year 2021-22, the Production Capacity of manufacturing of Empty Hard Capsule 
shell increased to 15.00 billion p.a.

TRANSFER TO RESERVE

During the year the Company did not transfer any amount in Reserve.

DIVIDEND

With a view to finance expansion from internal accrual for the growth of the Company, the Directors of the Company 
did not recommend any dividend for the year ended March 31, 2023.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review the Company has authorised capital of `  17,00,00,000/- divided into 1,08,00,000 (One 
Crore Eight Lakhs) equity shares of  ̀   10/- (Rupees Ten) each and 620000 (Six lakhs and twenty thousands) Redeemable 
Non-cumulative and Non-participatory preference Shares of `100/- (Rupees Hundred) each.

The paid up Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2023 was  ̀  16,07,97,500 divided into  ̀  10,25,47,500 Equity 
share capital and  ̀  5,82,50,000 of 0.01% Redeemable Non-cumulative and Non-participatory preference Shares (RPS). 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

CESSATION 

Pursuant to Provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013  Mr. Krishna Venkatachalam Rajan, Non-Executive 
Director ((DIN: 02777067), retired as Non-Executive Director and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment as 
Non-Executive Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation.

Except above, during the financial year 2022-23, no Directors/KMPs retired or ceased their office.

APPOINTMENT/ RE-APPOINTMENT 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 149  and applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and Regulation 17 of 
and other applicable regulations of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the change in designation Mr. Sanjay Kumar Kaushik (DIN: 00329013) from 
Independent Director to Non- Executive Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation w.e.f. September 28, 
2022 was approved through special resolution by shareholders at its 48th Annual General Meeting held on September 
28, 2022.

pursuant to the provision of Section 149, 152 and 164 read with Schedule IV and all other applicable provision of 
the Companies Act, 213 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including and 
statutory modification(s) or re- enactment thereof for the time being in force) and Regulation 16, 17 and 17A of the 
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SEBI(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, the appointment of Mrs. Mudita Chaturvedi 
(DIN: 02384403), was approved through Special Resolution by the shareholders in its 48th Annual General Meeting 
held on September 28, 2022 for a period of 5 years starting from September 28, 2022 upto September 27, 2027, not 
liable to retire by rotation.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

During the reporting period, pursuant to the provisions of Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, all Independent 
Directors have given declaration that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and under Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 
2015. 

NUMBER OF MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the Financial Year 2022-23, the Board of Directors met out five times on 06.05.2022, 20.07.2022, 14.11.2022, 
07.01.2023 and 14.02.2023. The details of attendance of each director at the Board Meeting are provided in the 
Corporate Governance Report in Annexure-G, which is part of Annual Report. 

MEETING AND COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The details of meetings, composition and attendance of each member of the committee at the committee meetings 
are provided in the Corporate Governance Report in Annexure-G, which is part of the Annual Report.

During the year all the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board

AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REPORT

STATUTORY AUDITOR 

M/s. Singhi & Co., Chartered Accountants, having Firm registration no. 302049E, was appointed as Statutory Auditors 
of the company by the shareholders at its 48th Annual General Meeting held on September 28, 2022 for the first term 
of five consecutive years starting from conclusion of 48th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 53rd AGM to 
be held in the year 2027.  

M/s. Singhi & Co. has been in the profession for over 80 years and is one of the well reputed audit firm in the country. 
They provide varied services which include assurance, risk advisory, taxation, corporate finance etc. They serve 
multiple listed companies and have tremendous experience in the field of audit. Singhi & Co. has 26 partners with 8 
offices across the country. They are Indian members of Moore Global network.

AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Auditors’ Report on standalone and consolidated financial statements for the year 2022-23 forming part of the 
Annual Report. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks, disclaimer or 
emphasis of matter. Notes to the Financial Statements are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the Company has appointed M/s ATCS & Associates, Company Secretaries, 
Jaipur as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for financial year 2022-23. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2023 is annexed herewith and marked as Annexure B to this Report. The Secretarial Auditors’ 
Report contain any observation/qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks, disclaimer or emphasis of matter is self-
explanatory and does not require further explanation. The Board in its meeting held on May 29, 2023 has appointed 
M/s ATCS & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, Jaipur as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the financial 
year 2023-24. 
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COST AUDITOR 

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment 
Rules, 2014, the maintenance of cost audit records is not applicable on the Company. 

INTERNAL AUDITOR 

Pursuant to Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Internal 
Audit Records maintained by the Company. 

The Board had already appointed Agarwal S. Lal & Co., Chartered Accountants as Internal Auditors to undertake the 
Internal Audit of the Company for the financial year 2022-23.

Further, the appointment of M/s. Agarwal S. Lal & Co., Chartered Accountants as Internal Auditors for financial year 
2023-24 was approved by the Board upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee upon such terms and 
conditions as mutually agreed, in its meeting held on   29 .05.2023.

ANNUAL RETURN 

The Annual Return for Financial year 2021-22 can be accessed at https://www.sunilhealthcare.com/uploads/
investorrelationpdf/6905Annual%20Return_MGT-7_2021-22.pdf.

The draft Annual Return for financial Year 2022-23 can be accessed at https://www.sunilhealthcare.com/annual-
return-mgt

FRAUD REPORTING 

There were no frauds found which have been reported to the Audit Committee / Board members as well as to the 
Central Government.

PARTICULARS OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

All the related party transactions which were repetitive in nature, entered on arm’s length basis in the ordinary course of 
business and compliance with Section 188 (1) of the Companies Act 2013 read with rules made there under, Regulation 
23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable provisions of the 
Law. During the year under review, no related party transaction as referred under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 
2013 were entered except the transaction on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. Particulars 
of all such contracts and arrangements with Related Parties are given in the prescribed Form AOC-2 as appended as 
Annexure C to this Report. Further Complete Disclosures of all related party transactions are given in Note no. 37 
to Notes to Financial Statements as per the provisions of IND-As 24.  There was no related party transaction which 
is in conflict with the interest of the Company. The policy on the Related Party Transaction are available on the 
website of the Company at link https://www.sunilhealthcare.com/uploads/filemanager/2802Related%20Party%20
Transaction%20Policy_30052019.pdf

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

Disclosures with respect to the remuneration of Directors, KMPs and employees as required under section 197(12) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 as Amendment from time to time appended as Annexure D to this Report.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT AND FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE

EARNINGS & OUTGO:

Information on conservation of Energy, Technology absorption, Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo required to be 
disclosed under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are set out in a 
separate statement given in the Annexure ‘E’ forming part of this report.

INSURANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT 

During the Financial Year 2022-23, the assets of the Company were adequately insured against the loss of fire and 
earthquake. In addition to this coverage, a statutory public liability insurance policy has been taken to cover by 
Company for providing against the public liability arising out of industrial accident for employees working in plant. 
The provision of Risk Management under Regulation 21 (5) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirement), 
Regulation, 2015, is not applicable on the Company but the Company has voluntarily constituted a Risk Management 
Committee. 

The Risk Management Committee consists of three members’ as on March 31, 2023 viz. Mr. Rakesh Mohan, Chairman, 
Mr. Sanjay Kaushik, Member, and  Mr. Harish Pal Kumar, Member. The Company has in place Risk Management System 
which takes care of risk identification, assessment and mitigation. There are no risks which in the opinion of the Board 
threaten the existence of the Company. Risk factors and its mitigation are covered extensively in the Management 
Discussion and Analysis Report forming part of this Board’s Report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

The main objective of the Company’s CSR policy is to lay down guidelines for the Company to make CSR a business 
process for sustainable development of the society at large. It aims to enhance and implement the society welfare 
measures by the Company in a well structural manner on short and long term basis with a vision of making Sunil 
Healthcare Limited to act as Good Corporate Citizen. CSR is an evolving concept at Sunil Healthcare Limited, it’s 
been there since incorporation, we have promised to ourselves to take up the responsibility of ensuring a healthy 
ecosystem. SHL’s CSR program is anchored on the continuing commitment to improve the quality of living conditions 
and opportunities for the differently able without regard to their faith, origin or gender. The terms of reference of 
the CSR Committee are given in the Corporate Governance Report. The details of CSR Policy of the Company also 
available on the website of the Company at web https://www.sunilhealthcare.com/uploads/filemanager/3496CSRPol
icy_13082018.pdf.  The Annual Report on CSR Activities is appended as Annexure F to this Board’s Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

In terms of Regulation 34 and other applicable regulation of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, a report on Corporate 
Governance along with Statutory Auditors’ Certificate as required by the Listing Regulation confirming its compliance 
with the corporate governance requirement are appended as Annexure G to this Board’s Report.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VISIL MECHANISM

During the year there was no case filed under this policy. The details of this Policy are stated in the Corporate 
Governance Report and also available on the website of the Company at web link https://www.sunilhealthcare.com/
uploads/filemanager/7626q-1.pdf.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 22 OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 

The Company has in place a Policy on prohibition of Sexual harassment of employees in the Company in line with 
the requirement of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
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Composition of SHL’s Internal Complaint Committee (ICC): The ICC was reconstituted with effect from 02.11.2018. 
As on March 31, 2023 the Composition of ICC was as under

1.	 Mrs.  Rekha Gupta - Presiding officer
2.	 Mr. Suresh Yadav.-Member
3	 Mr. Vijay Kumar Puniyani- Independent Member 
4	 Mrs.  Anita Kaul- Member 

ICC’s Report on the complaints from January 01, 2022 to December 31, 2022:

a)	 Number of complaint received during year : NIL
b)	 Number of complaint disposed off                :  NIL
c)	 Number of cases pending for more than 90 days: NIL
d)	 Number of workshop or training programme organized against sexual harassment: 1 (20.10.2022)
e)	 Nature of action taken, if any, by the Company : NOT APPLICABLE

The Policy on Prohibition of Sexual harassment of employees is available on the website of the Company at 
link https://www.sunilhealthcare.com/uploads/filemanager/2884PreventionOf%20SEXUAL%20HARRASMENT%20
POLICY02112018%20(1).pdf.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company formulated a criteria’s for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes and independence of a director and other matters provided under Sub-section (3) of Section 178 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and recommended to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration for the directors, key 
managerial personnel and other employees. The brief of Nomination & Remuneration Policy is stated in the Corporate 
Governance Report in Annexure-G and also full Nomination & Remuneration policy is available on the website 
of the Company at link https://www.sunilhealthcare.com/uploads/filemanager/8333NOMINATION%20AND%20
REMUNERATION%20POLICY-130820018.pdf.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) 
Regulation, 2015, the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the directors 
individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration and other 
committees as per the Board Evaluation policy, which is available at website of the company at web link https://
www.sunilhealthcare.com/uploads/filemanager/5816q-8.pdf. A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking 
into consideration inputs received from the Directors, covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as 
adequacy of the composition of the Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of specific 
duties, obligations and governance. A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual 
Directors including the Chairman of the Board, who were evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and 
contribution, independence of judgment, safeguarding the interest of the Company and its minority shareholders 
etc. The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board. The performance 
evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors

The outcome of the Board Evaluation for Financial year 2021-22, which was carried out in financial year 2022-23 was 
as under:

(i)	 All Non-Independent Directors

	 Mr. Anil Kumar Khaitan: 4.00 (Exceeds Expectation), Mr. K.V. Rajan 3.67 (Exceeds expectation) and Mrs. Mudita 
Chaturvedi: 3.33 (meets expectation).
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(ii) 	 Independent Directors 

	 Mr. Harish Pal Kumar: 4.00 (Exceeds Expectation) –Part A & B, Mr. Rakesh Mohan: 4.0(Exceeds expectation)- Part 
A & 3.83 (exceeds expectation) –Part B, Mr. Sanjay Kumar  Kaushik: 3.5(meets expectation)-Part A & 4.00 (exceeds 
expectation) –Part B,, Mr. Bejon Misra: 3.83 (exceeds Expectation) –Part A & B.

(iii) 	The Chairman and Managing Director.

	 The results of the Evaluation of The Chairman and Managing Director was 4.00 (Exceeds Expectation).

(iv) 	The Board as whole.

	 The results of the Evaluation of performance of the Board as whole was 3.86 (Exceeds Expectation)

(v)	 The Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

	 The result of the evaluation of performance of the Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee were 3.86 (Exceeds Expectation) and 4.00 (Exceeds Expectation) respectively.

The Board Evaluation of Financial year 2022-23 will be carried on during the financial year 2023-24.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR’S MEETING 

During the year under review, one meeting of the Independent Directors of your Company was held on 27.02.2023 
without the presence of any member of Management. The Meeting are conducted in an informal and flexible manner 
to enable the Independent Directors to discuss matters pertaining to, inter alia, review of performance of Non-
Independent Directors and the Board as a whole, review the performance of the Chairman of the Company (taking 
into account the views of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors), review the performance of the Company, assess 
the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company Management and the Board that is 
necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH RESPECT TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company maintains adequate internal control system and procedures commensurate with its size and nature of 
operations. The internal control systems are designed to provide a reasonable assurance over reliability in financial 
reporting, ensure appropriate authorisation of transactions, safeguarding the assets of the Company and prevent 
misuse/ losses and legal compliances.

The internal control system includes a well-defined delegation of authority and a comprehensive Management 
Information System coupled with quarterly reviews of operational and financial performance, a well-structured 
budgeting process with regular monitoring of expenses and Internal audit. The Internal Audit reports are periodically 
reviewed by the management and the Audit Committee and necessary improvements are undertaken, if required.

PUBLIC DEPOSIT

Your Company has not accepted any public deposit within the meaning of provisions of section 73 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 and there is no outstanding deposit due for 
re-payment.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

The Company has not given any loans or guarantees covered under the provisions of section 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Further the Company had invested in its subsidiaries viz. Sunil Healthcare Mexico SA.De. CV. 2,999 Equity 
Shares (2,999 shares of MXP1) Sunil Healthcare North America LLC 2,000 Equity Shares of US$10/- each. Total value of 
Unquoted Investment as on March 31, 2023 was  ` 0.10 lakhs.
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SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL CHANGES AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION

There are no change and commitments which affecting the financial position of the Company which have occurred 
between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate i.e. 31.03.2023 and the 
date of report 29 .05.2023. 

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Section 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the IEPF Authority 
(Accounting, audit, Transfer and Refund), Rule, 2016 (“The Rules”) Unpaid/Unclaimed Dividend are required to 
be transferred by the Company to Investor Education & Protection fund (The IEPF) established by the Central 
Government after the completion of seven years.  Further according to the Rules, the shares in respect of which 
dividend has not been paid or claimed by the shareholders for seven consecutive years or more shall also be transferred 
to the demat account created by the IEPF Authority. However, the company did not declare dividend after 2008-09. 
The Company has transferred the unpaid or unclaimed dividend for the financial year 1999-2000 to 2008-09 as per the 
relevant provision of the Companies Act 2013. Thereafter, The Company did not declare any dividends. Further, those 
shareholders, whose dividends were transferred in IEPF Account may still claim refund by filing refund application in 
form IEPF-5, after filing  form printout of the same to be submitted alongwith indemnity bond, acknowledgment, self-
attested form and other necessary documents as mentioned in detailed procedures for claiming refund at IEPF portal 
http://www.iepf.gov.in/IEPF/refund.html, for verification purpose to the Mr. Satyendu Pattnaik, Company Secretary, 
The Nodal Officer, Vijay Tower, 38E/252-A, Shahpur Jat, Panchsheel Park Commercial Complex, New Delhi-110049, 
contact no. 011-49435555.  The details of unpaid dividend are provided on our website at www.sunilhealthcare.com

SECRETARIAL STANDARD

During the reporting period 2022-23, your Company has complied with the Secretarial Standard 1 and 2 issued by the 
Institute of Companies Secretaries of India, which were made applicable with effect from 01.07.2015 and amended 
from time to time.

CREDIT RATING: The details of credit rating assigned by CARE Ratings Limited, credit rating agency during the 
financial year 2022-23 are as under:

S. No. Facilities/instruments Amount (Rs. Crores) Rating Rating Action
1. Long-term Bank facilities 32.68

(enhanced from 31.28)
 CARE BBB; Stable (Triple 
B; Outlook: Stable) 

 Revised from CARE 
BBB-; Stable (Triple B 
Minus; Outlook: Stable) 

2. Short- term Bank facilities 14.85  CARE A3+ (A Three Plus)  Revised from CARE A3 
(A Three) 

3. Short term Bank facilities 0.00 - Withdrawn

Total facilities 47.53 ( Rupees forty 
seven crores and fifty 
three lakhs only)

Note:	 l	During the financial year 2022-23, the company did not issue any securities, deposit, and commercial 
papers etc. which require credit rating by credit rating agency.

LISTING AND CONFIRMATION OF FEE

The securities of your Company are listed at The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and The Calcutta Stock 
Exchange (CSE). The Annual Listing fees to CSE and BSE for the financial year 2023-24 were paid on April 27, 2023 and 
April 28, 2023 respectively. Annual Custodian fees to NSDL and CDSL for the financial year 2023-24 were paid on April 
22, 2023.  
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DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In terms of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the directors would like to state that During Financial year 
2022-23:

I.	 In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed alongwith the 
proper explanation relating to material departures. 

II.	 The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 
at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for the that period.

III.	 The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities. 

IV.	 The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis. 

V.	 The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

VI.	 The directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 
such system were adequate and operating effectively.

STATUTORY DISCLOSURES:

During the reporting Financial Year 2022-23, your Directors state that there being no transactions were done with 
respect to the following items, hence, no disclosure or reporting is required:

1.	 Deposits from public falling within the ambit of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

2.	 Issue of Equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

3.	 Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to the Employees of your company under any scheme.

4.	 The Managing Director of your company did not receive any remuneration or commission from any of the 
subsidiaries.

5.	 No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals, which impact the going 
concern status and Company’s operations in future.

6.	 Buy Back of shares.

7.	 The Company has neither filed any application under the Insolvency and Bankruptacy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016), as 
amended from time to time, nor has availed one time settlement with respect to any loans from banks or financial 
institutions.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

In terms of Provision of Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015 and in 
compliance of the provision of Companies Act -2013 a Management Discussion and Analysis Report is appended to 
this report.

INDUSTRIAL RELATION

Relation with the employees remain cordial and your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation of the co-
operation and contribution made by the employees at all levels.
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RIGHT OF MEMBER TO COPIES OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Having regard to the provisions of the first proviso to Section 136(1) of the Act read with MCA Circular Nos. 10/2022, 
dated 28th December 2022, 02/2022 dated May 05, 2022, 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, 20/2020 dated May 05, 
2020 read together with circular no. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, circular no. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and 
circular no. 22/2020 dated June 15, 2020 and Circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD 2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021 
and SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 and any other circulars be issued from time to time by 
the Securities Exchange Board of India, the Annual Report for financial year 2022-23 and other communications is 
being sent only to those members, whose email id are registered with the Company/ RTA/Depositories on cutoff date 
for sending notice of AGM through electronic mode only. The Member may note that no printed Annual Report for 
financial year 2022-23 would be issued except requested specifically. 

The Members who had joined the Company as member after cut off date for sending notice to members till 7 days 
prior to date of Meeting) may write to cs@sunilhealthcare.com, rta@sunilhealthcare.com or lalitap@alankit.com.

The Members may note that the Notice of the 49th AGM alongwith the Annual Report for financial year 2022-23 will 
also be available on the Company’s website at www.sunilhealthcare.com, website of the Stock Exchange at www.
bseindia.com on the website of the E-voting and Video conferencing Agency. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The statements contained in the Board’s Report and Management Discussion and Analysis contain certain statements 
relating to the future and therefore are forward looking within the meaning of applicable securities, laws and 
regulations. Various factors such as economic conditions, changes in government regulations, tax regime, other 
statues, market forces and other associated and incidental factors may however lead to variation in actual results.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Your Board place on record their appreciation for the overwhelming co-operation and assistance received from the 
Company’s esteemed Shareholders, valued Customers, Suppliers, Business Associates, Bankers, Vendors, various 
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contribution and continued support and to all the persons who reposed faith and trust in Company.

Your Board also place on record their appreciation to its employees for their dedicated service and firm commitment to 
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On behalf of the Board            		                  

	 Reg. Office: 
ANIL KUMAR KHAITAN	 38E/252A, Vijay Tower, Shahpurjat, New Delhi-110049
Chairman cum Managing Director & CEO	 CIN No: L24302DL1973PLC189662
DIN: 00759951	 Phone No: +91-11-49435555/00 Fax No. 011-43850087
Place: New Delhi	 Email ID:  info@sunilhealthcare.com	
Dated: May 29, 2023	 Website: www.sunilhealthcare.com
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ANNEXURE A TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/ 
associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

Sl. No. Particulars Sunil Healthcare North 
America LLC

Sunil Healthcare 
Mexico SA DE CV

The date since when subsidiary was 
acquired

26/07/2016 01/02/2017

Reporting period for the subsidiary 
concerned, if different from the holding 
company’s reporting period

1st April 2022 to 31st March 
2023

1st January 2022 to 31st 
December 2022

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on 
the last date of the relevant Financial year in 
the case of foreign subsidiaries

US Dollars
Exchange Rate as on 31/3/2023 
– 1 USD = Rs. 82.217

Mexican Pesos Exchange 
Rate as on 31/3/2023 – 1 
Mexican Pesos = Rs. 4.56

Share capital  Rs. 12.91 Lakhs Rs. 0.10 Lakhs

Reserves & surplus (Rs. 11.93 Lakhs) (Rs. 398.61 Lakhs)

Total assets Rs. 0.98 Lakhs Rs. 510.60 Lakhs

Total Liabilities NIL Rs. 910.80 Lakhs

Investments NIL NIL

Turnover Nil  Rs. 210.65 Lakhs

Profit before taxation1 Rs. 226.91 Lakhs (Rs. 254.69 Lakhs)

Provision for taxation NIL (Rs. 1.95 Lakhs)

Profit after taxation Rs. 226.91 Lakhs (Rs. 256.65 Lakhs)

Proposed Dividend NIL NIL

Extent of shareholding (In percentage) 100% 99.97%

Notes: 
1.	 Profit before Taxation is as per the Financial Statement prepared by the Holding Company for the purpose of 

consolidation of Financial Statement.
2.	 None of the Subsidiary has been sold or liquidated during the year.

On Behalf of the Board 

Anil Kumar Khaitan 						      Harish Pal Kumar 			 
Chairman cum Managing Director 				    Director, Chairman & Audit Committee
DIN-00759951							       DIN-01826010
Date: 29/05/2023
Place: New Delhi
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ANNEXURE B FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2023
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
SUNIL HEALTHCARE LIMITED
38E/252A, Vijay Tower,
Shahpur Jat,
New Delhi- 110049

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence 
to good corporate practices by Sunil Healthcare Limited (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit 
was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.
Based on our verification of the Sunil Healthcare Limited books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in  our opinion, the company 
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31stMarch, 2023 complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance- mechanism in 
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Sunil 
Healthcare Limited for the financial year ended on 31stMarch, 2023 according to the provisions of:

(i)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(ii)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(iii)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iv)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;
(v)	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 

1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-
(a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 

2011;
(b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; (repealed 

w.e.f. 15th May, 2015)
(c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2009 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);
(d)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 

Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);
(e)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not 

applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);
(f)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 

1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
(g)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and2008 (Not 

applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);
(h)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not applicable to 

the Company during the Audit Period);
(i)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; and
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(vi)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 
2015.- 

(vii)	 The other specific laws applicable to the company are:

(a)	 Petroleum & Explosive Act
(b)	 Drugs & Cosmetic Act. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) 	 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India 

(ii) 	 The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange and Calcutta Stock Exchange 
and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

EXCEPT
As per the regulation 23(9) of The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has submitted the Related Party Transaction Report on 
consolidated basis for the half year ended 30.09.2022 to BSE with the delay of 9 days i.e. on 08.12.2022 for which 
BSE has imposed penalty of Rs. 53100/- (including GST of Rs. 8100/-) which was paid by the company. However, the 
Company has filed an application to BSE for waiver of the penalty which is under process.

We further report that
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during 
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications 
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the 
minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the company has two legal cases pending in the court of Law.

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ANNEXURE ‘A’ and forms an integral part of 
this report.

										        
						         	   FOR ATCS & ASSOCIATES

Practicing Company Secretaries
UDIN: F005749E000403333

	
								                          Tara Chand Sharma
										                [Partner]
Place	 :	 Jaipur	 FCS No.  5749
Date 	 :	 29.05.2023	 C P No.:  4078
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           ANNEXURE ‘A’

To,
The Members,
SUNIL HEALTHCARE LIMITED
38E/252A, Vijay Tower,
Shahpur Jat,
New Delhi- 110049

Our Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.	 Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is 
to express an opinion on these Secretarial records based on our audit.

2.	 We have followed the Audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide 
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 
company. We have relied upon the Report of Statutory Auditors regarding compliance of Companies Act, 2013 
and Rules made thereunder relating to maintenance of Books of Accounts, papers and financial statements of 
the relevant Financial Year, which give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the company.

4.	 We have relied upon the Report of Statutory Auditors regarding compliance of Fiscal Laws, like the Income Tax 
Act, 1961 & Finance Acts, the Customs Act, 1962, the Central Excise Act, 1944 and Service Tax.

5.	 Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of Laws, rules 
and regulations and happening of events etc.

6.	 The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

7.	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficiency 
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.   

										        
						         	   FOR ATCS & ASSOCIATES

Practicing Company Secretaries
UDIN: F005749E000403333

	
								                          Tara Chand Sharma
										                [Partner]
Place	 :	 Jaipur	 FCS No.  5749
Date 	 :	 29.05.2023	 C P No.:  4078
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           ANNEXURE C OF THE BOARD REPORT 
Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred 
to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third 
proviso thereto

I Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

Sr. 
No

Particulars Mrs. Sarita Khaitan Mr. Ishan Khaitan Mr. Kahaan Khaitan Mrs. Aanchal 
Khaitan 

1 Name(s) of the 
related party 
and nature of 
relationship

Wife of Mr. Anil Khaitan (CMD) Son of Mr. 
Anil Khaitan                        
(CMD) 

Son of Mr. 
Anil Khaitan                               
(CMD) 

Daughter- In-Law 
of Mr. Anil Khaitan 
(CMD) 

2 Nature of contracts/
arrangements/  
transactions

Remuneration and Agreement 
of  Guest House for Company 
Purpose  

Remuneration Remuneration Remuneration 

3 Duration of the 
contracts/ arrange-
ments/transactions

Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing 

4 Salient terms of 
the contracts or 
arrangements 
or transactions 
including the value, 
if any:

1-Appointment as Chief 
Strategis Officer on 01.04.2011 
at a monthy remuneration of 
Rs 1,17625/- plus perquisities 
per month as applicable as 
per rules of the Company and 
ammended time to time. (2) 
Agreement of Guest House for 
the Company Purpose @ Rs. 1, 
12,100/- per month (Rs.1,12,100 
per month towards rent 95000 
towards Repair & Maintenance), 
the revision in  Maximum 
rent upto Rs. 2,50,000/- per 
month (both for Lease rent of 
Guest house and Maintenance 
Charge) approved  by Audit 
Committee in its meeting 
held on February 13, 2020.  
Execution of Agreement for 
Guest House for the Company 
purpose w.e.f. 30.06.2020 
for a period of 5 years at 
monthly rent of Maxium Rs. 
2,50,000/- (in supersession 
to all earlier Agreement of 
Guest House) approved by the 
Audit Committee and Board of 
Directors in its meeting held on

Appointment 
as  President 
Opretaion & 
Marketing on 
01.04.2010 
at a monthy 
remuneration 
of Rs 47650/-
(at present Rs. 
122000/-) plus 
perquisities 
per month as 
applicable as 
per rules of the 
Company and 
ammended time 
to time 

Appointment as 
Manager Business 
Process (at 
Present President 
Procurement) 
on 01.05.2013 
at a monthy 
remuneration of Rs 
23875/-  
(at present Rs. 
122000/-) plus 
perquisities per 
month as applicable 
as per rules of the 
Company and 
amended time to 
time 

Appointment as 
Manager Business 
Development  
on 01.04.2013 
at a monthy 
remuneration of 
Rs 23875/- plus 
perquisities per 
month as applicable 
as per rules of the 
Company and 
amended time to 
time 
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July 25, 2020. Further  revision 
in  Maximum rent upto Rs. 
4,75,000/- per month (both 
for Lease rent of Guest house 
and Maintenance Charge)  
w.e.f. 01.07.2022 for remaining 
period of the  lease deed 
entered for five years with 
effect from June 30, 2020 
approved  by Audit Committee 
and Board of Directors in its 
meeting held on May 06, 2022. 
Execution of Agreement for 
Guest House for the Company 
purpose w.e.f. 01.07.2022 for 
the remaining period of 5 years 
agreement executed w.e.f. 
30.06.2020 at monthly rent of 
Maxium Rs. 4,75,000/- (in super 
session to all earlier Agreement 
of Guest House) till 30.06.2025.

5 Date(s) of approval 
by the Board, if any

1.  06.08.2011                                                                                   
2. 11.02.2015                                                                                   
3. 13.02.2019(ACM)                                                                
4. 13.02.2020 (ACM)                                                                 
5. 25.07.2020 (BM)                                                                    
6. 06.05.2022 (ACM)                                                                
7. 06.05.2022 (BM)

29.05.2010 first 
approval and last 
ammended on 
11.05.2013

11.05.2013 first 
approval and last 
ammended on 
15.06.2021.

11.05.2013 

6 Amount paid as 
advances, if any:

NIL NIL NIL NIL

Note 
1 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions not at arm’s length basis: N.A

On behalf of the Board 

Anil Kumar Khaitan   
Chairman cum Managing Director 
Din-00759951

Place  :  New Delhi
Dated :  29.05.2023
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PART A  ANNEXURE D OF THE BOARD REPORT 

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ 
WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 
2014 (i) The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company 
for the financial year 2022-23, the percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and 
Company Secretary during the financial year 2022-23 are as under:

S. NO. Name of Director/KMP and 
Designation

Remuneration 
of Director/KMP 
for financial year 

2022-23 
(in Rupees)

% increase in 
Remuneration 

in the 
Financial Year 

2022-23

Ratio of 
remuneration of 

each Director, KMP to 
median remuneration 

of employees

1 Mr. Anil Khaitan  chairman cum 
Managing Director & CEO

2795926 Nil 9.01

2 Mr. Pawan Rathi, Chief Financial Officer 3687426 Nil 11.88

3 Mr. Santosh Kumar Sharma                                 
DGM Legal cum Company Secretary 

NA NA NA

4 Mr. Satyendu Pattnaik                                
DGM Legal cum Company Secretary 

NA NA NA

Note1
i.       For calculation of ratio of salary of Director and KMP with median salary of employees, Annual CTC was 

considered (In CTC Gratuity is also included and Car/Entertainment/Gas Reimbursement were excluded from 
CTC).

Note 2 
(i)    The Non-Executive Directors of the Company are entitled for sitting fee as per the statutory provisions of the 

comapnies act 2013. The details of sitting fees paid to Non-Executive Directors are provided in the Corporate 
Governance Report . The ratio of remuneration and percentage in  increase of remuneration for Non-Executive 
Directors is not applicable in our the above purpose.

(ii)     The median was calculated on the Annual CTC Basis. (In CTC Gratuity is also included,and  Car/Entertainment/
Gas Reimbursement were excluded).

(iii)  Mr. Santosh Kumar Sharma, DGM-Legal Cum Company Secretary and Mr. Satyendu Pattnaik, DGM-Legal 
& Company Secretary were employed for part of the year during the financial year 2022-23 and as such the 
percentage increase in remuneration as compared to previous financial year remuneration is not given being 
not comparable.

(iv)    The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year 2022-23 was Rs. 3,10,475.

(v)      The prcentage increase in the median remuneration of the employees in the Financial Year 2022-23 was  23.66%.

(vi)    There were 221 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2023.

(vii)  Average percentile increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in 
the last financial year i.e. 2022-23 was 3.39%, whereas there is no increase in the remuneration of managerial 
personnel for the same financial year.

(viii) The key parameters for the variable component of remuneration availed by the directors :- The 
remuneration was paid to the non-executive directors by way of sitting fees for attending the board meeting 
and committee meeting of the company. The boards of directors of the company are regularly  reviewing 
and evaluating the performance of the each Directors, Key Managerial personnel of the company as per the 
Nomination & Remuneration Policy of Company for the members of board and key managerial personnel and 
senior management personnel.

(ix)  It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the  Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and other Employees.
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Annexure ‘E to Board Report

1 Conservation of Energy

(a) Energy Conservation measures taken.
Energy Conservation continues to receive due emphasis and is systematically monitoreed. Special attention 
is given on creating awareness about conservation of energy in all areas of productivity.

(b) Additional Investment and proposal, if any, being implemented for the reduction of energy 
consumption.
The Company continues to explore measures which will help in conservation and saving of energy inclusing 
monitoring of consumptions and improved operational methods.

(c) Impact of measures at (a) & (b) above for reduction of energy consumption and consequent impact on 
the cost of production of goods.
The implemention of measures adopted for energy conservation has resulted in contaning energy cost.

2 Technology Absorption:

A Reasearch & development (R&D)
(a)  Specified area in which R&D carried out 

by the Company
Continuous efforts made to improve the process

(b)  Benefits derived as a result of the above R & D Improvement in quality and production efficiency
(c)   Future Plan of action Continuous efforts will be done to  

improve the process and productivity.
(d)   Expenditure in R & D

I)   Capital Debited to the respective heads of accounts
II)  Recurring
III) Total
IV) R&D expenditure as a % of total turnover

B Technology Absorption, Adaptation & Innovation :

(a)   Efforts, in brief, made towards Technology 
Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation

Not Applicable

(b)   Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts Not Applicable
(c)   In case of Imported Technology( Imported during 

the last five years) reckoned from the beginning 
of the financial year.

The Company has not purchased or 
got any technology from abroad
during the year. 

I ) Technology imported Not Applicable
II) Year of Import Not Applicable
III) Has the Technology fully been absorbed? Not Applicable
IV) If not fully absorbed area where this has not 

taken place, reasons thereof and future plan of 
action.

Not Applicable

3 Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo:

A Activities relaing to exports initiative taken to 
increase exports, development of new export market 
for products and services , and export plans.

Company continues to work to 
improve its exports and develop new 
market for increasing the exports 

B Total Foreign Exchange used and earned 2022-23 2021-22
(a)       Used Rs. in Lakhs 1808.29 2607.61
(b)       Earned Rs. in Lakhs 1558.96 2321.37
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SUNIL HEALTHCARE LIMITED
Regd. Office: 38E/252-A, Vijay Tower, Shahpurjat, New Delhi-110049

CIN-L24302DL1973PLC189662/Email;- info@sunilhealthcare.com/Webiste: www.sunilhealthcare.com
Tel;-+91-11-49435555/00, Fax; +91-11-43850087

	
ANNEXURE -F TO THE BOARD'S REPORT

Annual Report on CSR Activities

 [Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014] 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2023

1.	 Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:
           The main objective of the CSR policy is to lay down guidelines for the Company to make CSR a business process for 

sustainable development of the society at large. It aims to enhance and implement the society welfare measures 
by the Company in a well structural manner on short and long term basis with a vision of making SHL to act as 
Good Corporate Citizen. CSR is an evolving concept at SHL, it's been there since incorporation, we have promised 
to ourselves to take up the responsibility of ensuring a healthy ecosystem. SHL's CSR program is anchored on the 
continuing commitment to improve the quality of living conditions and opportunities for the differently abled 
without regard to their faith, origin or gender. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is termed as a way of 'giving 
back 'to the society through many different ways by positively impacting on their lives and environment. The 
Policy recognizes that corporate social responsibility is not merely compliance; it is a commitment to support 
initiatives that measurably improve the lives of underprivileged by one or more of the focus areas as notified 
under schedule VII of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 and Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy) Rules 2014. The CSR Policy is stated and disclosed on the website of the Company.	

2. 	 Composition of CSR Committee:- 
	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135(9) of Companies Act, 2013 duly amended by the Companies Amendment 

Act, 2020 made applicable w.e.f. January 22, 2021, the Company need not to have the Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee, where, the amount to be spent by a company under sub-section (5) does not exceed 
fifty lakh rupees, and the functions of such Committee provided under this section 135 shall, in such cases, all the 
functions of the committee be discharged by the Board of Directors of the Company. Since the commencement of 
the Companies Act, 2013, the Company was never required to spend Rs. 50 Lakhs or more towards CSR obligation. 
The Company in its Board meeting held on June 15, 2021 has dissolved the CSR Committee with immediate effect, 
and, all the functions of the Committee are being discharged by the Board of Directors of the Company w.e.f. June 
15, 2021.

	 Prior to dissolve of CSR Committee, the composition of CSR Committee were as Under:

Sl. No. Name of Director Designation/Nature of Directorship

1 Mr. Bejon Kumar Misra Chairman, Independent Director

2 Mr. Rakesh Mohan Member, Independent Director

3 Mr. (Amb.) Krishna Venkatachalam 
Rajan

Member, Non-executive Director

	 Secretary: The Company Secretary of the Company was acting as Secretary of the Committee.
	 Quorum:  1/3rd of total strength of the committee or two members, whichever is higher.
	 Terms of reference, powers, roles and responsibilities:  The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee’s terms 

of reference, powers, roles and responsibilities shall be as per provisions of the Section 135, read with rule made 
thereunder and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 or any amendment made there under, which may include 
the following:
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1.	 Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate the  
activities to be undertaken by the company as specified in Schedule VII of Companies Act 2013; 

2.	 Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities ,and 
3.	 Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the company from time to time. 

3.	 Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by 
the Board are disclosed on the website of the Company:

	 Composition of CSR Committee: Not Applicable 	
	 Web link for CSR Policy- https://www.sunilhealthcare.com/uploads/filemanager/3496CSRPolicy_13082018.pdf
	 Web link for CSR Project- https://www.sunilhealthcare.com/images/csr-fy-2022-23pdf 

4.	 Provide the executive summary along with web–links(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR projects 
carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility       Policy) 
Rules, 2014, if applicable 
	 Not applicable to the Company for the time being.

5.	 (a)    Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): Rs. 384.65 Lakhs
	 (b) 	 Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): Rs. 7.69 Lakhs
	 (c)	 Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years:  NIL
	 (d)	 Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any:  Rs. 24.00 lakhs 
	 (e)	 Total CSR obligation for the financial year (5b+5c-5d): Rs. (16.31) Lakhs

6.	 (a)	 Amount spent on CSR Projects (both ongoing and other than ongoing Project)-  Rs. 27.90 Lakhs
	 (b)	 Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL
	 (c)	 Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable
	 (d)	 Total amount spent for the Financial Year (6a+6b+6c) Rs. 27.90 Lakhs
	 (e)    CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:   

Total Amount Spent 
for the Financial Year.

(In Rs.)

Amount Unspent (In Rs.) NIL

Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per 

section 135(6)

Amount transferred to any fund specified 
under  Schedule VII as per second proviso to 

section 135(5)
Amount Date of 

transfer
Name of the

Fund
Amount Date of 

transfer
27,89,942.00 Not Applicable Not Applicable

	 (f)   Excess amount for set off, if any: 
Sl.

No.
Particular Amount 

(Rs. In Lahs)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) INR 

7.69 Lakhs less INR 24.00 Lakhs (amount required to be set off in FY 2022-23)
(16.31)

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year. 27.90
(iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)]. 44.21
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the 

previous Financial Years, if any.
0.00

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii) - (iv)]. 44.21
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7.	 Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years:  

Sl.
No.

Preceding 
Financial 

Year(s)

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 

CSR Account 
under 

section 
135(6)
(in Rs.)

Balance 
Amount in 

Unspent 
CSR Account 

under 
Section 
135(6)
(in Rs.)

Amount 
spent 
in the 

reporting 
financial 

year
(in Rs.)

Amount transferred 
to any fund specified 

under Schedule 
VII as per second 

proviso to Section 
135(6), if any

Amount 
remaining 

to be 
spent in 

succeeding 
Financial 

Years
(in Rs.)

Deficiency, 
if any

Amount
(in Rs.)

Date of 
Transfer

1 NIL NIL NIL NIL Not Applicable NIL NIL

i) 	 Total Amount unspent in FY 2020-21                                          INR 0.00 Lakhs
ii) 	 Total Amount unspent in FY 2019-20                                          INR 2.95 Lakhs*

    	 Note:             
	 *Unspent amount of Rs. 2.95 Lakhs was adjusted with CSR Expenditure in FY 2020-21, after adjustment no 

  Unspent Amount is there for FY 2019-20).

8.	 Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount 
spent in the Financial Year (Yes/No): No

	 If yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/acquired – Not Applicable

	 Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created through Corporate Social responsibility amount 
spent in the Financial Year: Not Applicable

Sl.
No.

Short Particulars 
of the property or 
asset(s) (including 
complete address 

and location of the 
property

Pincode 
of the 

property 
or asset(s)

Date of 
Creation

Amount 
of CSR 

Amount 
spent
(Rs. in 
lakhs)

Details of entity/ Authority/ 
beneficiary of the registered owner

CSR 
Registration 

Number, if 
applicable

Name Registered 
address

	 (All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, Municipal Office/
Municipal Corporation/Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the area of the immovable property as well 
as boundaries).	

9.	 Specify the reason(s) if the Company has failed to spend two percent of the average net profit as per Section 
135(5): Not Applicable.

For SUNIL HEALTHCARE LIMITED

Mr. Anil Kumar Khaitan
Chairman cum Managing Director Date : 29.05.2023
DIN-00759951 Place: New Delhi
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ANNEXURE - G

Independent Auditor’s Certificate on compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as per provisions 
of Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 as amended

The Members of Sunil Healthcare Ltd.
38E/252-A, Vijay Tower
Shahpurjat,
New Delhi – 110049

1.	 The Corporate Governance Report prepared by Sunil Healthcare Limited (hereinafter the “Company”), contains 
details as required by the provisions of Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“the Listing Regulations”) (‘Applicable criteria’) with 
respect to Corporate Governance for the year ended March 31, 2023. This certificate is required by the Company 
for annual submission to the Stock Exchange and to be sent to the Shareholders of the Company.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY

2.	 The preparation of the Corporate Governance Report is the responsibility of the management of the Company 
including the preparation and maintenance of all relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility 
also includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the Corporate Governance Report.

3.	 The management along with the Board of Directors of the Company are also responsible for ensuring that the 
Company complies with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations, issued 
by the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

4.	 Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Regulations, our responsibility is to express a reasonable assurance 
in the form of an opinion whether the Company has complied with the specific requirements of the Listing 
Regulations referred to in paragraph 3 above.

5.	 We conducted our examination of the Corporate Governance Report in accordance with the Guidance Note 
on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised) and the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate 
Governance, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). The Guidance Note on Reports 
or Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised) requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

6.	 We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality 
Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and 
Related Services Engagements.

OPINION

7.	 Based on the procedures performed by us and according to the information and explanations given to us, that 
we are of the opinion that the Company has complied in all material respect with the conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations, as applicable for the year ended March 31, 2023. 
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OTHER MATTERS AND RESTRICTION ON USE

8.	 This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

9.	 This certificate is addressed to and provided to the Members of the Company solely for the purpose of enabling 
it to comply with its obligations under the Listing Regulations with reference to compliance with the relevant 
regulations of Corporate Governance and should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. 
Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care or for any other purpose or to any other 
party to whom it is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing. We have no 
responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this certificate.

                                                                                                                                      

For  Singhi & Co.
                                                                                                                                  Chartered Accountants

                                                                                                      ICAI Firm Registration Number: 302049E

                                            Bimal Kumar Sipani
                                                               Partner

Place: NOIDA (Delhi-NCR)                            Membership Number: 088926
Date : May 29, 2023                           UDIN: 23088926BGXBCA6624
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SUNIL HEALTHCARE LIMITED
Regd. Off; - 38E/252-A, Vijay Tower, Shahpurjat, New Delhi-110049

Email: info@sunilhealthcare.com/ Website: www.sunilhealthcare.com
CIN-L24302DL1973PLC189662

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In compliance with Corporate Governance requirements as prescribed by SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure 
Requirement) Regulation, 2015, the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended 31st March, 
2023 is set out below for information to stakeholders and investors of the Company.

The Management of the Company believes that the great companies are built on the foundation of good governance 
practices. Corporate governance is all about effective management of relationship among constituents of the system, 
i.e. shareholders, management, employees, customers, vendors, regulatory authorities and the community at the 
large. 	

(1) 	 Company’s philosophy on code of Corporate Governance:

	 In the context of modern business environment where the stakeholders are scattered all over the Country, the 
Company feels that their participation and involvement in the affairs of the Company can be achieved only 
through professional approach and better corporate Governance. The Company’s philosophy of Corporate 
Governance is to ensure transparency in all dealing and maintain highest standard of professionalism, integrity, 
accountability, social responsibility, fairness, and business ethics. We consider ourselves as trustees of our 
shareholders and relentlessly attempt to maximize long-term shareholder value.

	 Your Company’s Corporate Governance philosophy is based on the following principles:

(1)	 Comply with all the applicable laws of the country.
(2)	 Have simple and transparent corporate structure driven by business needs.
(3)	 Management is the trustee of the shareholder’s capital.
(4)	 Be transparent and to maintain high degree of disclosure levels.

	 The Company’s Board and Senior Level Management comprise of individuals with rich experience and expertise 
across a range of disciplines.

	 Your Directors confirm the practice of good Corporate Governance codes by the Company in true spirit. The 
Board of Directors (‘the Board’) is responsible for and committed to sound principles of Corporate Governance 
in the Company. The Board plays a crucial role in overseeing how the management serves the short and long 
term interests of shareholders and other stakeholders. This belief is reflected in our governance practices, under 
which we strive to maintain an effective, informed and independent Board. We keep our governance practices 
under continuous review and benchmark ourselves to best practices across the globe and are pleased to present 
below the report on it. 

	 Disclosure of Information to Investors:

	 Your Company ensures the timely disclosure of all material information in compliance with applicable laws.

(2) 	 Role of the Company Secretary in overall governance process:

	 The Company Secretary plays a key role in ensuring that the Board (including committees thereof ) procedures 
are followed and regularly reviewed. The Company Secretary ensures that all relevant information, details and 
documents are made available to the Directors and senior management for effective decision-making at the 
meetings. The Company Secretary is primarily responsible to assist and advice the Board in the conduct of affairs 
of the Company, to ensure compliance with applicable statutory requirements, to provide guidance to directors 
and to facilitate convening of meetings. He interfaces between the management and regulatory authorities for 
governance matters.
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(3)	 Board of Directors:-

	 The Board of Director’s guide, direct and oversee the management and protect long term interests of stakeholders, 
employees and society at large. The Board also ensures compliance of the applicable provisions, code of ethical 
standards and accurate financial reporting.

A.	 The Board has an optimum combination of executive and non –executive directors including Independent 
Directors as per Regulation of 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015 as 
on 31st March, 2023. The composition of the Board represents an optimal mix of professionalism, knowledge 
and experience and enables the Board to discharge its responsibilities and provide effective leadership to 
the business.

 	 The composition of the Board are as under:-  

S. 
N.

Name of the 
Director

Category# No of 
share 

/% held 
in the 

Company

Attendance 
record

No. of other 
Directorship 

including 
Sunil 

Healthcare 
Limited ##

Name of 
other Listed 

Entity, where 
Directors and 

Nature of 
Directorship

Membership(s) 
of Committees 

of other 
Companies 

including Sunil 
Healthcare 
Limited  (a)

Chairman 
Ship  of

Committees 
of other 

Companies  
including  

Sunil 
Healthcare 
Limited  (a)

Board 
Meeting

Last 
AGM

1. Mr. Anil Kumar 
Khaitan

Promoter, ED 
(CMD), CEO

Equity 
Share: 
59,42,494 
of Rs. 
10/- each 
(57.95%)
Preference 
shares 
282500  
of Rs. 
100/- each 
(48.49%)

5 Yes 3 Not Applicable - -

2. Mr. Sanjay 
Kumar Kaushik                    

NED NIL 5  Yes 2 Not Applicable 2 -

3. Mr. Rakesh 
Mohan                               

NEID Nil 5    Yes 6 I) SKIL 
Infrastructure 
Limited as NEID
II) AKG Exim 
Limited, as NEID

3 2

4. Dr. Harish Pal 
Kumar

NEID NIL 5 Yes 2 Not Applicable 0  1

5. Mr. Krishna 
Venkatachalam 
Rajan 

NED Nil 5 No 3 Not Applicable 0 1

6. Mr. Bejon 
Kumar Misra

NEID Nil 5    Yes 4 Not applicable 1 0

7. Mrs. Mudita 
Chaturvedi

NEID Nil 5 Yes 2 Not applicable 0 0
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Notes:

a)	 Committee includes Audit Committee and Stakeholder Relationship Committee of the Company.

b)	 The number of Directorships, Committee Membership(s)/ Chairmanship(s) of all Directors is within 
respective limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

c)	 # The full form of abbreviation used in category, are as under:
AD- Additional Director
CMD- Chairman & Managing Director;
ED- Executive Director;
NED- Non-Executive Director;
NEID- Non-Executive Independent Director

d)	 ## including all public limited Companies, whether listed or not, private and foreign companies.

B.	 Term of reference to the Board of Directors: The Company places before the Board, all relevant and 
necessary information for seeking the necessary approvals and directions on the operation and plans of 
the Company. The Board periodically reviews items required to be placed before it. Normally, the relevant 
informations, required to be placed before the Board of Directors as per Regulation 17(7) read with Schedule 
II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015, are duly considered and 
taken on record/approved by the Board.

C.	 Board Independence: - Our definition of ‘Independence’ of Directors is derived from Regulation 16 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015 and Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Based on the confirmation / disclosures received from the Directors and on evaluation of the relationships 
disclosed, all Non-Executive Directors other than the Chairman are Independent in terms of Regulation 16 of 
SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015 and Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

D.	 Familiarization Programme: All newly inducted independent directors on the Board are familiarized  with 
the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, his role, rights and responsibilities 
through appropriate familiarization programme prepared and adopted by the Board.  The weblink of details of 
Familiarization is available on the website of the Company is https://www.sunilhealthcare.com/familarisation-
programme

E.	 Skill/Expertise/competence of Board of Directors:-The Board of Directors of the Company bring to the 
fore a vast range of skills and experience from various fields, functions and sectors, which enhance 
the governance framework and Board decision making process. The Board had identified the following 
skills/area of expertise/competencies required in the context of the Company’s business and its 
operations:

Area of expertise/
competencies identified

Particulars Name of Director’s, who fulfill the 
Skill sets

Corporate Governance Protection of interest of all stakeholders 
by understanding the importance of 
transparency and implementing the 
same through board process.

Mr. Anil Kumar Khaitan, Mr. Harish 
Pal Kumar, Mrs. Mudita Chaturvedi, 
Mr. K.V. Rajan, Mr. Rakesh Mohan, Mr. 
Bejon Misra, Mr. Sanjay Kaushik

Strategic planning, 
Business Development, 
Business operations. Sales 
and marketing

Expertise in framing strategy for 
growth of the company and having 
exposure in development of business 
relations, and management.

Mr. Anil Kumar Khaitan, Mr. Harish 
Pal Kumar, Mrs. Mudita Chaturvedi, 
Mr. K.V. Rajan, Mr. Rakesh Mohan, 
Mr. Bejon Misra, Mr. Sanjay Kaushik
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Global Prospective/Global 
Economics

Understanding global diverse 
business environment and regulatory 
framework.

Mr. Anil Kumar Khaitan, Mr. Harish 
Pal Kumar, Mr. K.V. Rajan, Mr. Rakesh 
Mohan, Mr. Bejon Misra

General Management, HR 
and Leadership

General know how of business 
management, talent management 
and development, workplace health & 
safety.

Mr. Anil Kumar Khaitan, Mr. Harish Pal 
Kumar, Mr. Rakesh Mohan, Mr. Bejon 
Misra

Accounting & financial 
expertise

Understanding of Financial 
Statements, Budgeting, treasury 
operations, Audit, capital allocation 
and fund raising.

Mr. Anil Kumar Khaitan, Mr. Harish 
Pal Kumar, Mr. Sanjay Kumar Kaushik, 
Mr. Rakesh Mohan

Pharmaceuticals, Science & 
Technology

Significant background and expertise 
in Pharmaceuticals sector, science and 
technology.

Mr. Anil Kumar Khaitan, Mr. Rakesh 
Mohan

Consumer related and CSR 
matters
	

Have understanding and importance 
of protecting and educating the 
consumers.
Giving back to the societies at large

Mr. Anil Kumar Khaitan and Mr. Bejon 
Misra

F.	 The Board of Directors of the Company met five times during the financial year 2022-23, on 06.05.2022, 
20.07.2022, 14.11.2022, 07.01.2023 and 14.02.2023, with a maximum gap of 120 days between the two 
meetings. The Meeting of Board of Directors are held through video conferencing mode in Financial Year 
2022-23.  The maximum gap between two Board Meetings was less than 120 days. The status on attendance 
of Directors in the meeting mentioned above in 3 (A).	

G.	 Board Performance Evaluation :-Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing 
Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015, the Board has carried out an annual performance 
evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its 
Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration and other committees as per the Board Evaluation policy, 
which is available at website of the company at web link https://www.sunilhealthcare.com/uploads/
filemanager/5816q-8.pdf . A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into consideration inputs 
received from the Directors, covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy of the 
composition of the Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties, 
obligations and governance. A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual 
Directors including the Chairman of the Board, who were evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement 
and contribution, independence of judgment, safeguarding the interest of the Company and its minority 
shareholders etc. The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire 
Board. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non Independent Directors was carried out by 
the Independent Directors who also reviewed the performance of the Secretarial Department. The Directors 
expressed their satisfaction with the outcome of the evaluation process.

H.	 None of the directors of your Company are inter-se related to each other.

I.	 None of the directors except Mr. Anil Kumar Khaitan, Chairman cum Managing Director of the Company has 
shareholding in the Company.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR MEETING 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulation, the Independent Directors are 
required to hold a separate meeting without the presence of Executive Directors or management personnel at 
least once in every year The Independent Directors met on 27.02.2023, inter alia, to discuss:
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1.	 Review the performance of Non-Independent Directors;

2.	 Review the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of the Executive 
and Non-Executive Directors.

3.	 Review the performance of the Board as whole;

4.	 Review the performance of the Committees of the Board

(4) 	 BOARD COMMITTEES

	 The Board Committees play a crucial role in the governance structure of the Company and have been constituted 
to deal with specific areas / activities which concern the Company and need a closer review. The Board Committees 
are set up under the formal approval of the Board to carry out clearly defined roles which are considered to be 
performed by members of the Board, as a part of good governance practice. The Board supervises the execution 
of its responsibilities by the Committees and is responsible for their action. The Board has currently established 
the following statutory and non-statutory Committees:-

I.	 Audit Committee.

II.	 Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

III.	 Stakeholder Relationship Committee

IV.	 Risk Management Committee 

(I)	 Audit Committee:-

	 Composition and Meeting

	 The Audit Committee has been duly re-constituted by the Board of Directors of the Company as 
per applicable legal and regulatory requirements. The Audit Committee met four times during the 
financial year 2022-23 through virtual mode on 06.05.2022, 20.07.2022, 14.11.2022 and 14.02.2023. The 
Composition of the Audit Committee of the Company as on March 31, 2023 and the attendance of each 
member/ director at said meeting are as under:

S. No Members of Audit Committee Category No. of 
Meeting 

Held

No of 
Meeting 
attended

1. Mr. Harish Pal Kumar Independent Non-Executive 
Director and 

Chairman of the Committee

4 4

2. Mr. Sanjay Kumar Kaushik Non-Executive Director 4 4

3. Mr. Bejon Kumar Misra Independent Non-Executive 
Director

4 4

Note:-

•	 Audit Committee as on 31st March 2023 consists of two Independent Non-Executive Directors and 
one Non-Executive Director.

Terms of reference, roles and responsibilities

	 The Audit Committee terms of reference, roles and responsibilities shall be as per Section 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 6 and 7 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) 
Rule, 2014 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 read with 
Schedule II of the SEBI (LODR) 2015 or any amendment therein, which, inter alia, may include the 
following:
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a)	 Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process and disclosure of financial information to 
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

b)	 Recommending to the Board, the appointment, reappointment and, if required, the replacement or 
removal of statutory auditors, including cost auditors, internal auditor and fixation of audit fees and 
other terms of appointment and approval for payment of any other services;

c)	 Reviewing with management the annual financial statement and auditor report thereon before 
submission to the Board for approval.

d)	 Reviewing with the management, external and internal auditors, and the adequacy of internal 
control systems.

e)	 Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, 
f )	 Reviewing the findings of any internal investigation by the internal auditors into matters where 

there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of material nature and 
reporting the matter to the Board.

g)	 Discussion with external auditors before the audit commences nature and scope of audit as well as 
has post audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

h)	 Reviewing the Company’s financial and risk management policies before submissions to the board 
for approval.

i)	 Reviewing and monitoring auditor independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit 
process

j)	 Approval of transaction with related parties
k)	 scrutiny of inter corporate loans and investments 
l)	 Valuations and evaluations  of internal financial control and risk management
m)	 Monitoring the end use of funds raised by through public offers and related matters
n)	 Valuation of undertaking or assets of the Company
o)	 To review the functioning of the Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower mechanism
p)	 Review of system of prohibition Insider Trading.
q)	 To investigate any activity within terms of reference
r)	 To seek information from employee
s)	 To obtain outside legal or other Professional advise
t)	 To secure attendance of outsider with relevant expertise, if it consider necessary.

(II)	 Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

	 Composition & Meeting 

	 The Nomination & Remuneration Committee met four times during the financial year 2022-23 on 
06.05.2022, 20.07.2022, 14.11.2022 and 14.02.2023 through virtual mode. The Composition of the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company as on March 31, 2023 and the attendance of 
each members at said meeting are as follows:

Sr. 
No

Members of Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee

Category No. of 
Meeting Held

No of Meeting 
attended

1 Mr. Rakesh Mohan Independent Non-Executive 
Director and 

 Chairman of the Committee

4 4

2 Mr. Sanjay Kumar Kaushik Non-Executive Director 4 4
3 Mr.(Dr.) Harish Pal Kumar Independent Non-Executive 

Director
4 4

Note:
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•	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee as on 31st March 2023 consists of two Independent Non-
Executive Directors and one Non-Executive Director.

Terms of reference, Powers, roles and responsibilities: The Nomination and Remuneration Committee’s 
terms of reference, powers, roles and responsibilities shall be as per Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rules made there under and Regulation 19 read with PARA A of PART D of Schedule II of the SEBI 
(LODR) 2015 or any amendment therein, which, inter alia, may include the followings:

1.	 Determine/ recommend the criteria for appointment of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent 
Directors to the Board;

2.	 Determine/ recommend the criteria for qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Director;

3.	 Identify candidates who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in the Management 
Committee and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal;

4.	 Review and determine all elements of remuneration of Executive Directors, key  managerial personnel 
and other sr. employees

5.	 Review and determine fixed component and performance linked incentives for Directors, along with the 
performance criteria;

6.	 Determine policy on service contracts, notice period, severance fees for Directors and Senior Management;

7.	 Formulate criteria and carry out evaluation of each Director’s performance and performance of the 
Board as a whole

 (III)	 Stakeholder Relationship Committee 

	 Composition 

	 The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee met once during the financial year 2022-23 on 06.05.2022 
through virtual mode. The Composition of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of the Company as on 
March 31, 2023 and the attendance of each members at said meeting are as follows:

Sr. 
No

Members of Stakeholder 
Relationship Committee

Category No. of Meeting 
Held

No of Meeting 
attended

1 Mr. (Amb.) Krishna 
Venkatachalam Rajan

Non-Executive Director and  
Chairman of the Committee

1 1

2 Mr. Rakesh Mohan Independent Non-Executive 
Director

1 1

4 Mr. Sanjay Kumar Kaushik Non-Executive Director 1 1

Terms of reference, Powers, roles and responsibilities: The Stakeholder Relationship Committee’s terms 
of reference, powers, roles and responsibilities shall be as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 
Regulation 20 read with Para B of Part D of Schedule II of the SEBI (LODR) 2015 or any amendment in 
respective therein, which may include as under:

(a)	 Consider and resolve the grievances of shareholders of the Company with respect to transfer of shares, 
non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividend issue of duplicate share / debenture 
certificates, etc;

(b)	 Ensure expeditious share transfer process in line with the proceedings of the Share Transfer Committee;

(c)	 Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

(d)	 Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services 
being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.
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(e)	 Evaluate performance and service standards of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company;

(f )	 Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for ensuring timely receipt of 
annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the company.

(g)	 Provide guidance and make recommendations to improve investor service levels for the investors.

Compliance Officer 

Mr. Satyendu Pattnaik, Company Secretary of the Company acts as Compliance Officer of the Company. 

The Compliance officer is responsible for Redressal of investor complaints.

Number of Shareholder Complaint received during the financial year 

During the financial year 2022-23, the following complaints were received through score portal and resolved 
to the satisfaction of shareholders. As on March 31, 2023, no complaints was pending. 

S. No. Complaint at Scores quarter wise Opening Received Resolved Closing (Pending)
1. Quarter 1 of financial year 2022-23 

(April 01 to June 30, 2022)
0 0 0 0

2. Quarter 2 of financial year 2022-23 
(July 01 to September 30, 2022)

0 0 0 0

3 Quarter 3 of financial year 2022-23 
(October 01 to December 31, 2022)

0 0 0 0

4 Quarter 4 of financial year 2022-23 
(January 01 to March 31, 2023)

0 0 0 0

 (IV)	 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

	 Constitute and Composition 

	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135(9) of Companies Act, 2013 duly amended by the Companies 
Amendment Act, 2020 made applicable w.e.f. January 22, 2021, the Company was not required to have 
the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, where, the amount to be spent by a company under sub-
section (5) does not exceed fifty lakh rupees, and the functions of such Committee provided under this 
section 135 shall, in such cases, all the functions of the committee be discharged by the Board of Directors 
of the Company.

	 Therefore, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 15.06.2021 has dissolved the CSR Committee w.e.f. 
15.06.2021 in the best interest of the Company, and since then all the functions of the Committee are being 
discharged by the Board of Directors of the Company. Once the CSR obligation would be Rs. 50 Lakhs or 
more in near future, the Company would constitute CSR Committee at that point of time.

	 The terms of reference of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee: The Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee’s terms of reference, powers, roles and responsibilities shall be as per provisions of the Section 
135, read with rule made thereunder and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 or any amendment made 
there under, which may include the following:

1.	 Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate 
the  activities to be undertaken by the company as specified in Schedule VII of Companies Act 2013; 

2.	 Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities ,and 

3.	 Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the company from time to time. 
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Now, the above functions of CSR Committee are being performed by Board of Directors. The Annual Report 
on CSR Activities is appended as Annexure F to this Board’s Report. The details of CSR Policy of the Company 
also available on the website of the Company at www.sunilhealthcare.com at web link https://www.
sunilhealthcare.com/uploads/filemanager/3496CSRPolicy_13082018.pdf

(V)	 RISK MANAMAGEMENT COMMITTEE

	 Constitution

	 As per the provision of Regulation 21 (5) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirement), Regulation, 
2015, the provision of aforesaid regulation of constitution of Risk Management Committee is not applicable 
on the Company but the Company has voluntarily constituted a Risk Management Committee In accordance 
with the erstwhile Listing Agreement. The details of the policy are available on the website of the Company 
at www.sunilhealthcare.com.  During the year no meeting of Risk Management committee was conducted.

	 The objectives and scope

1.	 Oversight of risk management performed by the executive management;

2.	 Reviewing the Risk Management Policy and framework in line with local legal requirements and SEBI 
guidelines;

3.	 Reviewing risks and evaluate treatment including initiating mitigation actions and ownership as per a 
pre-defined cycle;

4.	 Defining framework for identification, assessment, monitoring, and mitigation and reporting of risks.

Composition

The Risk Management Committee comprises of three members’ as on March 31, 2023 viz. Mr. Rakesh Mohan, 
Chairman, Mr. Sanjay Kaushik, Member, and Mr. Harish Pal Kumar, Member. 

During the year 2022-23, No meeting of Risk and Management Committee was held.

Terms of reference, powers, roles and responsibilities: The Risk Management Committee’s terms of 
reference, powers, roles and responsibilities shall be as per provisions of the Regulation 21 read the SEBI 
(LODR), 2015 and applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 or any amendment made there under.

(5)	 Remuneration of Directors

	 (i)	 Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors 

	 The Non-executive Directors of the Company are paid remuneration by way of sitting fees not exceeding the 
limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, only for attending the meetings of the Board of Directors and its 
Committees. Beside the sitting fees they are also entitled to reimbursement of out of pocket expenses. The Non-
executive Directors of the Company are not paid any other remuneration or commission. The sitting fees of the 
Non-executive Directors for attending meetings of Board of Directors and the Committees of Board of Directors 
may be modified or implemented from time to time only with the approval of the Board in due compliance 
of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014. At present Non-executive Director, whether Independent or Non-Independent are entitled 
to receive sitting fees of Rs. 8,500/- for attending per meeting of the Board or Committees after deducting TDS 
and exclusive of out of pocket expenses. The details of the Nomination and remuneration policy are available 
on the website of the Company i.e. www.sunilhealthcare.com at web link https://www.sunilhealthcare.com/
uploads/filemanager/8333NOMINATION%20AND%20REMUNERATION%20POLICY-130820018.pdf
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(ii) 	 Remuneration to Executive Directors, Key Managerial Personnel(s) (KMPs) & Senior Management 
Personnel (s) (SMPs):

	 The Company has a credible and transparent framework in determining and accounting for the remuneration 
of the Managing Director / Whole Time Directors (MD/WTDs), Key Managerial Personnel(s) (KMPs) and 
Senior Management Personnel(s) (SMPs). Their remuneration shall be governed by the external competitive 
environment, track record, potential, individual performance and performance of the Company as well 
as industry standards. The remuneration of MD/WTDs are determined and paid in due compliance of the 
provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The Board determine the remuneration of the other KMPs and the SMPs 
at the time of their appointment and any subsequent increments shall also be approved by the Managing 
Director of the Company as per the HR policy of the Company and ratified by the Board. Other terms like 
services contract, notice period and severances fees are decided as per the HR Policy of the Company. As a 
policy, the Executive Directors are neither paid sitting fee nor any commission. The details of the Nomination 
and remuneration policy are available on the website of the Company as mentioned above at web link of 
www.sunilhealthcare.com.

	 Pecuniary Relationship with Non-Executive Directors: None of the Non-executive Directors has any 
pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company except as per requirements of IND-AS24 are 
disclosed in the note no. 37 of notes to accounts annexed to the financial statements.

	 The details of remuneration paid to all the Executive, Non -Executive Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel during the year ended 31st March 2023 are given below:-

S. 
No

Name Salary & 
Allowances

Perquisites Sitting 
Fees*

Total

1. Mr. Anil Kumar Khaitan 
(Chairman cum Managing Director and CEO) 

27,95,926.00 0 --- 27,95,926.00

2. Mr. Sanjay Kumar Kaushik 
(Non-Independent Director)**

- - 1,19,000.00 1,19,000.00

3. Mr. Rakesh Mohan 
(Independent Director)

- - 85,000.00 85,000.00

4. Mr.(Dr.) Harish Pal Kumar
(Independent Director)

- - 1,10,500.00 1,10,500.00

5. Mr. (Amb.) K.V. Rajan 
(Non-Independent Director)

- - 51,000.00 51,000.00

6. Mr. Bejon Kumar Misra 
(Independent Director)

- - 76,500.00 76,500.00

7. Mrs. Mudita Chaturvedi 
(Independent Director)@

- - 42,500.00 42,500.00

8. Mr. Pawan Rathi 
(Chief Financial Officer)

36,87,426.00 0 - 36,87,426.00

9. Mr. Santosh Kumar Sharma (DGM- Legal & 
Company Secretary) resigned w.e.f. 10.08.2022

9,75,842.00 0 - 9,75,842.00

10. Mr. Satyendu Pattnaik (DGM- Legal 
& Company Secretary) appointed as 
Compliance Officer and as Company 
Secretary w.e.f. 12.08.2022 and 14.11.2022 
respectively.

12,30,550.00 0 - 12,30,550.00

Note:- 
*	 The sitting fees are subject to deduction of TDS @10% and exclusive of conveyance expenses.
** 	 The designation of Mr. Sanjay Kumar Kaushik was changed from Independent Director to Non-

Independent Director of the Company  w.e.f. 28.09.2022.
@ 	 Mrs. Mudita Chaturvedi was appointed as Independent Director of the Company w.e,f. 28.09.2022. Prior 

to that she was acting as Non-Independent Director of the Company.
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(6) 	General Body Meetings

1. 	 The Annual General Meeting of the Company (AGMs) has been held at following places in the last three years 
as under:-

Financial 
Year

Venue Day , Date & Time Details of Special Resolution Passed

48th AGM 
for FY 
2021-22

Registered office at 38E/252A, 
Vijay Tower, 3rd floor, Panchsheel 
Commercial Complex, Shahpur 
Jat, New Delhi-110049, 
(through Video Conferencing 
Mode)

Wednesday, 28th 
September, 2022 
at 12:30 p.m.

1. Change in the designation of Mr. 
Sanjay Kumar Kaushik (DIN: 00329013), 
from Independent Director to Non-
Executive Director of the Company, 
liable to retire by rotation w.e.f. 
September, 28, 2022.
2. Appointment of Mrs. Mudita 
Chaturvedi (DIN: 02384403), as Non-
Executive and Independent Director 
of the Company, not liable to retire by 
rotation for a term of Five consecutive 
years commencing from September, 
28, 2022 upto September, 27, 2027.

47th AGM 
for FY 
2020-21

Registered office at 38E/252A, 
Vijay Tower, 3rd floor, Panchsheel 
Commercial Complex, Shahpur 
Jat, New Delhi-110049, 
(through Video Conferencing 
Mode)

Tuesday, 28th 
September, 2021 
at 12:30 p.m.

Special Resolution for re-appointment 
of Mr. Rakesh Mohan (DIN:07352915) 
as an Independent Director for second 
term of five years starting from 
November 11, 2021 to November 10, 
2026 was passed.

46th AGM 
held for 
FY 2019-
20

Registered office at 38E/252A, 
Vijay Tower, 3rd floor, Panchsheel 
Commercial Complex, Shahpur 
Jat, New Delhi-110049, 
(through Video Conferencing 
Mode)

Monday, the 28th 
September, 2020 
at 12:30 P.M./IST

No Special Resolution was passed.

2.  	 There are no such special resolution passed in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company (EGMs) 
during last three financial years.

3. 	 Resolution passed through postal ballot during the Financial Year 2022-23

	 During the financial year 2022-23, Company has taken consent/approval of the Members by way of Special 
resolution passed through Postal Ballot Notice dated May 06, 2022, by way of remote e-Voting process in 
compliance with the provisions of Section 108, 110 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with Rule 20 and 22 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 
(“Rules”) (including any amendment(s), statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof ), Secretarial 
Standard-2 on General Meetings (“SS-2”) issued by the Institute of the Company Secretaries of India, Regulation 
44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) 
including any statutory modification(s), clarification(s), substitution(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time 
being in force and guidelines prescribed by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) for holding general 
meetings/conducting postal ballot process through e-voting vide General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated 8th 
April, 2020, 17/2020 dated 13th April, 2020, 22/2020 dated 15th June, 2020, 33/2020 dated 28th September, 
2020, 39/2020 dated 31st December, 2020, 10/2021 dated 23rd June, 2021 , 20/2021 dated 8th December, 
2021 and 3/2022 dated May 05, 2022 (collectively referred to as the “MCA Circulars”) and Circular Nos. SEBI/
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HO/CFD/ CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 and SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 
15, 2021 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI Circulars’), and other applicable laws, 
rules and regulations, if any for Re-appointment and payment of remuneration to Shri Anil Kumar Khaitan 
(DIN:-00759951) as Chairman & Managing Director of the Company for a period of five years with effect 
from 01.04.2022 to 31.03.2027 at a remuneration to be paid to him for period of 3 years with effect from 
his reappointment, 01.04.2022 to 31.03.2025. The results were announced at the Registered Office of the 
Company on June 20, 2022.

	 Summary of the Voting Results was as under:

Description No. of valid vote cast Percentage of vote cast

Total number of votes cast in favour of the resolution 2071495 99.9857

Total number of votes cast against the resolution 297 0.0143

	 The above Special resolution was passed with the requisite majority. CS Tara Chand Sharma, Proprietor, M/s. 
Jain Sharma & Associates, Company Secretaries (FCS No.: 5749, COP 4078) was appointed by the Board of 
Directors as the Scruitiniser for conducting the Postal Ballot exercises for the aforesaid matter.

4. 	 In the ensuing Annual General Meeting, none of the businesses proposed to be transacted requires passing 
a Special Resolution.

(7) 	 Means of Communication

	Company website: Pursuant to regulation 46 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company’s website 
contains a separate dedicated section “INVESTORS RELATIONS” where information sought by shareholders is 
available. The Annual report of the Company and quarterly / annually results of the Company apart from the 
details about the Company, Board of directors and Management, are also available on the website in a user 
friendly and downloadable form at https://www.sunilhealthcare.com/investor-relation/

	The quarterly unaudited results and the annual audited financial results are published in prominent daily 
Newspaper ‘The Pioneer’ in English, a leading National newspaper and in “The Pioneer” in Hindi, a regional 
newspaper as per requirement of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 duly amended from time to time.

	SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES): The investor complaints are processed in a centralized 
web-based complaints redress system. The salient features of this system are: Centralized database of all 
complaints, online upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by concerned companies and online viewing by 
investors of actions taken on the complaint and its current status.

	Presentation made to Institutional Investor or to the analysts: - During the Financial Year 2022-23, No such 
presentation made to Institutional Investor or to the Analysts. However, for past years such presentations 
and other disclosures which are required to be disseminated on the Company’s website under the Listing 
Regulations have been uploaded on the website of the Company at https://www.sunilhealthcare.com/
investor-relation/.

	Uploading on BSE Listing Center and CSE: The quarterly and annually results, quarterly and annually 
compliances and all other corporate communications to the Stock Exchanges are filed electronically on BSE 
Listing Centre for BSE and CSE listing compliance for Calcutta Stock Exchange. 

	Annual Report: The Annual Report containing, inter-alia, Notice of Annual General Meeting, the audited 
financial statement (standalone & consolidated), Statutory Auditors report, Board Report alongwith 
all Annexures and other important information is circulated to shareholders and other stakeholders 
and is also available on the Company’s website https://www.sunilhealthcare.com/annual-reports
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(8) 	 General Shareholder’s Information

(a)	 Annual General Meeting :- 

	 Day, Date, Time and Venue : The 49th Annual General meeting will be held on or before September 30, 
2023. The announcement on exact day, date, time and venue will be made after approval of the Board in its 
meeting.

(b)	 Financial Calendar

(i) 	Financial Calendar:- (Actual)

Financial Year	 :	 1st April, 2022 to 31st March, 2023

1st Quarterly Results	 :  Results were published on July 20, 2022

2nd Quarterly Results	 :  Results were published on November 14, 2022

3rd Quarterly Results	 : 	Results were published on February 14, 2023

4th Quarterly Results	 : 	Results will be published after Board meeting for the 04th Quarter on 29.05.2023

(ii) 	Financial Calendar:- (Tentative)

	 Financial Year 	 : 	1st April, 2023 to 31st March, 2024

	 1st Quarterly Results	 : 	2nd week of August, 2023

	 2nd Quarterly Results	 : 	2nd week of November, 2023

	 3rd Quarterly Results	 : 	2nd week of February, 2024

	 4th Quarterly Results	 : 	4th week of May, 2024

(c)	 Dividend payment date :  The Company did not declare any dividend.   

(d)	 Book Closure Date: The announcement of book closure date shall be made after approval of the 
board and shall be published in Newspaper and made available to the stock exchange and at website 
of the company.		     

(e)	 Listing of Equity Shares on stock exchanges: 

	 Bombay Stock Exchange: -       Floor 25, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001.

	 Calcutta Stock Exchange: -       7, Lyons Rang, Kolkata- 700 001

(f)	 Scrip Code:   537253 (SUNLOC) at BSE Limited

(g)	 Listing and Custodian Fees:  Listing fees for financial year 2023- and Annual Custodian fees for the financial 
year 2023-24 has been paid within due date.

(h)	 There are no outstanding GDR’s/ ADR’s /Warrants or any Convertible instruments which would have any 
impact on the Equity. 
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(i)	 Market Price Data (BSE): - High & Low during each month in the financial year 2022-23 are as under:-

Month High Price Low Price Total Turnover 
(Rs.)

Apr-22 74.90 63 34,74,698

May-22 89.40 63.90 2,72,49,817

Jun-22 92.90 68.05 1,01,56,040

Jul-22 102.55 65.75 1,83,08,959

Aug-22 152.80 95.50 6,43,10,725

Sep-22 172.70 119.80 6,52,39,870

Oct-22 138.30 107.50 1,77,64,587

Nov-22 123.70 82.70 2,93,35,978

Dec-22 92.15 76.10 1,27,80,889

Jan-23 91.90 73.70 1,36,62,193

Feb-23 80.00 54.00 1,41,20,377

Mar-23 64.55 47.37 79,08,871

(j)	 Stock Performance: The performance of your Company’s shares relative to the S&P BSE Sensitive Index is 
given in the chart below:

Month April, 22 May, 22 June, 22 July, 22 Aug., 22 Sep., 22 Oct., 22 Nov., 22 Dec., 22 Jan., 23 Feb., 23 Mar., 23

High 74.90 89.40 92.90 102.55 152.80 172.70 138.30 123.70 92.15 91.90 80.90 64.55

Sensex 60845 57184 56433 57619 60411 60676 60787 63303 63583 61344 61682 60498

Note: The above chart depicts comparison of monthly high Sensex and SHL’s Share price (BSE).
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(k)	 Distribution of Shareholding and Shareholding Pattern

	 Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March, 2023 based upon consolidated PAN

No. of Shares Range No. of 
Shareholders

% of 
Shareholders

Number of 
Shares Held

% of 
Shareholding

1   to  500 6599 92.80 659557 6.43

501   to  1000 240 3.38 186528 1.82

1001   to 2000 148 2.08 222407 2.17

2001   to  3000 47 0.66 117404 1.14

3001   to  4000 16 0.23 54817 0.53

4001   to  5000 11 0.15 49527 0.48

5001   to 10000 26 0.37 190137 1.85

10001   and  Above 24 0.34 8774373 85.56

 T O T A L 7111 100.00 10254750 100.00

	 Shareholding Pattern (EQUITY) as on 31st March, 2023

Categories No. of 
Shareholders

% of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares 
Held

% of 
Shareholding

Promoters/ Directors & their relatives 
including associates Companies and 
Person acting in concert.

3 0.04 7540305 73.53

Banks/Financial Institutions/ Insurance 
Companies/Mutual Funds etc. 7 0.10 10476 0.10

NRI’s 47 0.66 19554 0.19
Other Corporate Body

46 0.65 777662 7.58

Clearing Member 4 0.06 7770 0.08
HUF 85 1.19 106358 1.04
Indian Public 6919 97.30 17,92,625 17.48
Total 7111 100.00 10254750 100.00

	 Shareholding Pattern (PREFERENCE SHARE-Unlisted) as on 31st March, 2023

Category of Shareholder No. of 
Shareholders 
(Preference)

% of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held 
(Preference share 

@ Rs. 100 each)

% of 
Shareholding 

(Equity)

(A) Promoter & promoter group

     1. Magnum Computers Pvt. Ltd. 1 50 300000 51.51

     2. Anil Kumar Khaitan 1 50 282500 48.49

     Total 2 100 582500 100

(l)	 Registrar & Transfer Agent: -	 M/s Alankit Assignment Limited at “4E/2, Alankit House, Jhandewalan 
Extension, New Delhi 110055”, Contact no. 91-11-42541960 email id: rta@alankit.com, lalit@alankit.com,  
Fax: 91- 11 4254 1201, 91-11 2355 2001, www.alankit.com/info@alankit.com.
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(m)	  Share Transfer System

	 Transfer of share in Physical mode is not allowed. Transfer of shares / debentures are processed and registered 
within the stipulated time in demat mode only provided all the documents are valid and complete in all 
respect. The matter is reviewed by the Board in its quarterly meetings. The Company has appointed M/s 
Alankit Assignment Limited as its Registrar & Share Transfer Agent for Demat segment of equity shares.

(n)	 Dematerialization of Shares : - 	 9806206 equity shares of the Company are held in Demat form as 
on 31st March 2023 with NSDL /CDSL

(o)	 ISIN NO: -	 INE 671C01016

(p)	 Corporate Identity Number (CIN): -	 L24302DL1973PLC189662

(q)	 Compliance officer: -	 Mr. Satyendu Pattnaik- DGM Legal cum Company Secretary, F7736, 
email: cs@sunilhealthcare.com, Phone no. 011-49435555

(r)	 Plant & Works Location: -     	 17/18 Old Industrial Area, Alwar-301001, Rajasthan 

(s)	 Address for Correspondence:-

Works	 : - 	 17/18 Old Industrial Area, Alwar-301001, Rajasthan                           

Regd off	 : - 	 38E/252A, Vijay Tower, Shahpurjat, New Delhi- 110049

R & T Agent	: - 	 Alankit Assignments Limited -RTA Division, Alankit House 4E/2 
Jhandelwalan Extension New Delhi -110055,  Tel: 91-11 42541960  
Fax: 91- 11 4254 1201, 91-11 2355 2001, 
www.alankit.com/info@alankit.com

(t) 	 Credit Rating: The details of credit rating assigned by CARE Ratings Limited, credit rating agency 
during the financial year 2022-23 are as under:

S.No. Facilities/instruments Amount (Rs. Crores) Rating Rating Action
1. Long-term Bank facilities 32.68

(enhanced from 31.28)
 CARE BBB; Stable 
(Triple B; Outlook: Stable) 

Revised from 
CARE BBB-; Stable 
(Triple B Minus; 
Outlook: Stable)

2. Short- term Bank facilities 14.85  CARE A3+ (A Three Plus)  Revised from 
CARE A3 (A Three)

3. Short term Bank facilities 0.00 - Withdrawn
Total facilities 47.53 ( Rupees forty 

seven crores and fifty 
three lakhs only)

Note:
•	 During the financial year 2022-23, the company did not issue any securities, deposit, and commercial 

papers etc. which require credit rating by credit rating agency.

(8) 	 Disclosures 

a)	 Materially Significant Related Party Transactions: During the year under review, no materially significant 
related party transactions was entered by the Company with any related party. 
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b)	 No penalties have been imposed or strictures have been issued by SEBI or any other Stock Exchange or any 
other Statutory Authorities on matters related to capital market.

c)	 Whistle Blower Policy/ whistle Mechanism: In line with the Companies Act, 2013, erstwhile Listing 
Agreement and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company has formulated Vigil Mechanism/Whistle 
Blower Policy to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected incidents of fraud or violation 
of Code of Conduct, that could adversely impact the Company’s operations, business performance and/ or 
reputation, in a secure and confidential manner.  The said policy provides for adequate safeguard against 
victimization of directors/employees who avail of such mechanism and provides access to the Chairman 
of the Audit Committee, in exceptional cases. It is affirmed that no person has been denied access to the 
Audit Committee. The details of Whistle Blower Policy are available on the website of the company at www.
sunilhealthcare.com and at web link https://www.sunilhealthcare.com/uploads/filemanager/7626q-1.pdf

d)	 During the Financial Year 2022-23, the Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of SEBI 
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015.

e)	 Determination of Material subsidiary Policy: - 

	 During the year under review, the Company does not have material subsidiary as per the criteria specified 
in Regulation 24 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. However, the Company has adopted a policy on 
material subsidiaries, which is in accordance with the definition of ‘material subsidiary’ as contained in 
Regulation 16(1)(c) of the Listing Regulations and the same is uploaded on the website of the Company i.e. 
www.sunilhealthcare.com, which can be accessed at web link https://www.sunilhealthcare.com/uploads/
filemanager/9533q-7.pdf.

f)	 Policy on dealing with related party transaction: The Company has framed Related Party 
Transaction policy, which can be accessed at weblink https://www.sunilhealthcare.com/uploads/
filemanager/2802Related%20Party%20Transaction%20Policy_30052019.pdf

g)	 Certificate on Non-Disqualification of Director: The Company has received a certificate from Practicing 
Company Secretaries that none of the Directors of the company are disqualified for continuing as Director 
in financial year 2022-23, and the same is enclosed as Annexure – H

h)	 Fees paid to Statutory Auditors: The details of fees for all services paid by the company and its 
subsidiaries, on consolidated basis in Financial year 2022-23, to the statutory auditors are given  as 
under:

S. No. Name of Entity Relationship Details of Services INR (Rs.)

1. Sunil Healthcare Limited - Statutory Audit fees 300000.00

2. Sunil Healthcare Limited - Tax Audit fees 125000.00

3. Sunil Healthcare Limited - Limited Review Report 
(Quarterly)

150000.00

4. Sunil Healthcare Limited - Certification and others fees 237000.00

5. Sunil Healthcare Limited - Consolidation 70000.00

6. Sunil Healthcare Limited - Company Law matters 40000.00

Total 922000.00
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i)	 Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013:-

	 The company has in place a policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at workplace. During the year ended 
on December 31, 2022, the company did not receive any complaint of the Sexual Harassment. For further 
details eg. Composition of Internal Complaint Committee and others, kindly refer to the Board’s Report 
forming part of this Annual Report.

j)	 CEO and CFO Certification: - The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company 
gave annual certification on the financial reporting and internal control to the Board in pursuant to 
regulation 17 (8) of  SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015 and the same is 
published in this report as Annexure- I. 

k)	 Code for Prevention of Insider Trading: -The Company has adopted a code of conduct to regulate, 
monitor and report trading by insiders for prevention of Insider Trading in the shares of the Company. The 
code, inter-alia, prohibits purchase / sale of shares of the Company by Directors and designated employees 
while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company and during the 
period when the Trading Window is closed.

l)	 Disclosure of Non-Compliance:-There were no non-compliances by the Company and no instances of 
penalties and strictures imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other statutory 
authority on any matter related to the capital market during the last three years except the following:

	 Fine imposed by BSE Ltd. due to delay of 9 days in submission of Related Party Transaction Report for the 1st 
Half Year ended on September 30, 2022 of financial year 2022-23 inadvertently, was paid by the Company. 
However, application/representation has been filed by the Company for waiving off of the said penalty by 
BSE Ltd. The said application /representation is pending with BSE for their disposal.

m)	 Code of Conduct: In compliance with regulation 26 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure 
Requirement) Regulation, 2015 and Companies Act 2013, the Company has in place a comprehensive Code 
of Conduct (the Code) applicable to all the employees and Non-executive Directors including Independent 
Directors. The Code is applicable to such extent as may be applicable to them depending on their roles 
and responsibilities. The Code gives guidance and support needed for ethical conduct of business and 
compliance of law. The Code reflects the values of the Company viz. - Customer Value, Ownership Mind-set, 
Respect, Integrity, One Team and Excellence. A copy of the Code has been put on the Company’s website at  
https://www.sunilhealthcare.com/code-of-conductt.

	 All the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with Code of Conduct 
of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2023. A declaration to this effect signed by Managing 
Director forms part of this Report.

n)	 Prevention of Insider Trading: In terms of the provisions of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation 
2015, effective from 15.05.2015, the Board of Directors of the Company has adopted the Code of Practices 
and Procedure and   Code of Conduct for fair disclosure of unpublished price sensitive information. The 
object of this code is to protect the interest of the shareholders at large, to prevent misuse of any price 
sensitive information and to prevent ant insider trading activity by dealing in shares of the Company by 
the Directors, designated employees and other employees of the Company. The Board is responsible for 
implementation of the Code. All Board Directors and the designated and other employees have confirmed 
compliance with the Code. This code is strictly adhere to. The Insider Code is available on the companies’ 
website at https://www.sunilhealthcare.com/code-of-conductt
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o)	 Policies :- The Company had made the following policies in addition to that which are mentioned in 
this report as per the requirement of the Companies Act-2013, SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure 
Requirement) Regulation, 2015, and erstwhile Listing Agreement :

a)	 Prevention of Sexual Harassment of the Employee at Work Place Policy, a web link  at www.
sunilhealthcare.com and weblink can be accessed at https://www.sunilhealthcare.com/uploads/
filemanager/2884PreventionOf%20SEXUAL%20HARRASMENT%20POLICY02112018%20(1).
pdf

b)	 Preservation and Archival of Documents Policy, which can be accessed at web link www.
sunilhealthcare.com and weblink can be accessed at https://www.sunilhealthcare.com/
uploads/filemanager/6316shl-preservation-policy_compressed.pdf

c)	 Policy for determination of material subsidiaries can be accessed at web link https://www.
sunilhealthcare.com/uploads/filemanager/9533q-7.pdf

d)	 Board Evaluation policy, which can be accessed at https://www.sunilhealthcare.com/uploads/
filemanager/5816q-8.pdf

e)	 Related Party Transaction policy, which can be accessed at weblink https://www.sunilhealthcare.
com/uploads/filemanager/2802Related%20Party%20Transaction%20Policy_30052019.pdf

f )	 Policy on determination and Disclosure of Material Events/Informations, which can be accessed 
at https://www.sunilhealthcare.com/uploads/filemanager/593final-policy.pdf.

p)	 Disclosure On Website :- Following information has been disseminated on the website of the 
Company at www.sunilhealthcare.com:-

	i.	 Details of business of the Company

	ii.	 Terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors

	iii.	 Composition of various Committees of Board of Directors

	iv.	 Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel

	v.	 Details of establishment of vigil mechanism/ Whistle Blower policy

	vi.	 Criteria of making payments to Non-Executive Directors (Mentioned  in the Annual Report)  

	vii.	 Policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions

	viii.	 Policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries

	ix.	 Details of familiarization programmes imparted to Independent Directors

	x.	 Contact information of the designated officials, who are responsible for handling investor 
grievances.

	xi.	 Details of Grievance Redressal officer and email address.

	xii.	 Financial informations eg. Notice of board meeting, financial results, outcome of the board 
meeting and complete Annual report

	xiii.	 Shareholding pattern

	xiv.	 Advertisements as per Regulation 47(1)

	xv.	 Credit Rating or revision in credit rating obtained
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	xvi.	 Separate audited financial statements of each subsidiary of the listed entity in respect of  a 
relevant financial year

	xvii.	 Company has provided information under separate section on its website as per Regulation 
46(2)

	xviii.	 Policy for determination of materiality of events under Regulation 30

	xix.	 Board Evaluation policy

(8)	 Compliance

	 The Company has obtained a Certificate from its Statutory Auditors regarding compliance of the conditions of 
Corporate governance for the year ended 31.03.2023 as required by Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligation & 
Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015, Is annexed with Annexure H with the Board’s Report and forms a part 
of the Annual Report, The said certificate is sent to the Members and Stock Exchanges along with this Annual 
Report of the Company.

(9)	 Non-mandatory requirements prescribed in SEBI (LORD) Regulations,2015:

	 The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements of Regulation SEBI (LORD) Regulations, 2015. The 
Company has also adopted following non-mandatory requirements:

1.	 Reporting of Internal Auditor

	 The Internal Auditor is directly reporting to members of the Audit Committee in respective Audit Committee 
Meeting.

On Behalf of the Board					       Reg. Office: 
  38E/252A, Vijay Tower, Shahpurjat, New Delhi-110049

Anil Kumar Khaitan   					       CIN No: L24302DL1973PLC189662
Chairman cum Managing Director & CEO			     Phone No: +91-11-49435555/00 Fax no 011-43850087
DIN-00759951 						        Email ID: info@sunilhealthcare.com 	
Place –New Delhi 					        Website: www.sunilhealthcare.com
Dated- 29th May , 2023
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SUNIL HEALTHCARE LIMITED
Regd. Office: 38E/252-A, Vijay Tower, Shahpurjat, New Delhi-110049

CIN-L24302DL1973PLC189662
Email: info@sunilhealthcare.com  Webiste: www.sunilhealthcare.com

Tel;-+91-11-49435555/00   Fax; +91-11-43850087

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS & ANALYSIS REPORT:

1.	 OVERVIEW: 

	 Sunil Healthcare limited, having plant at Alwar; Rajasthan for manufacture of Empty Hard Gelatin capsules 
shell and HPMC Capsules shell. The company has commenced its manufacturing operation in the year 1976 
with installed capacity of 200 million Hard Gelatin Capsule Shell, with gradual expansion, in the financial year 
2017-18, the total installed capacity is raised 13 billion capsules p.a., In the first quarter of Financial year 2021-
22, the Company increased its production capacity to 13.80 billion capsules p.a. and in 2nd quarter the installed 
capacity was increased to 15 billion capsules p.a. from 13.80 billion capsules p.a.

	 Your Company has navigated through Challenging Industrial landscape over the past few years and through 
several Operational Excellence initiatives, has strived towards increasing its market share in India and Overseas. 

	 We remain hopeful of improving performance in the coming years.

	 The world has adapted uncertainty that has arisen out due to spread of various waves of the pandemic. The 
Pharmaceutical Industry has been forefront in the fight against the Covid-19.

	 The growth in GDP during 2022-23 is estimated at a moderate rate of 7.0 % only as compared to robust GDP 
growth of 8.7% in 2021-22.

	 Amidst several challenges like inclement Raw material pricing, coupled with demand side uncertainity is a 
deterrent on the earnings of the Company, however, the company has taken various steps to curb the cost and 
make its product more qualitative, affordable and competitive.

2.	 INDUSTRY OUTLOOK:

	 The product of the Company Hard Capsule Shell is used by Pharmaceutical and Food supplement Companies 
as a container for administering medicines and food supplements. Therefore, the growth of the industry is 
dependent on the growth of pharmaceutical and food supplement companies domestically and globally.

	 As per estimates the Pharma industry currently employs about 5.5-5.7 lakh people. In spite of prevailing 
challenges in the Indian pharma sector, 58,000 additional job opportunities are likely to be created as the 
industry is expected to grow up to 45 per cent by 2025.

	 The Pharmaceutical industry in India is the third largest in the world in terms of volume and 14th largest in 
terms of value. The Pharma sector currently contributes to around 1.72% of the country’s GDP.

	 The pharmaceutical industry in India is expected to reach $65 Bn by 2024 and to $130 Bn by 2030. The Huge 
opportunity for jobs in pharma sector is visible as Indian Pharma Sector is expected to grow up to 45% by end of 
year 2025. The pharmaceutical exports from the country have seen a growth of 3.25% per cent at $25.39 billion 
during the year 2022-23, as compared to $24.59 billion in the previous fiscal year. Pharmaceutical exports include 
bulk drugs, intermediates, drug formulations, biologicals, Ayush & herbal products, surgical and Vaccines.

	 India is benefited with blockbuster drugs going off patent and exclusive marketing right which aided the growth 
for Indian Export formulation period during 2011-12 to 2015-16, however due to wholesale consolidation in US 
market and rising competition, it had impacted substantially the formulation export players in the fiscal year 
2017 and 2018, leading to a flat growth rate during the fiscal year 2018.
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	 But it was no surprise that in the calendar year 2022, the Indian companies again dominated the ANDA approvals, 
with 355 or 48 per cent of total ANDA approvals, further consolidating their share from 42 per cent (267 approvals) 
from last year. This represents a 33 per cent growth of ANDA approvals for Indian companies versus 2021. India 
was followed by the US, China, Europe, and Israel, in that order, in the number of ANDA approvals. 

	 India is the largest provider of generic drugs globally. Indian pharmaceutical sector supplies over 50 percent of 
global demand for various vaccines, 40 percent of generic demand in the US and 25 percent of all medicine in 
the UK. 

	 India’s biotechnology industry comprises biopharmaceuticals, bio-services, bio-agriculture, bio-industry, and 
bioinformatics. The Indian biotechnology industry was valued at US$ 70.2 billion in 2020 and is expected to reach 
US$ 150 billion by 2025.

	 With a highly skilled workforce, technological advancements and Sales affected by the pandemic normalizing, 
Indian pharma industry is expected to grow at 11 per cent for next two years. The Huge opportunity for jobs in 
pharma sector is visible as Indian Pharma Sector is expected to grow up to 45% by end of year 2025. The exports 
from India stood at US$ $24.59 billion in FY22 and $25.39 billion in FY 2023.

	 Globally as well as in India, the pharmaceutical industry is rapidly undergoing changes. The Indian pharmaceuticals 
market is the third largest in terms of volume and fourteen largest in terms of value. India has the second-
highest number of US FDA approved plants outside the US.  India enjoys an important position in the global 
pharmaceuticals sector.

	 Installed capacity of Empty Hard Gelatin Capsule in India is 100 billion capsule p.a.

	 In India, manufacturing cost is very much competitive as compared to western countries Pharmaceutical Industry 
i.e. lower than 33% as compared to US. The advantage to Indian Pharmaceutical Industry is shown as under with 
the help of chart:

	 The country also has a large pool of scientists and engineers who have the potential to steer the industry ahead 
to an even higher level. Presently over 80 per cent of the antiretroviral drugs used globally to combat AIDS 
(Acquired Immuno Deficiency Syndrome) are supplied by Indian pharmaceutical firms. 

	 The UN-backed Medicines Patent Pool (MPP) exists to help people in low- and middle-income countries (LMICs) 
live longer and healthier lives. This being done by driving down the costs of vital medicines and technology 



62

SUNIL HEALTHCARE LIMITED

through licensing and technology transfer, and working closely with others in public health to ensure better 
access to the products and technologies that people in LMICs need. To date MPP has signed 34 licences for 
different health technologies, established partnership with 58 manufacturing partners across 16 countries and 25 
products have developed or supplied by MPP licences, facilitated the access to 30 billion doses of treatments. MPP 
has the strategy for 2023-25, wherein (i) 10 new licences established (concluded), (ii) 5 new products developed 
by licencess and (iii) 10 vaccine manufacturers have received an initial mRNA technology transfer package. By 
2025, 30 Million people will be accessing MPP-licensed products each year up from 15 million annually. MPP 
has also signed various sub-licences with Aurobindo, Cipla, Desano, Emcure, Hetero Labs and Laurus Labs, etc. 
allowing them to make generic anti-AIDS medicine Tenofovir Alafenamide (TAF) for 112 developing countries 
and with Biophore, Natco pharma, Lupin, Strides, MSN, sms healthcare, BDR, Arene life sciences to produce low-
cost versions of COVID-19 antiviral medication molnupiravir for supply in 105 low- and-middle-income countries.

	 Market Size

	 India is the largest provider of generic drugs globally. Indian pharmaceutical sector industry supplies over 50 
per cent of global demand for various vaccines, 40 per cent of generic demand in the US and 25 per cent of all 
medicine in UK. 

	 India’s domestic pharmaceutical market is at US$ 42 billion in 2021 and is expected to reach US$ 65 billion by 
2024 and further expand to reach US$ 130 billion by 2030.

	 India’s biotechnology industry comprises biopharmaceuticals, bio-services, bio-agriculture, bio-industry, and 
bioinformatics. The Indian biotechnology industry was valued at US$ 70.2 billion in 2020 and is expected to reach 
US$ 150 billion by 2025.

	 India’s drugs and pharmaceuticals exports stood at US$ $24.59 billion in FY22 and $25.39 billion in FY 2023.

	 India enjoys an important position in the global pharmaceuticals sector. The country also has a large pool of 
scientists and engineers with the potential to steer the industry ahead to greater heights. Presently, over 80% of 
the antiretroviral drugs used globally to combat AIDS (Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome) are supplied by 
Indian pharmaceutical firms.

	 The Pharmaceutical sector is expected to generate 58,000 additional job opportunities by the year 2025.

	 FDI in Pharmaceuticals

	 Pharmaceutical is one of the top ten attractive sectors for foreign investment In India. 100% foreign investment is 
allowed under automatic route in Medical Devices. Foreign investments in pharmaceutical greenfield projects are 
allowed upto 100% under the automatic route and for brownfield pharmaceutical projects, foreign investment 
beyond 74% to upto 100% Government approval is required. The sector contributes about 3.71% of total FDI 
inflows in the country across various sectors. Total FDI inflows in Pharma and Medtech Sectors have been ` 
1,32,568 crore from April 2000 to September 2022. During current financial year of 2022-23 from April 2022 to 
September 2022, FDI inflows has been Rs 8,081 crore. Further, the Department of Pharmaceuticals has approved 
21 FDI proposals worth Rs. 4,681 crore for brownfield projects during 1st January 2022 to 30th November 2022.

	 Some of the recent developments/investments in the Indian pharmaceutical sector are as follows:

	 Taking a major step to boost exports, Centre in December 2022, further expanded the scope of RoDTEP 
Scheme (Remission of Duties and Taxes on Exported Products) by including the exports made from the 
Chemical sector, Pharmaceuticals sector and exports of articles of iron & steel under chapters 28, 29, 30 and 
73 of ITC(HS) schedule of items.



63

SUNIL HEALTHCARE LIMITED

	 The expanded list of items will be applicable for exports made from 15th December, 2022. This was a long-
standing demand of the industry which has been accepted and will go a long way in boosting our exports 
and competitiveness in the global markets, generate employment and contribute to the overall economy.

	 Under  Pradhan Mantri Bhartiya Janaushadhi Pariyojana scheme, dedicated outlets known as  Pradhan 
Mantri Bhartiya Janaushadhi Kendras (PMBJK) are opened all over the country to provide generic medicines 
at affordable prices to the masses. Till 30th  November 2022, 8916 PMBJKs have been opened across the 
country. Target is to increase these kendras to 10500 by March 2025. 

	 Department of Pharmaceuticals (DoP) notified the amended Schedule-I of Drugs Prices Control Order 
(DPCO) 2013 on 11th November 2022 based on National List of Essential Medicines 2022 Notified by Ministry 
of Health and Family Welfare on 13th September 2022. Based on the same, National Pharmaceutical Pricing 
Authority (NPPA), an attached office under DoP is under process of revising the Ceiling Prices of the drugs 
coming under the Schedule-I as per extant provisions of DPCO, 2013.

	 On the occasion of 25th  Foundation day NPPA on 29th  August 2022, an updated version of Integrated 
Pharmaceutical Database Management System 2.0 (IPDMS) was launched which is an important step 
towards bringing in enhanced technology to facilitate the interface between Government and the 
stakeholders. On the same occasion, updated version of Pharma Sahi Dam Mobil App 2.0 was also launched, 
which empowers the consumers.

	 MSMEs have availed the benefit under erstwhile Pharmaceutical Technology Upgradation Assistance 
Scheme (PTUAS) scheme. However, the PTUAS has been incorporated as a sub-scheme under the Scheme - 
Strengthening of Pharmaceutical Industry (SPI), which was launched in July 2022.

	 The National Digital Health Blueprint has the potential to generate nearly US$ 200 billion in added economic 
value for India’s healthcare industry over the next 10 years.

	 In Jan 2023, Swedish healthcare provider Medicover will “invest hundreds of millions of dollars into India” 
as it looks to double the capacity of hospitals and beds in the next five years, company chairman Fredrik 
Stenmo said. “There is a big need for affordable, high-quality care in India.

	 Government Initiatives

	 Some of the initiatives taken by the Government to promote the pharmaceutical sector in India are as follows:

	 As per the Union Budget 2023-24:

l	 A mission to eliminate sickle cell anemia by 2047 will be launched. It would involve raising awareness, 
conducting a comprehensive screening of seven crore individuals in the impacted tribal regions 
between the ages of 0 and 40, and providing counselling through coordinated efforts.

l	 For innovation in the pharmaceutical sector, through centres of excellence, a new initiative to encourage 
pharmaceutical research and innovation will be implemented. The government persuades business 
to spend money on R&D in a few chosen priority fields. At the grassroots level, government has also 
announced on building 157 nursing colleges in co-location with government medical colleges.

l	 Health sector was allocated Rs. 89,155 crore in the 2023-24 union budget. Notably, this allocation was 
an increase of approximately 13% over Rs. 79,145 crore allocated in the 2022-23 union budget. Of the 
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allocated Rs. 89,155 crore, Department of Health and Family Welfare would receive Rs. 86,175 crore and 
Department of Health Research would receive Rs. 2,980 crore.

l	 The AYUSH ministry also received an increased budget allocation of 28% which enabled it to receive 
Rs. 3,647 crore from the previous year’s Rs. 2,845 crore. 

l	 There was also an increase in budget allocation for the National Health Mission, which was allocated 
Rs. 28,974crore in the previous years and Rs. 29,085 in the current 2023-24 budget.

	 Ayushman Bharat Digital Mission (ABDM):

l	 Under the ABDM, citizens will be able to create their ABHA (Ayushman Bharat Health Account) 
numbers, to which their digital health records can be linked. This will enable creation of longitudinal 
health records for individuals across various healthcare providers and improve clinical decision making 
by healthcare providers.

l	 The pilot of ABDM is completed in the six Union Territories of Ladakh, Chandigarh, Dadra & Nagar 
Haveli and Daman & Diu, Puducherry, Andaman and Nicobar Islands and Lakshadweep with successful 
demonstration of technology platform developed by the NHA.

	 Scheme for Development of Pharma Industry

Umbrella Scheme:

l	 The Department of Pharmaceuticals has prepared an Umbrella Scheme namely ‘Scheme for 
Development of Pharma industry’. Which comprises of the following sub schemes:

l	 Assistance to Bulk Drug Industry for Common Facilitation Centres

l	 Assistance to Medical Device Industry for Common Facilitation Centres

l	 Assistance to Pharmaceutical Industry (CDP-PS)

l	 Pharmaceutical Promotion and Development Scheme (PPDS)

l	 Pharmaceutical Technology Upgradation Assistance Scheme (PTUAS)

	 The Department of Pharmaceuticals of The Government of India initiated a PLI scheme to promote domestic 
manufacturing by setting up greenfield plants with minimum domestic value addition in four separate 
‘Target Segments’ with a cumulative outlay of Rs. 6,940 crore (US$ 951.27 million) from FY21 to FY30.

	 The Government of India announced various PLI Scheme for pharmaceutical Sector in the financial year 
2020-21, For giving boost to special Empty Capsule Shell eg. HPMC, Pullulan, enteric etc., The GOI announced 
PLI Scheme which will be applicable from Financial Year 2020-21 to Financial Year 2028-29.

	 The scheme on Promotion of Bulk Drug Parks for financing Common Infrastructure Facilities in 3 Bulk Drug 
Parks with financial implication of INR 3,000 crore for 2020-2021. The Scheme is operational during the 
period from FY 2020-21 till 2024-25. Assistance under the scheme is admissible for such facilities by State 
Government in Bulk Drug Parks. Parks will have common facilities such as solvent recovery plant, distillation 
plant, power and steam units, common effluent treatment plant etc.
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	 India plans to set up a nearly Rs. 1 lakh crore (US$ 1.3 billion) fund to provide a boost to companies to 
manufacture pharmaceutical ingredients domestically by 2023.

	 In March 2022, under the Strengthening of Pharmaceutical Industry (SPI) Scheme, a total financial outlay of 
Rs. 500 crore (US$ 665.5 million) for the period FY 21-22 to FY 25-26 were announced.

	 The National Health Protection Scheme is the largest Government funded healthcare programme in the 
world, which is expected to benefit 100 million poor families in the country by providing a cover of up to Rs 
5 lakh (US$ 7,723.2) per family per year for secondary and tertiary care hospitalization. 

	 The government introduced mechanisms such as the Drug Price Control Order and the National 
Pharmaceutical Pricing Authority to deal with the issue of affordability and availability of medicines.

Road Ahead

The pharmaceutical industry in India is a significant part of the nation’s foreign trade and offers lucrative potential 
for investors. Millions of people around the world receive affordable and inexpensive generic medicines from 
India, which also runs a sizable number of plants that adhere to food Manufacturing practices standards set by 
the WHO and USFDA. Among nations that produce pharmaceuticals, India has long held the top post.

Medicine spending in India is expected to grow 9-12 per cent over the next five years, leading India to become 
one of the top 10 countries in terms of medicine spending.

Going forward, better growth in domestic sales would also depend on the ability of companies to align their 
product portfolio towards chronic therapies for diseases such as such as cardiovascular, anti-diabetes, anti-
depressants and anti-cancers that are on the rise.

Indian Government has taken many steps to reduce costs and bring down healthcare expenses.

The National Health Protection Scheme which aims to offer universal healthcare, the ageing population, the rise 
in chronic diseases and other government programmes, including the opening of pharmacies that offer generic 
medications, should all contribute to boost the Indian pharmaceutical industry. 

Speedy introduction of generic drugs into the market has remained in focus and is expected to benefit the Indian 
Pharmaceutical companies. In addition, the thrust on rural heath programmes, life saving drugs and preventive 
vaccines also augurs well for the pharmaceutical companies. 

The Indian domestic pharmaceutical market size is at US$ 42 billion in 2021 and is expected to reach US$ 65 
billion by the year 2024 and further expand to reach US$ 130 billion by 2030. Pharmaceuticals export from 
India stood at around US$ 25.39 billion in FY22-23. The industry has granted incentives totaling Rs. 21,940 crore, 
according to the statistics from the Government of India.

As per CRISIL Research, India’s formulation exports to increase at 13-14% CAGR from fiscals 2020-25, compared 
to 6 to 7 % CAGR over the previous five years. This growth is largely driven by vaccine sales when India exports 
for Covid-19 vaccines. Vaccine share in overall formulation exports is expected to increase by over 4 time in next 
4-5 years.

The Indian government has taken many steps to reduce costs and bring down healthcare expenses. Speedy 
introduction of generic drugs into the market has remained in focus and is expected to benefit the Indian 
pharmaceutical companies. In addition, the thrust on rural health programs, lifesaving drugs and preventive 
vaccines also augurs well for the pharmaceutical companies.
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3.	 OPPORTUNITIES:

	 In meeting the global health challenge, the role of the pharmaceutical industry is of prime importance. With the 
current state of affairs, it’s a harsh reminder of what’s at stake and its responsibility.

	 Indian pharmaceuticals have time and again proved their prominence, and this time it was developing Covid-19 
vaccines which globally saved millions of lives. Domestic pharmaceutical companies which were largely 
recognized for their affordable manufacturing of generic medicines are now being recognized for its high-
quality research and development ecosystem post Covid-19, a remarkable perception shift from being a volume 
manufacturer to value creator. India is ranked third worldwide for production by volume, accounting for 20% of 
the global volume supply.

	 According to IBEF, domestic pharmaceutical market stood at US$ 42 billion in 2021 and is likely to reach US$ 
65 billion by 2024 and further expand to reach US$ 120-130 billion by 2030 to become the leading provider of 
medicines to the world. 

	 The year 2023 holds a positive outlook for India’s pharmaceutical industry, with a deeper focus on quality 
manufacturing, affordability of drugs and adoption of innovation and technology.

	 According to a recent EY FICCI report, as there has been a growing consensus over providing new innovative 
therapies to patients, Indian pharmaceutical market is estimated to touch $130 billion in value by the end of 
2030. Meanwhile, the global market size of pharmaceutical products was estimated to cross over the $1 trillion 
mark in 2023.

	 Indian Pharmaceutical Alliance, several initiatives and forward-looking policies were introduced to streamline 
processes, allowing the pharmaceutical sector to leapfrog to a stronger growth trajectory. “Despite geopolitical 
issues, India continued to supply medicines to over 200 countries, living up to its reputation as the ‘pharmacy of 
the world’. The sector also faced challenges this year, however, as the industry expands its footprint around the 
world, it will need to continuously invest in upgrading manufacturing standards to keep its promise of being a 
high-quality, reliable supplier of medicines to the world,”

	 In the 2020-2030 period, it is expected that Indian pharma industry to grow at a compounded annual growth rate 
(CAGR) of ~12% to reach at US$130 bn by 2030 from US$41.7 bn in 2020. Though the pharmaceutical industry 
has grown at a CAGR of approx. 13% over the two decades, on the domestic front, the ambition translates into a 
growth rate of 10-11% over the coming decade.

	 The main reason for growth are i) India has most US-FDA compliant plant outside US. ii) Government support in 
Innovation and R&D iii) strong drugs manufacturing experts at lower cost of manufacturing in India i.e. about 
33% lower than US and iv) Lauch of National Health Programme Ayushman Bharat has potential to grow Indian 
Pharma Sector etc.

	 In recent situation of Pandemic, Made-in-India drugs supplied to developed economies are known for their 
safety and quality. In recent years, India has seen increasing competition from China, which it has been able to 
leverage due to its inherent cost advantage, manufacturing intermediates and APIs at a cost much lower than 
those in India.

	 Prime Minister for promoting ‘make in India’ movement announced to the people become to vocal for local 
products. In response to the COVID-19 crisis, India’s Union Cabinet approved investment package to boost the 
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country’s Pharma and API production and cut dependence on China. This was a major step in the creation of a 
self-sufficient healthcare ecosystem in the country.

	 It is expected that due to patent off of many companies, the export from India will grow, new affordable 
pharmaceutical product will be invented for sustainable growth of Indian Pharmaceutical industry. It is also 
expected India’s formulation exports to increase at 13-14% CAGR from fiscals 2020-25.

	 “The key to success, going forward, will depend on regulatory simplification, increased industry-academia 
collaboration, and strengthening innovation mindset. This will pave the way for the industry to transition from 
“Volume” to “Value” leadership in the years to come,”.

4.	 CHALLENGES: 

	 Competition in the global market is a common phenomenon for any industry. The company is also facing the 
same but is quite competent to handle the competition successfully. In the domestic the numbers of players 
are increasing and the capacity is also increasing, but market demand is also gradually increasing. The main 
challenges is to cope up with price war situation. Further, Regulatory framework w.r.t. import restriction from 
China, on which Indian Pharmaceutical Sector majorly dependent on it is one of the great challenges, and 
combating with the same your Company is already in process of developing supplier of its Raw material from 
other Countries.

5.	 COMPANY OUTLOOK:

	 Your company is the one of the leading Hard shell capsule manufacturer in India and Pioneer in double lock and 
triple lock technology for capsules in India.  The Company had started production of HPMC Capsule in August 
2018 and in short span of time the sales brought in from HPMC have led to better performance. The Company 
has also started production of Pullulan Capsules.

	 Your Company is a Certified Empty Hard Gelatin capsules shell and HPMC Capsules shell Manufacturer in 
India providing the premium quality capsules to the clients. Your Company was WHO-GMP, ISO 9001:2015, 
ISO 14001:2015, ISO 45001:2018, ISO 22000:2018, Halal, and Kosher & USFDA for our quality standards. We 
manufacture the capsules at our state-of-the-art manufacturing unit under the observation of the scientific 
experts. The materials that we employ in the production obtained from the authorized vendors of the industry. 
Our capsules are 100% natural and safe as we have tested them on the predefined industrial international norms. 
Our quality experts ensure the best locking attributes which make the capsules perfect for any use.

	 The company is WHO-GMP certified Company and recognized Star Export House. With four decades of experience, 
and a strong brand equity “Sunloc”, the company is a preferred vendor for large pharmaceutical companies. The 
company was the pioneer of double lock and Triple lock technology in India. With a strong focus on R &D, the 
company is constantly innovating its product line to cater to the industry requirements. The management is 
optimistic about the future outlook of the company in short, medium and long-term. The Company deals in 
Business segment of Manufacturing Empty Hard Capsule Shells and in nine sizes, which are 00, 0SEL, 0EL, 0,1,2,3, 
4, 5. In this segment the company has reached to installed capacity of 16.5 billion capsules p.a. at the existing 
facility. The company enjoys immense credibility in various Global Market. The management of the company 
Continued focus on achieving cost optimization and yield improvements through Economies of Scale. The 
company also renewed interest in the business with an aim to become the one of the leading Hard Shell Capsule 
manufacturer in the world.
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6.	 RISK CONCERNS:

	 The Board of Directors of the Company and the Audit Committee shall periodically review and evaluate the 
risk management system of the Company so that the management controls the risks through properly defined 
network. Head of Departments shall be responsible for implementation of the risk management system as may 
be applicable to their respective areas of functioning and report to the Board and Audit Committee. Detailed 
report on Risk Analysis is a part of this Annual Report. The details of the Risk management policy are available 
on the website of the company i.e. www.sunilhealthcare.com and can be accessed at weblink  https://www.
sunilhealthcare.com/uploads/filemanager/6741q-5.pdf.

7.	 INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND ADEQUACY:

	 The Company maintains adequate internal control system and procedures commensurate with its size and 
nature of operations. The internal control systems are designed to provide a reasonable assurance over reliability 
in financial reporting, ensure appropriate authorization of transactions, safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and prevent misuse/ losses and legal compliances.

	 The internal control system includes a well-defined delegation of authority and a comprehensive Management 
Information System coupled with quarterly reviews of operational and financial performance, a well-structured 
budgeting process with regular monitoring of expenses and Internal audit. The Internal Audit reports are 
periodically reviewed by the management and the Audit Committee and necessary improvements are 
undertaken, if required.

8.	 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

	 Sunil Healthcare reported Revenues from operation ` 11182.95 lakhs, EBITDA of  ` 2093.61 lakhs, PBT of ` 975.86 
Lakhs and Profit after Tax (PAT) ` 697.69 Lakhs, other Comprehensive Income is (` 4.11) Lakh in the FY 2022-23.

	 The comparative financial analysis with previous financial year are as under:

	 Sales: - The revenue from operation in the current year decreased by 3.90%. 

	 Earning Before Interest, Depreciation and Tax: - EBIDT increased by 8.11 % as compared to previous 
financial year. 

	 Finance Cost: - Finance cost increased by 19.45% as compared to previous financial year.

	 Net Profit: - The net profit increased by 2.95 % as compared to previous year. 

	 Loss in Other comprehensive Income (OCI) reduced by 31.16% as compared to financial year 2021-22.

	 EPS: The EPS increased by 2.87 % as compared to previous financial year

9.	 HUMAN RESOURCES: 

	 The well-disciplined workforce which has served the company for 48 years lies at the very foundation of the 
company’s major achievements and shall well continue for the years to come. The management has always 
carried out systematic appraisal of performance and imparted training at periodic intervals. The company has 
always recognized talent and has judiciously followed the principle of rewarding performance. The Company 
maintained healthy, cordial and harmonious industrial relations at all levels. Despite severe competition, the 
enthusiasm and unstinting efforts of the employee have enabled the Company to remain at the forefront of the 
industry.
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	 In today’s comparative world where creativity and innovation are increasingly becoming important, development 
of Human Resource is the call of the day. The Company is taking various steps to develop the skills and enhance 
the knowledge of the human resource which include the following:

a.	 Comprehensive and user friendly Performance Management System has been implemented to create a 
result oriented culture.

b.	 Development needs have been identified through Performance Management System. 
	 These needs are being fulfilled through various training programs and lectures by internal as well as external 

faculty.

c.	 Regular Training programs are conducted comprising behavioral and technical programme. 

	 Total 221 numbers of Employees are on roll of the company as on March 31, 2023.

10.  DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS, ALONGWITH EXPLANATIONS: 

Ratios Variation as compared to previous years with reason

Debtors Turnover During the financial year 2022-23 Debtor Turnover Ratio is decreased by 
40.5 % as compared to financial year 2021-22, due to decrease in Sales 
and increase in trade receivable.

Inventory Turnover During the Financial year 2022-23, Inventory Turnover Ratio is decreased 
by 23.4% as compared to Previous financial year 2021-22 due to decrease 
in Sales and increase in inventory.

Interest Coverage Ratio No significant changes in Interest Coverage Ratio in Financial year 2022-
23 as compared to FY 2021-22.

Current Ratio No significant changes in Current Ratio in FY 2022-23 as compared to FY 
2021-22.

Debt Equity Ratio No significant changes in Debt Equity Ratio in FY 2022-23 as compared 
to FY 2021-22.

Operating Profit Margin (%) No significant changes in Operating Profit Margin Ratio in FY 2022-23 as 
compared to FY 2021-22.

Net Profit Margin (%) No significant changes in Net Profit Margin Ratio in FY 2022-23 as 
compared to FY 2021-22.

Return on Net worth (Equity) No significant changes in Return on Net Worth (Equity) Ratio in FY 2022-
23 as compared to FY 2021-22.
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11. 	QUALITY INITIATIVE

A) 	 Our Quality policy is:

	 “We shall produce capsules for customer’s delight by continual focused improvement plans”

We maintain a consistent quality of our product as per the norms of WHO-GMP. To maintain the stringent 
quality norms, we have modern quality Control Laboratory equipped with latest equipment’s and qualified 
persons to operate them. Our Quality Assurance works hand in hand with our production to ensure products 
of customer’s requirement.

The Company is registered with US FDA, which reflects standard of its quality.  The Company has received the 
following certification in quality, which shows further, its quality standards:

ISO           –	 9001:2015-QMS	 14001:2015-EMS	 45001:2018 – OH&SMS	 22000:2018-FSMS          

Facility   – 	         WHO-GMP                          DMF TYPE IV

Product – 	       Kosher                           Halal                             MSDS                               TGA, Australia

Process  – 	              GDP                               5S Certificates.

Awards  – 

CERTIFICATION-RAW MATERIAL (GELATIN)

Outstanding Export Performance 
By Pharmexil, India

CIMS Business Excellence 
Award 2015

Healthcare Leadership Award from ABP News 
One Star Export House Award 2016-17
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B) 	 QUALITY FOCUS: Your Company had adopted below quality control measures at its plant in overall 
production process till final disposal for making its capsules defect free:

•	 Internationally accepted measures;
•	 TPAM, 5 S, Jishu Hozen across production line;
•	 Six sigma for process control;
•	 Stringent in process quality checks;
•	 Statistical sampling and testing;
•	 Hourly Checks.
•	 Stringent In-house specifications to comply 

pharmacopoeia standards
•	 KYC (Know Your Customer) program to comply 

with Customer’s requirement

•	 Stringent quality Compliance measures adopted 
for zero defect capsules;

•	 Process R&D : Industry Leader for efficient 
utilization of primary Raw materials;

•	 Automatic Inspection Machines for automated 
visual Inspection.

12. 	INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
	 We are using modern technology available for improvement of Business processes across the functions by 

automating the routine administration tasks and creating various knowledge management databases. The 
Company also has its web site www.sunilhealthcare.com to provide all the details about the Company and its 
product. The Company has successfully migrated its operations on the SAP. Through strict vigilance aided by 
controls and alerts, the Company aims to further improve its operations, bring in greater efficiencies, and further 
tighten internal controls and systems

13. 	CAUTIONARY STATEMENT: 
	 Statement in this Report, particularly those which relate to Management Discussion and Analysis, describing 

the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates and expectations may constitute “forward looking statement” 
within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results might differ materially from those either.

On the behalf of Board	 SUNIL HEALTHCARE LIMITED
 	 Regd. Office:
	 38E/252A, Vijay Tower, Shahpur Jat,
	 New  Delhi-110049

Anil Kumar Khaitan	 CIN No: L24302DL1973PLC189662
Chairman cum Managing Director & CEO	 Phone No: +91-11-49435555/00 
DIN-00759951	 Fax no 011-43850087
Place – New Delhi	 Email ID: info@sunilhealthcare.com
Dated- May  29, 2023	 Web; www.sunilhealthcare.com	
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SUNIL HEALTHCARE LIMITED
Regd. Office: 38E/252-A, Vijay Tower, Shahpurjat, New Delhi-110049

CIN-L24302DL1973PLC189662/Email;- info@sunilhealthcare.com/Webiste: www.sunilhealthcare.com
Tel;-+91-11-49435555/00, Fax; +91-11-43850087

RISK ANALYSIS

Risk Identification

Risk Management is a key aspect of the “Corporate Governance Principles and Code of Conduct” which aims to 
improvise the governance practices across the Company’s activities. Risk management policy and processes will 
enable the Company to proactively manage uncertainty and changes in the internal and external environment to 
limit negative impacts and capitalize on opportunities. The probable material effects of an uncertain environment 
(both internal as well as external) on business goals are identified. The factors which could affect the performance 
vis-à-vis the stated objectives are determined.

Each and every activity is analyzed and the internal and external forces acting on them along with the negative 
resultant which could possibly surface is identified where internal factors are perceived to be the drivers, adequate 
policy – procedure checks are installed within the business processes for earlier recognition and corrective measures 
to overcome the same. In case of external drivers, a continuous cost benefit analysis is done to take a proactive 
approach and safe guard the business outcome on a substantial basis.

Risk Management and Control

It involves prioritization and assessment of risks, which hinder the achievement of the Company’s goals and to devise 
appropriate controls to mitigate these risks, then evaluating and reviewing the control mechanism and redesigning 
it from time to time in the light of its effectiveness. The Company ensures sensitivity to detect risk, ensuring flexibility 
to respond to risk and ensuring capability of resources to mitigate risk.

Market related Risk

•	 Competitors

	 The Company is expecting to derive a good part of its revenues from outside India, by entering new overseas 
markets and by expanding its customers base in the countries which it already has its presence.

	 Within India, the Company’ have an extensive marketing network and Company’s Brand Name ‘SUNLOC’ have 
significant goodwill among the customers.

	 The Company is optimistic that with its quality product and good customer relations will enable it to enhance its 
presence in its chosen markets.

•	 Concentration Risk           

Dependence on few customers.

The Company is pursuing a two-pronged risk minimization strategy increasing revenues from key customers on an 
absolute basis but decreasing their proportion in the Company’s overall revenues. Further the Company is trying to 
add some new customers. 

The Company is concentrating on serving a rationalized customer base in the domestic market accompanied by 
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higher satisfaction and retention levels as an effective counter to the new entrant in the business.

In the international market the Company intends to focus on select geographical areas to begin with leading to a 
disproportionate business concentration. The Company is moving to unserved geographies and would continue to 
explore new markets across the globe, with wider customer base.  The proportion of a particular customer should not 
be more than 35% of the total revenue from Domestic or Exports business at any point of time

•	 Business segments

	 The Company deals in Business segment of Manufacturing Hard Gelatin Capsule Shells. During the year 2017-
18, installed capacity was increased to 13 billion capsules per year. In the first quarter of Financial Year 2021-22 
the Production Capacity of manufacturing of Empty Hard Capsule shell increased to 13.80 billion p.a., and in 2nd 
quarter the installed capacity was increased to 15 billion capsules per annum from 13.80 billion capsules per 
annum. 

•	 Geographical Concentration of business.

	 During the year 2021-22, total Exports was for about 24.51 % of the Company’s revenues. During current fiscal 
the Company is expecting to increase its exports sales share in total company’s revenue. During the year the 
Company is exploring new area for increasing their presence in global market.

	 Within India, the Company enjoys a major presence in all geographical segments; North and West India 
contributing a major part of the Company’s revenues because of the sheer size of this market and logistics 
convenience.

Financial Risk	

•	 Business Process

	 The Company’s management reviews all the operational data on regular basis to assess and manage risks and 
controls related to business processes and financial disclosures. The database is regularly updated and data 
mining and continuous monitoring is done to mitigate the potential risks associated with financial behavior of 
business.

•	 Foreign currency risk

	 In the Current year about 40 % of the Company’s revenue from capsules business is expected from export, any 
fluctuation in which could have an impact on the Company’s top line as well as bottom line. The Company has 
laid down standard operating procedures to de-risk itself against currency volatility and out sources expert 
advice whenever required.

•	 Receivables Management Risk

	 The Company has a defined credit policy duly approved and reviewed by the Management from time to time, 
which is strictly monitored. The policy categorically stipulates the extension of credit only on a selective basis 
after a thorough customer evaluation. In most of the cases, dispatch is made after adequate securitisation and 
any default is not likely to have a significant effect on the company’s total profitability. 

•	 Payable Management Risk

	 The Company has defined credit policy duly approved and reviewed by the Management from time to time 
which is strictly monitored for its suppliers The Company is developing its new supplier/service providers on 
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continuous basis so that for each item or service Company must have more than one supplier/customer to 
mitigate any risk associated therein. Contract for supply or material/service is also in place with supplier/service 
provider for short term to long term basis.

Strategic Risk

•	 Proprietary risks/ contingencies

	 The Company has initiated adequate insurance covers to hedge against natural risks in the business. These 
are assessed on a regular basis and the Company takes the best possible coverage of insurance from the well-
established public and private sector insurance companies.

Operational Risks

•	 Cost Competitiveness

	 The Company has invested in large, world-class plants to encash economics of scale to enhance quality and 
reduce costs. Short term to long term contracts have been made with its suppliers/service provider to mitigate 
the risk of increasing inflation.

•	 Manpower related risks

	 The Company values its employees as main driver of sustainable growth. In view of this, it has instituted defined 
roles and responsibilities across various levels accompanied by robust systems to ensure appropriate information 
flow and better productivity.

	 Skilled manpower for the manufacturing and marketing functions is abundantly available. The Company enjoys 
a fair blend of youth and experience; it has a prudent mix of a competent and experienced Board as well as young 
and energetic operational team. Team building and motivation oriented activities are in place to build a highly 
motivated team with positive mindset.

•	 Inventory Risk 

	 The Company has defined its inventory in three categories – Vital, Essential and Desirable (VED) with minimum 
inventory level of each item has been defined and duly placed in ERP software commensurate with the above 
mentioned three categories. Regular monitoring to keep the minimum inventory without effecting the business 
operation is also in place.

•	 Raw Material & Energy Risk 

	 In the present competitive business scenario the risk of good quality and uninterrupted supply of raw material 
and energy within reasonable rate is vital. The Company has short term to long term contracts with raw material 
suppliers to ensure good quality and uninterrupted supply of material within in reasonable rate.

Compliance Risks

•	 Contractual risks

	 The Company is exposed to possible liabilities that could arise from the non-performance of certain contractual 
conditions. Presently the Company doesn’t foresee any such risk as Company has established a review and 
documentation process for contracts. 
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	 Each contract to be executed by or on behalf of the Company requires vetting from the Company’s legal and 
secretarial department before execution. While vetting contracts, the department evaluates the legal risk 
involved and ascertains legal responsibilities.

•	 Compliance and Environmental risks

	 The Company is committed to being a responsible corporate citizen and respects the laws and regulations of the 
countries in which it operates. The Company has an informed and proactive legal cell, which ensures compliance 
with various statutes. Besides, it also takes advice from reputed law firms from time to time. The legal cell advises 
the Company on various compliance issues and ensures their alignment with the laws of jurisdiction as well as to 
the territory where the Company operates. The Board reviews the detailed Compliance Report on quarterly basis. 
The Board reviews the detailed Compliance Report on quarterly basis. The Company has cloud based compliance 
software where all the compliance related detail are in place to get the timely alert from the software perse to 
complete the compliance before the due dates.

The Company also recognizes the need for sustainability with a minimal impact on the ecology and environment. In 
view of this, the Company makes continuous investments in treating effluents. These investments result in compliance 
with the most progressive global standards.

Cautionary Statement

This report on risk management provides the details of the risk which may be faced by the Company. Risks detailed 
here are not exhaustive but are for information purposes only. The actual risks faced by the Company in future may 
vary substantially from those outlined herein. Some of the statements written herein are forward looking and should 
not be construed as a guarantee of performance. The readers must exercise their own due diligence before forming 
any opinion based on this report.

 

On the behalf of Board	 SUNIL HEALTHCARE LIMITED
 	 Regd. Office:
	 38E/252A, Vijay Tower, Shahpur Jat,
	 New  Delhi-110049

Anil Kumar Khaitan	 CIN No: L24302DL1973PLC189662
Chairman cum Managing Director & CEO	 Phone No: +91-11-49435555/00 
DIN-00759951	 Fax no 011-43850087
Place – New Delhi	 Email ID: info@sunilhealthcare.com
Dated- May  29, 2023	 Web; www.sunilhealthcare.com
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ANNEXURE - H

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

To,
The Shareholders,
M/s. Sunil Healthcare Limited
38E/252A-Vijay Tower, 3rd floor, 
Panchsheel Commercial Complex,
Shahpur Jat, New Delhi-110049

Sub: CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

Ref: Regulation 34 (3) and Schedule V part C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our Opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications and examination of the disclosures 
received under Section 184/189, 170, 164 and 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and DIN status at the portal, 
www.mca.gov.in, as considered necessary and explanations furnished by the Company and its officers, we certify that 
none of the Directors on the Board, mentioned hereunder, have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed 
or continuing as Director of company by the Securities Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any 
such statutory authority.

S. No.  Name of Director Designation Director Identification No. (DIN)

1. Mr. Anil Kumar Khaitan Chairman & Managing Director 00759951

2. Bejon Kumar Misra Director (Independent) 01015633

3. Mr. Rakesh Mohan Director (Independent) 07352915

4. Mr. Sanjay Kaushik Director (Non-Executive) 00329013

5. Mrs. Mudita Chaturvedi Director (Independent) 02384403

6. Dr. (Mr.) Harish Pal Kumar Director (Independent) 01826010

7. Mr. Krishna Venkatachalam Rajan Director (Non-Executive) 02777067

This certificate is based on the information and records available up to this date and we have no responsibility to 
update this certificate for the events and circumstances occurring after the date of certificate.

For JAIN SHARMA & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries,

FCS TARA CHAND SHARMA
PROPRIETOR
FCS No.:5749
CP No.: 4078
Place: Jaipur 
Date:  29.05.2023
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ANNEXURE I

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATE UNDER REGULATION 17 (8) FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-23

To
The Board of Directors,
SUNIL HEALTHCARE LIMITED
New Delhi

Dear Sir(s),

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance of Sunil Healthcare Limited, having its 
registered office at 38 E/ 252-A,  Vijay Tower, Shahpurjat, New Delhi-110049 for the year ended 31st March 2023 as 
stipulated in Regulation 17 (8) of SEBI ( Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirement) , Regulation, 2015 (Listing 
Regulation) of the Said Company with Stock Exchange.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and the representations 
made by the officials of the Company, we hereby certify that:

(a)	 We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement of the Company for the year ended 31st 
March 2023 and to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

(i) 	 These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
contain statements that might be misleading; 

(ii) 	 These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

(b) 	 To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year 31st March 
2023 are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company’s code of conduct. 

(c) 	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have 
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial reporting and we 
have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal 
controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps have been taken to rectify these deficiencies. 

(d) 	 We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee that:-

(i) 	 There are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

(ii) 	 There are no Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and 

(iii) 	 There are no Instances of fraud /significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement 
therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the company’s internal 
control system over financial reporting. 

	 For SUNIL HEALTHCARE LIMITED.  

	 ANIL KHAITAN	 PAWAN RATHI 
	 (Chairman & Managing Director)	 (Chief Financial Officer)
Place: New Delhi
Date: 29.05.2023
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DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT

To,
Sunil Healthcare Limited
38E/252-A, Vijay Tower, Shahpurjat
New Delhi-110049

Pursuant to the requirements of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, I hereby confirm that all the Board members and 
Senior Management Personnel of Sunil Healthcare Limited have affirmed compliance with the Code of Business 
Conduct and Ethics for the year ended 31st March, 2023.

							            	  Anil Kumar Khaitan 
 		                                                        	     		   Chairman cum Managing Director & CEO

      	   DIN-00759951
Place: New Delhi
Date:  May 29, 2023

SUNIL HEALTHCARE LIMITED
Regd. Office: 38E/252-A, Vijay Tower, Shahpurjat, New Delhi-110049

CIN-L24302DL1973PLC189662
Email;- info@sunilhealthcare.com  Webiste: www.sunilhealthcare.com

Tel;-+91-11-49435555/00  Fax; +91-11-43850087
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Sunil Healthcare Limited  	

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Sunil Healthcare Limited (“the Company”), which comprise 
the Balance sheet as at March 31 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair 
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 
2023, its profit including other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified 
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the 
audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial 
statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone 
financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

S.N. Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response 

1 Revenue Recognition 
For the financial year ended 31 March, 2023, the 
Company has recorded revenue from operation 
amounting to Rs. 11,182.95 Lakhs as disclosed in 
Note 25 to the standalone financial statements. The 
accounting policies for revenue recognition are set out 
in Note 1.7.H to the standalone financial statements of 
the Company. We have identified sales cut-off to be 
significant because of the high volume of transactions 
and the varying sales, contractual, commercial and 
billing terms. Revenue recognition is susceptible to 
the higher risk that the revenue is recognized when 
the control of goods has not been transferred to the 
customers. 

How our audit addressed the key audit matter: 
We assessed the overall sales process and the relevant systems 
and the design of controls over the capture and recording of 
revenue transactions. We have tested the effectiveness of 
controls on the processes related to revenue recognition relevant 
to our audit. We performed sample testing on revenue and 
checked that the revenue recognition criteria are appropriately 
applied. We have also performed cut-off tests to ensure the 
Company has complied with proper cut-off procedures and 
revenue is recognized in the appropriate accounting period. 
We found the Company’s revenue recognition to be consistent 
with its accounting policy. We are satisfied that the Company’s 
revenue has been appropriately recognized and in the relevant 
accounting period.
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S.N. Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response 

2. Valuation of inventories

We refer to Note 6 and 1.7.I to the standalone financial 
statements. 

As at March 31, 2023, the total carrying amount of 
inventories was Rs. 1,245.72 Lakhs. The assessment 
of impairment of inventories involves significant 
estimation uncertainty, subjective assumptions and 
the application of significant judgment. Reviews are 
made periodically by management on inventories 
for obsolescence and decline in net realizable value 
below cost. Allowances are recorded against the 
inventories for any such declines based on historical 
obsolescence and slow-moving history. Key factors 
considered include the nature of the stock, its ageing 
and turnover rate.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter:

We have analyzed the ageing of the inventories, reviewed the 
historical trend on whether there were significant inventories 
written off or reversal of the allowances for inventory 
obsolescence. We conducted a detailed discussion with the key 
management and considered their views on the adequacy of 
allowances for inventory obsolescence considering the current 
economic environment. We have also reviewed the subsequent 
selling prices in the ordinary course of business and compared 
against the carrying amounts of the inventories on a sample 
basis at the reporting date. We found management’s assessment 
of the allowance for inventory obsolescence to be reasonable 
based on available evidence.

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022 are based on the previously issued 
financial statements prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards referred in section 133 of the Companies Act’ 2013 
audited by the predecessor auditor whose report for the year ended March 31, 2022 dated May 06, 2022 expressed an unmodified 
opinion on those financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Annual report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. We have 
obtained all other information prior to the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance including other comprehensive income ,cash flows and statement of changes in equity of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under 
Section  133 of the Act, read  with  the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting  
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial statements that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management. 

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the stndalone financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes 
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be 
influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our 
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance 
in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in 
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure  A” a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books;

(c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Change in 
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
specified under Section 133 of the Act; 

(e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board 
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to this report;

(g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us:

i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial 
statements – Refer Note 33 to the standalone financial statements; 

ii.	 The Company did not have material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including derivative contracts; 

iii.	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.	  

(a)	 The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Note 47  to the 
standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed 
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) during the year by the Company to or in any other 
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediaries shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(b)	 The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Note 47 to the 
standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, 
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties “) during the year, with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c)	 Based on such audit procedures, we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing 
has come to our notice that has caused them to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) 
contain any material mis-statement.

v.	 The Company has paid/provided for remuneration to its directors in compliance with the relevant provisions of 
section 197 of the Act.

vi.	 The Company has not declared/paid any dividend during the year therefore reporting regarding compliance of 
section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

vii.	 Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using accounting 
software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable for the Company with effect from 
April 1, 2023, and accordingly reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014 is not 
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022 included in these standalone financial 
statements, are audited by the predecessor auditor whose report dated May 06, 2022 expressed an unmodified opinion on those 
financial statements. 

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 302049E

Bimal Kumar Sipani
Partner

Place: Noida (Delhi-NCR) Membership No. 088926
Date:	   May 29, 2023                 UDIN: 23088926BGXBBY9738

Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Sunil Healthcare Limited on the Standalone 
Financial Statement as of and for the year ended on March 31, 2023 (referred to paragraph 1 of our report on the other 
legal and regulatory requirements)	  
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(i) a 	 (A) 	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of 
property, plant and equipment. 

	 (B) 	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

b.	 The Company has a planned programme of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment by which all property, 
plant and equipment are verified once in every three years. In accordance with this programme, property, plant and 
equipment are not physically verified during the current year.

c.	 The title deed of immovable property included in Property, Plant and Equipment and Right of Use Assets are held in the 
name of the Company.

d.	 On the basis of our examination of records of the Company, the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and 
Equipment, Right of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year. Therefore, provisions of clause 3(i)(d) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company.

e.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has been initiated or is pending against the 
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 2016 and the rules 
made thereunder. Therefore, provisions of clause 3(i)(e) of the order are not applicable to the Company.

(ii)	 (a) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us and records examined by us, the inventory has been 
physically verified by the management during the year and in our opinion, coverage and procedure of such verification 
by the management is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were 
noticed as compared to the book records.

(b)	 The Company has been sanctioned working capital limit from banks on the basis of security of current assets. There 
is a difference between books of account of the respective quarters and quarterly returns/ statements filed by the 
Company with the banks. Refer note no. 48 to the standalone financial statement.

(iii)    	 a)	 Based on the books of account examined by us and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company 
has not granted loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security during the 
year.

	 b)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any 
investment, granted any loan, advances in nature of loan, not provided any guarantee or given any security during the 
year.

	 c)	 Based on the books of account examined by us and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company 
has not granted any loan during the year for which repayment of principal and payment of interest thereon has not 
been stipulated. 

	 d)	 Based on the books of account and other relevant records examined by us, there is no amount of principal and interest 
considered good for recovery were due for payment during the year. In the following cases repayment of principal and 
payment of interest thereon to the extent accounted for in the books of account and considered doubtful were overdue 
for more than 90 days.

Particulars Rs. (in Lakhs)
Aggregated loan/advance in nature of loan to Related Parties 30.32
Aggregated interest on above 9.97
Loan/ Advance in nature of loan to Others -
Aggregated interest on above -

Total 40.29
Less: Provision for bad and doubtful balances 40.29
Net Carrying Value -

e)	  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, there is no loan given falling due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans given 
to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same parties
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f )	 Following loans given in earlier year and fully provided in the books of account, were repayable on demand or without 
specifying any terms or period of repayment. 

Particulars All other parties Promoters Related Parties

Aggregate amount of loan

-	 Repayable on demand (A) - - 40.29

-	 Agreement does not specify 
any terms or period of 
payment (B)

- - -

Total (A+B) - - 40.29

Percentage of loans to the total 
loans

- - 100%

           	 There is no outstanding loan in nature of advance at the year end.

(iv)	 The Company has not granted any loan or made investment or provided guarantee and security covered under section 
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

(v) 	    The Company has not accepted any deposit or amount which are deemed to be deposits covered under sections 73 to 
76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended) during the year. 
Therefore, provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(vi) 	 We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by the Central 
Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the 
Company’s products to which the said rules are applicable and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed records 
have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the said records with a view to 
determine whether they are accurate or complete. 

(vii)	 (a) According to the records of the Company, the Company is generally regular in depositing amounts deducted/ accrued 
in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employee’s State Insurance, 
Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Duty of customs, Duty of excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and 
other material statutory dues, where applicable, with the appropriate authorities. There were no undisputed outstanding 
statutory dues as at the yearend for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, there are 
no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) on account of any dispute except the followings where amount has been 
quantified:

Name of Statue Nature of disputed dues Amount * 
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Period to which it 
relates

Forum where 
dispute is pending

The Employees Provident 
Fund and Miscellaneous 
Provisions Act, 1952

Provident Fund 2.72 01.04.2014 to 
31.03.2017

Provident Fund 
Department Delhi.

(viii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which have not been recorded in 
the books of account but have been surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax 
Act, 1961 during the year.

 (ix)(a) 	 The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and in the payment of interest thereon during the year. Therefore, 
the provisions of clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any 
bank or financial institution or other lender during the year.

(c)	 Based on the books of account examined by us, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were 
obtained during the year.
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(d)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an overall 
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis during the 
year have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or 
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries. The Company has no associate or joint venture. 
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(f)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any loan during the year on 
pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries. The Company has no associate or joint venture.

(x)	  (a) 	 During the year, the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments). Therefore, provisions of clause 3(x)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b)	 	The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, 
partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(x)(b) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

(xi)	 (a)  	 Based upon the audit procedures performed and considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on 
Auditing for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial statements and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by the Company or on the Company 
noticed or reported during the year nor we have been informed of any such case by the management.during the course 
of the audit.

(b)	 According to the information and explanation given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act 
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014 with the Central Government.

(c)	 According to the information and explanation given to us, no whistle blower complaints were received by the Company 
during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xii)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company. 
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xiii)	 According to the information and explanations given by the management and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 
2013 where applicable and details for the same have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required 
by the applicable Indian accounting standards.

(xiv)	 (a) 	 Based on information and explanations given to us and our audit procedure applied, in our opinion, the Company 
has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b)	 We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under audit.

(xv)     According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them as referred to in section 192 of the Companies Act 2013. 
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

 (xvi)	 (a) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be registered under 
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

(b)	 In our opinion, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during 
the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(c)	 In our opinion, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the 
Reserve Bank of India. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(d)	 According to the representations given by the management, there is no CIC as part of the Group.
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(xvii)	 The Company has not incurred cash loss in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. 
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xvii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xviii)	 There has been no resignation of statutory auditor during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xviii) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xix)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and 
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying 
the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on 
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us 
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of 
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further 
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor 
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged 
by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)	 The Company has no unspent amount relating to CSR activity, which is required to be transferred to a fund specified in 
Schedule VII to the Companies Act 2013. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xx) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 302049E

Bimal Kumar Sipani
Partner

Place: Noida (Delhi-NCR) Membership No. 088926
Date:	   May 29, 2023                 UDIN: 23088926BGXBBY9738
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ANNEXURE B to Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the member of Sunil Healthcare Limited on the Standalone 
Financial Statement as of and for the year ended on March 31, 2023 (refer to in paragraph 2(F) of our report on other 
legal and regulatory requirements)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Sunil Healthcare Limited (‘the 
Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control 
over the financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the “guidance Note”) and the standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to as audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to 
an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements of and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system 
with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with reference to financial statements

A Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal; financial control with reference to financial statements includes 
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company ; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorization of management and directors of 
the company ; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with reference to financial statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of Internal Financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion

In our opinion the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to standalone 
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements were operating 
effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over the financial reporting criteria established by the company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 302049E

Bimal Kumar Sipani
Partner

Place: Noida (Delhi-NCR) Membership No. 088926
Date:	   May 29, 2023                 UDIN: 23088926BGXBBY9738
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Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023
(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes  As at  As at 
 31st Mar, 2023  31st Mar, 2022 

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 2(i)  5,473.07  5,520.87 
Capital work-in-progress 2(i)  0.72  175.06 
Right of Use Assets 2(ii)  1,557.63  1,458.84 
Other Intangible assets 2(iii)  12.27  16.79 
Financial Assets
(i)  Investments 3  0.10  116.28 
(ii) Other financial assets 4  199.37  99.28 
Other non-current assets 5  25.03  113.96 
Total Non-Current Assets  7,268.19  7,501.08 

Current assets
Inventories 6  1,245.72  993.43 
Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 7  3,550.68  2,199.86 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 8  1.58  3.42 
(iii) Bank balance other than (ii) above 9  334.93  319.26 
(iv) Loans 10  -  30.32 
 (v) Other financial assets 11  54.90  59.48 
Current Tax Assets (net) 12  -  7.10 
Other current assets 13  151.45  104.37 
Total Current Assets  5,339.26  3,717.24 

Total Assets  12,607.45  11,218.32 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 14  1,025.48  1,025.48 
Other Equity 15  5,147.07  4,453.49 
Total Equity  6,172.55  5,478.97 

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16  901.38  1,082.74 
(ii) Lease Liabilities  79.25  21.75 
Provisions 17  160.46  207.31 
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 18  789.79  680.69 
Total Non-Current Liabilities  1,930.88  1,992.49 

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19  2,620.04  2,339.52 
(ia) Lease Liabilities  78.23  24.41 
(ii) Trade payables 20

Total Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and & small enterprises; and  143.35  213.61 
Total Outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and & small enterprises  1,295.09  614.57 

(iv) Other financial labilities 21  28.99  61.92 
Other current liabilities 22  180.13  359.37 
Current tax liabilities (Net) 23  48.12  24.75 
Provisions 24  110.07  108.71 
Total Current Liabilities  4,504.02  3,746.86 

 Total Equity and Liabilities  12,607.45 11218.32
Significant Accounting Policies and Other Notes on Standalone Financials Statements. 1.1-50
The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements.

As per our report attached of even date  For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 302049E

Bimal Kumar Sipani Anil Khaitan Harish Pal  Kumar
Partner Chairman Cum Managing Director Director
Membership No. 088926 DIN No. 00759951 DIN No. 01826010

Satyendu Pattnaik Pawan Rathi
Place: New Delhi Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date: 29th May, 2023 Mem No.: F7736
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As per our report attached of even date  For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 302049E

Bimal Kumar Sipani Anil Khaitan Harish Pal  Kumar
Partner Chairman Cum Managing Director Director
Membership No. 088926 DIN No. 00759951 DIN No. 01826010

Satyendu Pattnaik Pawan Rathi
Place: New Delhi Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date: 29th May, 2023 Mem No.: F7736

Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss  for the period ended 31st March, 2023
(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes For the year ended  For the year ended 
 31st March, 2023  31st March, 2022 

I. INCOME
I. Revenue from Operations 25  11,182.95  11,637.29 
II. Other Income 26  162.92  155.42 
III. Total Income (I+II)  11,345.87  11,792.71 

IV. EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 27  4,984.14  4,290.14 
Purchases of Stock in Trade  16.83  39.99 
Changes in Inventories of Finished goods and Work-in-progress 28  (327.71)  360.72 
Employee Benefits Expense
Finance Costs

29
30

 1,477.71  1,418.97 
 416.75  348.88 

Depreciation and Amortization expense 2  701.00  630.57 
Other Expenses 31  3,101.29  3,746.33 
Total Expenses (IV)  10,370.01  10,835.60 

V. Profit/(Loss) before Tax  (III-IV)  975.86  957.11 

VI. Tax Expenses:
       (1) Current Tax
             For Current Year  167.49  152.39 
             For earlier year  -  (0.91)
      (2) Deferred Tax 18  110.68  127.95 

VII. Profit/(Loss) for the year  (V-VI)  697.69  677.68 

VIII. Other Comprehensive Income 
A. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
     Remeasurement of defined benefit plan  (5.69)  (8.27)
     Tax relating to above item  1.58  2.30 
B. Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  -  - 
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year  (4.11)  (5.97)

IX. Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VII+VIII)  693.59  671.71 

Earnings per Equity Share (nominal value of share is Rs. 10/-) 32
       Basic & Diluted (in Rs.)  6.80  6.61 

Significant Accounting Policies and Other Notes on Standalone 
Financials Statements.

1.1 - 49

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Standalone 
Financial Statements.
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Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2023
(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  For the year ended 
31st March 2023 

 For the year ended 
31st Mar 2022 

A. Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Profit before Tax  975.86  957.11 
Adjustments for :

Finance Costs 416.75 348.88
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 701.00 630.57
Reversal of provision for expected credit loss (20.78) (41.93)
Sundry balances written off 13.44 123.98
Net (Gain)/Loss on sales of Property ,Plant and Equipment (8.98) 0.13
Interest Income (21.09) (21.63)
Gain on fair valuation of mutual fund - (0.94)
Profit on sale of Mutual Fund measured at fair value (0.49) (5.33)
Bad Debts written off 31.81 345.90

    Provision for Impairment of Investment in Subsidiary 12.91
    Provision for Impairment of Loan and Interest thereon  to Subsidiary 40.30

Unspent liabilities written back (24.01) (26.33)
Unrealised (gain)/loss foreign currency transactions and translation/FCTR (64.20) (34.70)

Operating profit before working capital changes  2,052.52  2,275.72 

Working Capital adjustments:
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (252.29) 132.84
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and other Receivables (1354.12) 334.87
Increase /(Decrease) in Trade and other payable 403.78 (436.54)

Cash generation from Operations  849.89  2,306.89 
Refund/(Payment) of Direct Taxes (137.01) (117.55)
Net Cash generated from/ (used in) Operating Activities 712.88 2,189.34

B. Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets including Capital work-in-progress (420.08) (904.01)
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 72.31 1.96
Investment in Mutual Funds - (100.00)
Sale of Mutual Funds 103.76 110.33
Loan received back from subsidiaries - 89.21
Movement in Term Deposits (115.67) 453.36
Interest Received  19.51 14.40
Net Cash generated from/ (used in) Investing Activities  (340.17)  (334.75)

C. Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Receipts from Non Current Borrowings  370.50 314.00
Repayment of Non Current Borrowings (463.68) (500.77)
Loan repaid to Director (157.00) (363.00)
Receipts/(Repayment) of Current Borrowings (Net) 328.55 (953.76)
Payment of lease liability (52.60) (22.66)
Finance Cost Paid (400.31) (329.78)
Net Cash generated from/ (used in) Financing Activities  (374.54)  (1,855.97)

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (1.84) (1.39)
Add : Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 3.42 4.81
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents  1.58  3.42 

Components of Cash & Cash equivalents
Cash in hand 1.12 3.01
Balances with Schedule Banks
In Current Accounts 0.46 0.41

 1.58  3.42 
 1.58  3.42 

Notes:
a) The above Statement of Cash Flows  has been prepared under the “Indirect Method”as set out in Ind AS – 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”
b) Movement of Liabilities covered under Financing Activities as per Ind AS - 7 is given in Note No 44.

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements.

As per our report attached of even date  For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 302049E

Bimal Kumar Sipani Anil Khaitan Harish Pal  Kumar
Partner Chairman Cum Managing Director Director
Membership No. 088926 DIN No. 00759951 DIN No. 01826010

Satyendu Pattnaik Pawan Rathi
Place: New Delhi Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date: 29th May, 2023 Mem No.: F7736
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Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2023

(All amounts are in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(a) Equity Share Capital & Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year :

Particulars As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

 No. of Shares  Amount  No. of Shares  Amount 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid shares

Balance at the beginning of the year  10,254,750  1,025.48  10,254,750  1,025.48 

Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors  -  -  -  - 

Changes in equity share capital during the year  -  -  -  - 

Balance at the end of the reporting period  10,254,750  1,025.48  10,254,750  1,025.48 

(b) Other Equity

Reserves and Surplus Total Other Equity 

Particulars Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve (i)

Retained 
earnings (ii)

Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Revaluation 
Reserve on 

Leasehold Land 
(Right of Use 

Assets) (iii) 

Balance at April 1, 2021  7.50  3,479.65  294.63  3781.78 

Profit/(Loss) for the year  -  677.68  - 677.68 

Other Comprehensive Income for the year  -  (5.97)  -  (5.97) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year  -  671.71  -  671.71 

Balance at March 31, 2022  7.50  4,151.36  294.63  4453.49 

Profit/(Loss) for the year  -  697.69  - 697.69 

Other Comprehensive Income for the year  -  (4.11)  -  (4.11)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year  -  693.58  -  693.59 

Balance at March 31, 2023  7.50  4,844.94  294.63  5147.08

Notes:

(i)       Capital Redemption Reserve: It represents amount transferred upon redemption of Preference Shares and can be utilized in accordance with 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

(ii)    Retained Earnings: Retained earnings are profits earned by the Company after transfer to general reserve and payment of dividend to 
shareholders.

(iii)     Revaluation Reserve on Leasehold Land (Right of Use Assets): It respresents gain on revaluation of leasehold land (refer note no. 39 (B) (i).

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements.

As per our report attached of even date  For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 302049E

Bimal Kumar Sipani Anil Khaitan Harish Pal  Kumar
Partner Chairman Cum Managing Director Director
Membership No. 088926 DIN No. 00759951 DIN No. 01826010

Satyendu Pattnaik Pawan Rathi
Place: New Delhi Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date: 29th May, 2023 Mem No.: F7736
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1.1 Reporting Entity
Sunil Healthcare Limited referred as “the Company” is domiciled in India. The registered office of the Company is at  38E/252A, Vijay Tower, 
Shahpurjat, New Delhi. Equity shares of the Company are listed in India on the BSE Limited and the Calcutta stock exchange.
The Company has manufacturing plant in Alwar (Rajasthan), India . The Company is a manufacturer of Empty Hard Gelatin , HPMC Capsule 
Shells & Ayurvedic Medicines.

1.2 Significant Accounting Policies
Accounting Policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standards is initially adopted or a revision 
to an existing accounting standard.

1.3 Status of Compliance
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under 
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 as amended time to time.

Accounting Policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued Ind AS is initially adopted or a revision to an existing 
accounting standard required a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The Board of Directors approved the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 and authorised for issue on May 29, 2023. 
However, the shareholders of the Company have the power to amend the Financial Statements after the issue.

1.4 Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for the followings : 
- Non-current borrowings are initially measured at amortized cost.
 - Investments other than investment in subsidiaries are measured at fair value at each reporting date.
- Defined benefit plans and Other long-term employee benefits are measured at fair value at each reporting date.
- Revaluation of leasehold land (Right of use assets)
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation 
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability, 
if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value 
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions 
that are within the scope of Ind AS 116 – Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as 
net realisable value in Ind AS 2 – Inventories or value in use in Ind AS 36 – Impairment of Assets.
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which 
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, 
which are described as follows:
- Level 1 : inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the company can access at the 
measurement date;
- Level 2 :inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; 
and
- Level 3 : inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

1.5 Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian National Rupee (‘INR’), which is the Company’s functional currency. All amounts have 
been rounded to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

1.6 Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of the Company’s standalone financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the 
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised prospectively.
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Judgements
Information about the judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognised 
in the financial statements have been given below:
- assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.
- Classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets are held and assessment of whether the 
contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the 
financial statements for the every period ended is included below:
- Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;
- Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which carry-forward tax losses can be used;
- Impairment test: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts;
- Useful life and residual value of Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible Assets and Right of Use assets; 
- Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of 
resources.
- Assessment of recoverablity of receivables and advances and such assessment requires significant management judgement based on 
financial position of the counter-parties, market information and other relevant factors.

1.7 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The significant accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements are listed below. Such accounting 
policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these financial statements, unless otherwise indicated.

A. Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is classified as current when it is:
- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- Cash and Cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period, or 
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:
- Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
- Expected to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
 -there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and non-current liabilities respectively.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The 
Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

B Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
Recognition and Measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. For 
this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which represents the carrying value of property, plant and equipment recognised as at 1st April, 
2015 measured as per the previous Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). Cost includes all direct costs and expenditures 
incurred to bring the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Borrowing costs incurred during the period of 
construction is capitalised as part of cost of qualifying asset.

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the 
item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. This recognition principle is applied to costs incurred initially to 
acquire an item of property, plant and equipment and also to costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of. All other repair and 
maintenance costs, including regular servicing, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. When a replacement occurs, 
the carrying value of the replaced part is derecognised. Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises major components 
having different useful lives, these components are accounted for as separate items.
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Depreciation
Depreciation on all assets commences from the dates the assets are available for their intended use and are spread over their estimated 
useful economic lives. The estimated useful lives of assets and residual values are regularly reviewed and, when necessary, are revised.
Depreciation is provided on straight line method using the rates arrived at on the basis of estimated useful lives given in Schedule II of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Estimated useful life (years)
 Plant and Machinery                   
Capsule Manufacturing Machines       - 40 Years (single shift)
Capsule Printing Machines                   - 40 Years (single shift)

Electrical Installation                   
33KV Transformer                                     - 40 Years (single shift)

Capital work-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress comprises of assets in the course of construction for production or/and supply of goods or services or 
administrative purposes, are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. At the point when an asset is operating at management’s 
intended use, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment. Costs associated with 
the commissioning of an asset are capitalised where the asset is available for use and commissioning has been completed.
De-recognisation
An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise 
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment 
is determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement 
of Profit & Loss.

C Intangible assets 
Intangible Assets (Other than Goodwill) acquired separately are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment loss, if 
any. Cost includes deemed cost w.r.t assets acquired prior to April 1, 2015 which represents the carrying value of property, plant and 
equipment as at April 1, 2017 measured as per the previous Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).Intangible assets are 
amortized on straight line method basis over the estimated useful life. Estimated useful life of the Software is considered as 6 years and 
Patent is considered as 10 years.
Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and changes, if any, are accounted for 
prospectively.
An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or 
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss when the asset is derecognised.

D Impairment of non-financial assets
At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than inventories and deferred tax 
assets) to determine whether there is any indication on impairment. If any such indication exists, then the recoverable amount of assets 
is estimated.
For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use 
that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or Cash Generating Unit (CGUs).
The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the 
estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or 
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment loss in respect of assets other than goodwill is reversed only to the extent that the assets carrying amount does not exceed 
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised 
in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

E Borrowing Cost
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets 
upto the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. 
The loan origination costs directly attributable to the acquisition of borrowings (e.g. loan processing fee, upfront fee) are amortised on 
the basis of the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method over the term of the loan.
All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs includes unwinding charges of redeemable preference shares.
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F Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing 
at the date of the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated 
to the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss with the 
exception of the following:
- exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings included in the borrowing cost when they are regarded as an adjustment to 
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;
Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date of initial 
transactions. Non-monetary items measure at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when 
the fair value is determined.

G Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed in the year in which the related services are provided. A liability is recognised for the amount 
expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided 
by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined contribution plans
Employee benefits in the form of Provident Fund (with Government Authorities)  is defined as contribution plan and charged as expenses 
during the period in which the employees perform the services.

Defined benefit plans
For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations 
being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by 
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using market yields available on government bonds.

The effect of the remeasurement changes (comprising actuarial gains and losses) to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on 
plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the 
period in which they occur. 

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised 
in the period in which they occur, directly in OCI and such re-measurement gain / loss are not reclassified to the Statement 
of Profit and Loss in the subsequent periods. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity. 
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in other equity and will not be reclassified to the 
Statement of Profit & Loss. Past service cost is recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest 
is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs 
are categorised as follows:
• service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);
• net interest expense or income; and
• remeasurement
The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in the statement of profit and loss in the line item employee 
benefits expense.
The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company’s defined 
benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of 
refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

Other long-term employee benefits
The Company has long term employment benefit plans i.e. accumulated leave. Accumulated leave is encashed to eligible employees at 
the time of retirement. The liability for accumulated leave, which is a defined benefit scheme, is provided based on actuarial valuation as 
at the Balance Sheet date, based on Projected Unit Credit Method, carried out by an independent actuary.

H Revenue Recognition
Revenue from sales of goods
The Company recognizes revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation in accordance with the provisions of contract with the 
customer. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price allocated to 
that performance obligation. This is achieved when control of the product has been transferred to the customer, which is generally 
determined when title, ownership, risk of obsolescence and loss pass to the customer and the Company has the present right to payment, 
all of which occurs at a point in time upon shipment or delivery of the product. The Company considers shipping and handling activities 
as costs to fulfill the promise to transfer the related products and the customer payments for shipping and handling costs are recorded as 
a component of revenue component of revenue.
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The majority of the Company’s contracts related to product sales include only one performance obligation, which is to deliver products 
to customers based on orders received.
Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the transaction price. Transaction price represents net value of goods and services provided 
to customers after deducting for certain incentives including, but not limited to discounts, volume rebates, incentive programs etc.  
For incentives offered to customers, the Company makes estimates related to customer performance and sales volume to determine the 
total amounts earned and to be recorded as deductions. The estimate is made in such a manner, which ensures that it is highly probable 
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur. The actual amounts may differ from these 
estimates and are accounted for prospectively. No element of significant financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit 
term, which is consistent with market practice.
Interest income
Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the 
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time proprtionate basis, by reference to the principal 
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through 
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Dividends
Dividend income is recognised when the company’s right to receive dividend is established.

Goods and service tax (GST) on above, whenever applicable, is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected 
on value added to the goods and services by the Company on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

I Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of manufactured finished goods and  work  in progress is determined 
by taking cost of material consumed, labour and related overheads. Cost of raw materials and packing materials, stock in trade and stores 
& spares are computed on weighted average basis. Purchases cost of raw materials and packing materials, stock in trade and stores & 
spares are net of input tax credits, rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 
business, less estimated costs of completion and to make the sale. However, materials and other items held for use in the production of 
finished goods are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or 
above cost. Provision for cost of obsolescence and other anticipated losses, wherever considered necessary, are recognised in the books 
of account.

J Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
Based on the best estimate provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event 
and it is probable (“more likely than not”) that it is required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount 
of the obligation at reporting date. 
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from a past event, with the resolution of the contingency dependent on uncertain 
future events, or a present obligation where no outflow is probable. Major contingent liabilities are disclosed in the financial statements 
unless the possibility of an outflow of economic resources is remote. 
Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

K Measurement of fair value
a) Financial instruments 
The estimated fair value of the Company’s financial instruments is based on market prices and valuation techniques. Valuations are made 
with the objective to include relevant factors that market participants would consider in setting a price, and to apply accepted economic 
and financial methodologies for the pricing of financial instruments. References for less active markets are carefully reviewed to establish 
relevant and comparable data. 
b) Marketable and non-marketable equity securities
Fair value for quoted securities is based on quoted market prices as of the reporting date. Fair value for unquoted securities is calculated 
based on commonly accepted valuation techniques utilizing significant unobservable data. If fair value cannot be measured reliably 
unlisted shares are recognized at cost.
c) Leasehold land
Fair valuation of leasehold land at revaluation date is estimated by the independent valuer in accordance with measurement principles 
as prescribed in Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS).

L Financial instruments
Financial Assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets (except trade receivables) are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, except for those carried at 
fair value through profit or loss which are measured initially at fair value. However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant 
financing component are measured at transaction price.
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Classifications and Subsequent measurement

The Company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value depending on the Company’s 
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Financial assets at amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost only if both of the following conditions are met:
- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.
- the contractual terms of the financial assets represent contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (‘EIR’) 
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral 
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance income in the Statement of Profit & Loss. The losses arising from impairment 
are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
Financial assets with contractual cash flow characteristics that are solely payments of principal and interest and held in a business model 
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets are classified to be measured at FVOCI.

Financial assets at fair value through Profit & Loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, are classified as at FVTPL.
In addition, the Company may elect to classify a Financial assets, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTPL criteria, as at FVOCI. 
However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 
‘accounting mismatch’).
Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit & 
Loss.

Equity Instruments
All equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. On initial recognition an equity investment that is not held for 
trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis.
All other Financial Instruments are classified as measured at FVTPL except investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries which are 
carried at cost less provision for impairment, if any.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised 
(i.e. removed from the company’s balance sheet) when:
- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
- The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay 
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either  
(a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or  
(b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the 
asset.
When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it 
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially 
all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognize the transferred asset to 
the extent of the company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred 
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the company has retained.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying 
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be required to repay.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the 
portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability 
assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and 
FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.
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With regard to trade receivable, the Company applies the simplified approach as permitted by Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, which 
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from the initial recognition of the trade receivables.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, amortised cost, as 
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of amortised cost, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Classifications and subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. 
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of 
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value 
through Statement of Profit or Loss. 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of 
recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains! losses attributable to 
changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains! loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may 
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expired.

M Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognised directly in equity or in Other Comprehensive Income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax 
payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted enacted at the reporting date. Current tax assets 
and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:

a) Has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and

b) Intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet and the 
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable 
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and 
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from initial recognition of goodwill or from the initial recognition (other 
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting 
profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or 
the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. 
Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company 
will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized 
as an asset, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and included in deferred tax assets. 
The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT entitlement to the extent there 
is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

N Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of 
the lease. The arrangement is (or contains) a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and 
the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.
Company as a lessor
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating 
leases. Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs 
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over 
the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned. 
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred from the Company to the lessee. 
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income 
is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease. 

Company as a lessee
The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Company recognises a right-of-use asset 
and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as 
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Company recognises the lease payments 
as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time 
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed. Contingent and variable rentals are recognised as expense in 
the periods in which they are incurred.

Lease Liability
The lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate 
cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, 
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value as that of 
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:
•    Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments) payable during the lease term and under reasonably certain extension 

options, less any lease incentives;
•    Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date;
•    The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
•    The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and
•    Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease.
The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the Balance Sheet.
The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the effective 
interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.
The Company remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:
•    The lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is 

remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.
•   A lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease liability is 

remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.
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Right of Use (ROU) Assets
The ROU assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before the commencement 
day and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.  
Whenever the company incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is located or 
restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and measured 
under Ind AS 37- Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. The costs are included in the related right-of-use asset.
ROU assets are depreciated over the shorter period of the lease term or useful life of the underlying asset. If the company is reasonably 
certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. The depreciation 
starts at the commencement date of the lease. Premium on Leasehold land is being amortised over the period of lease tenure. 
Leasehold land is revalued at interval of every 4 years to reflect current fair value.  Refer foot note “Revaluation Reserve on Leasehold 
Land (Right of Use Assets)” in Statement of change in Equity.
The ROU assets are presented as a separate line in the Balance Sheet and details of assets are given ROU note under “Notes forming part 
of the Financial Statement”.

The Company applies Ind AS 36- Impairment of Assets to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any 
identified impairment loss as per its accounting policy on ‘property, plant and equipment’.
As a practical expedient, Ind AS 116 permits lessee not to separate non-lease components when bifurcation of the payments is 
not available between the two components, and instead account for any lease and associated non-lease components as a single 
arrangement. The Company has used this practical expedient.
Extension and termination options are included in many of the leases. In determining the lease term the management considers all facts 
and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option.

O Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

P Segment Reporting 
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The 
board of directors of the Company has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker by the Management of the company. 

Q Government Grants
Government grants are recognised at its fair value, where there is a reasonable assurance that such grants will be received and 
compliance with the conditions attached therewith have been met. 

Government grants related to expenditure on property, plant and equipment are credited to the statement of profit and loss over 
the useful lives of qualifying assets or other systematic basis representative of the pattern of fulfilment of obligations associated with 
the grant received. Grants received less amounts credited to the statement of profit and loss at the reporting date are included in the 
balance sheet as deferred income.

R Earning Per Share (EPS)
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its equity shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit 
or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number 
of equity shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

S Standard issued but not yet effective 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1, 2023, as below:
Ind AS 1 – Material accounting policies - The amendments mainly related to shifting of disclosure of erstwhile “significant accounting 
policies” in the notes to the financial statements to material accounting policy information requiring companies to reframe their 
accounting policies to make them more “entity specific. This amendment aligns with the “material” concept already required under 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its 
financial statement.
Ind AS 8 – Definition of  accounting estimates - The amendments specify definition of ‘change in accounting estimate’ replaced with 
the definition of ‘accounting estimates’. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial 
statement.
Ind AS 12 – Income taxes – Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021) - The amendment clarifies that in cases of transactions where equal 
amounts of assets and liabilities are recognised on initial recognition, the initial recognition exemption does not apply. Also, If a company 
has not yet recognised deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability on right-of-use assets and lease liabilities or has recognised deferred 
tax asset or deferred tax liability on net basis, that company shall have to recognise deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 
on gross basis based on the carrying amount of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities existing at the beginning of 1 April 2022. The 
Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statement.
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023
(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

2 (i) Property, Plant and Equipment

Particulars Buildings Plant and 
Equipment

Electric 
Installations

Furniture 
and 

Fixtures

Office 
Equipments

Art Work Vehicles  Total Capital 
work - in - 
Progress

Gross Block

As at 31st March 2021  556.95  6,328.58  343.77  346.06  41.18  -    481.43  8,097.97  0.69 

Transfer to Right of Use Assets  -  -  -  -    -    -    -    -  -   

Additions  58.28  461.95  51.74  47.80  10.96  5.04  12.79  648.56  786.04 

Deductions/ Adjustments  -  1.57  -  0.67  7.08  -    9.32  611.67 

As at 31st March 2022  615.23  6,788.96  395.51  393.19  45.06  5.04  494.22  8,737.21  175.06 

Transfer to Right of Use Assets  -  -  -  -    -    -    -  -   

Additions  98.75  307.28  17.70  58.93  3.50  -    161.24  647.40 249.39   

Deductions/ Adjustments  2.17  8.21  -  -    0.27  -    249.40  260.05  423.73 

As at 31st March 2023  711.81  7,088.03  413.21  452.12  48.29  5.04  406.06  9,124.56  0.72 

Accumulated Depreciation

As at 31st March 2021 114.57  1,898.67  141.33  166.91  30.14  -  269.26  2,620.88  -   

Transfer to Right of Use Assets  -  -  -  -    -    -    -    -  -   

Additions 23.27  450.67  33.86  35.09  4.38  -    54.46  601.73  -   

Deductions/ Adjustments  -  (0.83)  -  0.64  6.46  -    -    6.27  -   

As at 31st March 2022  137.84  2,350.17  175.19  201.36  28.06  -    323.72  3,216.35  -   

Transfer to Right of Use Assets  - 

Additions  27.24  465.91  38.05  34.93  4.24  -    60.98  631.35  -   

Deductions/ Adjustments  0.40  (0.52)  -    0.15  -    196.17  196.20  -   

As at 31st March 2023  164.68  2,816.60  213.24  236.29  32.15  -    188.53  3,651.50  -   

Net block

As at 31st March 2022  477.39  4,438.79  220.32  191.83  17.00  5.04  170.50  5,520.87  175.06 

As at 31st March 2023  547.13  4,271.43  199.97  215.83  16.14  5.04  217.53  5,473.07  0.72 

(i)   Assets pledged and Hypothecated against borrowings: (Refer note no.19 and 16)
(ii)  Vehicle Includes Rs. 127.02 lakhs (31st March 2022- Rs. 130.85 Lakhs) carrying amount are hypothecated against the finance scheme 

from banks.
(iii) For Capital work in progress aging refer note no 47.
(iii) There was no time overrun and/or cost overrun for the projects as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.
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2 (ii) Right of Use Assets

Particulars Leasehold Land Buildings  Total 
Gross Block
As at 31st March 2021  1,414.64  72.44  1,487.08 
Recognised as on 01st April 2020  -  -  - 
Deductions/ Adjustments  -  - 
As at 31st March 2022  1,414.64  72.44  1,487.08 
Recognised as on 01st April 2022  -  163.91  163.91 
Transfer from PPE  -  - 
Deductions/ Adjustments  - 
As at 31st March 2023  1,414.64  236.35  1,650.99 

Accumulated Depreciation  - 
As at 31st March 2021  0.04  4.04  4.08 
Additions  0.01  24.15  24.16 
Deductions/ Adjustments  -  -  - 
As at 31st March 2022  0.05  28.19  28.24 
Transfer from PPE  -  - 
Additions  - 65.13  65.13 
Deductions/ Adjustments  -  - 
As at 31st March 2023  0.05 93.31  93.36 

Net block  - 
As at 31st March 2022  1,414.59  44.25  1,458.84 
As at 31st March 2023  1,414.59  143.04  1,557.63 

2 (iii) Intangible Assets

Particulars Software Patent Total
Gross Block
As at 31st March 2021  30.54  20.43  50.97 
Additions  1.40  -  1.40 
Deductions/ Adjustments  -  -  - 
As at 31st March 2022  31.94  20.43  52.37 
Additions  -  -  - 
Deductions/ Adjustments  -  -  - 
As at 31st March 2023  31.94  20.43  52.37 

Accumulated Depreciation
As at 31st March 2021  22.30  8.59  30.89 
Additions  2.65  2.04  4.69 
Deductions/ Adjustments  -  -  - 
As at 31st March 2022  24.95  10.63  35.58 
Additions  2.48  2.04  4.52 
Deductions/ Adjustments  -  -  - 
As at 31st March 2023  27.43  12.67  40.10 

Net block
As at 31st March 2022  6.99  9.80  16.79 
As at 31st March 2023  4.51  7.76  12.27 
Note
(i) Patent is pending for registration with respective department.
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at

31st Mar 2023 31st March 2022

3 Investments

A. Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted, fully paid up)measured at cost

(i) Subsidiary Companies

2,999 Equity Shares (31st March 2019-2,999 shares) of MXP 1 
per each of Sunil Healthcare Mexico SA.De. CV. 

 0.10  0.10 

2,000 Equity Shares (31st March 2019-2,000 shares) of USD 10 
per each of Sunil Healthcare North America LLC

 12.91  12.91 

Provision for Impairment of Investment in subsidiary  (12.91)  - 

B. Investment in Mutual Fund (Unquoted) (valued at fair value through profit & loss)

4,99,975.01 Units (31st March 2021-Nil units) of Rs. 10 each of SBI Saving Fund (652G)  -  51.43 

2,49,262.15 Units (31st March 2021- Nil Units) of Rs. 10 each of SBI Balance Advantage 
Fund-Regular Fund

 -  25.69 

43,479.57 Units (31st March 2021- Nil Units) of Rs. 57.50 each of SBI Blue Chip Fund-
Regular Plan-Growth

 -  26.15 

 0.10  116.28 

a.   Aggregate amount of investments are given below:

      Aggregate book value of unquoted investments  13.01  13.01 

      Aggregate book value of quoted investments  -  103.27 

      Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments  (12.91)  - 

4 Other Non-Current Financial Assets

(Unsecured, Considered Good Unless Stated Otherwise)

Security Deposits  99.37  99.28 

Term Deposits with remaining maturity of more than 12 
months Pledged against Guarantee / Margin money

 100.00  - 

 199.37  99.28 

5 Other Non-Current Assets

Deposit under protest 0.81  0.81

Capital Advances  6.28  98.28 

Prepaid Expenses  17.94  14.87 

 25.03  113.96 

6 Inventories

(Valued at Lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value)

Raw materials  329.37  367.71 

Work in progress  354.77  262.59 

Finished goods  338.95  99.19 

Capsule - Scrap  5.83  10.06 

Capital Goods Scrap  0  0 

Stores and spares  216.80  253.88 

 1,245.72  993.43 

a. Inventories are hypothecated to secure short-term borrowings. Refer to Note No. 19.

b. As taken, Valued and Certified by the Management
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7 Trade Receivables
Trade receivables from related parties*  836.57  676.55 
Trade receivables from others  2,881.25  1,711.23 

 3,717.82  2,387.78 
Less : Provision for expected credit losses  167.14  187.92 

 3,550.68  2,199.85 

Unsecured Considered Good  3,550.68  2,199.86 
Trade Receivables - Have Significant increase in Credit Risk  167.14  187.92 

 3,717.82  2,387.78 
Less : Provision for expected credit losses  167.14  187.92 

 3,550.68  2,199.86 

* Refer Note No. 38 for Related party disclosures.

Ageing for Trade Receivables as on 31st March 2023 is as follows:

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from  due date of payments  
Not Due  Less Than 

6 Months 
 6 Month 
to 1 Year 

 1-2 Years  2-3 Years  More 
Than 3 
Years 

Total

1)   Undisputed Trade Receivables-
Considered Goods

 1,780.16  1,120.66  301.47  314.58  32.84  0.97  3,550.68 

2) Undisputed Trade Receivables-Which 
have Significant Increase in Credit Risk

 -    -    13.57  5.82  0.04  147.71  167.14 

3) Undisputed Trade Receivables-Credit 
Impaired

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

4)   Disputed Trade Receivables-Considered 
Goods

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

5)    Disputed Trade Receivables-Which have 
Significant Increase in Credit Risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

6) Disputed Trade Receivables-Credit 
Impaired

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  1,780.16  1,120.66  315.04  320.40  32.88  148.68  3,717.82 
Unbilled trade receivables is Nil as at 31st March 2023.

Ageing for Trade Receivables as on 31st March, 2022 is as follows:

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from  due date of payments  
Not Due  Less Than 

6 Months 
 6 Month 
to 1 Year 

 1-2 Years  2-3 Years  More 
Than 3 
Years 

Total

1)    Undisputed Trade Receivables-
Considered Goods

 1,515.64  173.49  146.00  117.68  169.87  77.18  2,199.86 

2) Undisputed Trade Receivables-Which 
have Significant Increase in Credit Risk

 -    25.28  -    15.69  7.20  139.75  187.92 

3) Undisputed Trade Receivables-Credit 
Impaired

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

4)    Disputed Trade Receivables-Considered 
Goods

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

5)    Disputed Trade Receivables-Which have 
Significant Increase in Credit Risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

6)    Disputed Trade Receivables-Credit 
Impaired

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  1,515.64  198.77  146.00  133.37  177.07  216.93  2,387.78 
Unbilled trade receivables is Nil as at 31st March, 2022.
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8 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash on hand  1.12  3.01 

Balances with Banks

On Currents Accounts  0.46  0.41 

 1.58  3.42 

9 Other Bank Balances 

Term Deposits having remaining maturity less than 12 months  207.63  200.00 

Term Deposits pledged against Guarantee / Margin money  227.24  119.20 

Less: Transfer to Other Non-Current Financial Assets (More 
than 12 months)

 100.00  - 

 334.87  319.20 

Deposit with Post Office  0.06  0.06 

 334.93  319.26 

10 Loans

Unsecured, Considered good

Loan to Subsidiary Companies*  -  30.32 

Unsecured Considered Credit impaired

Loan to Subsidiary Companies*  30.32  - 

Allowances for Loss

Loan to Subsidiary Companies*  (30.32)  - 

 -  30.32 

*Refer Note No. 38 for Related party disclosures.

11 Other Current Financial Assets

Accrued Interest*  32.65  31.07 

Other receivables  2.43  0.94 

Recoverable from Subsidiary Companies*  29.79  27.47 

 64.87  59.48 

Provision for Loss*  (9.97)  - 

54.9  59.48 

*Refer Note No. 38  for Related party disclosures.

12 Current Tax Assets (Net)

Advance tax and TDS deducted at source (Net of provision of 
income tax)

 -  7.10 

 -  7.10 

13 Other Current Assets

Prepaid Expenses  40.97  35.77 

Export Incentive Receivable  0.81  - 

Other Advances  82.73  50.40 

Input Tax Credit  -  10.15 

Others *  26.94  8.05 

 151.45  104.37 

* Others includes advance against expenses and advance to employees.
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14 Equity Share Capital
A. Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital                  

Authorized:
 
1,08,00,000  (31st March 2022 - 1,08,00,000) equity Shares of Rs 10 /-each.  1,080.00  1,080.00 
6,20,000 (31st March 2022 - NIL) Redeemable Non Cumulative and 
Non Participatory Preference Shares of Rs 100/- each #

620 620

 1,700.00  1,700.00 
Issued, Subsribed and Fully Paid up:                
1,02,54,750 (31st March 2022 - 1,02,54,750) Equity Shares of Rs  10 /-each fully paid up  1,025.48  1,025.48 

 1,025.48  1,025.48 
# For subsribed and paid up (Refer Note No 16) 

B Reconciliation of number of Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of year are given below:
2022-23 2021-22

 Numbers  Rs in  Lakhs  Numbers  Rs in  Lakhs 

Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  10,254,750 1025.48 10254750  1,025.48 
Equity Shares issued during the year  -    -    -   

Equity Shares outstanding at the end of the year  10,254,750 1025.48 10254750  1,025.48 

C Terms/Right, Preferences and Restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has single class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard 
to dividends and share in the company’s residual assets on winding up. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from 
time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion to his/its share of the paid-up 
equity share capital of the company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently 
payable has not been paid. Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to their forfeiture.

D List of shareholders holding more than 5% of the Equity Share Capital of the Company (In numbers)
Name of shareholder As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

 No. of Shares 
held 

 Percentage 
of Holding  

 No. of 
Shares held 

 Percentage 
of Holding  

Mr. Anil Kumar Khaitan  5,942,494 57.95%  5,942,494 57.95%

M/S Magnum Computers Private Limited  1,327,211 12.94%  1,327,211 12.94%

M/S Sunloc Foods Pvt Ltd  543,690 5.30%  543,690 5.30%

E No shares have been allotted without payment of cash or by way of bonus shares during the period of five years immediately preceeding 
the balance sheet date.

F Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters 
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters for Financial year ended on  31st March, 2023 is as follows:
Name of the shareholder As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 % Change 

during the 
year

No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding

Mr. Anil Kumar Khaitan  5,942,494  57.95  5,942,494  57.95  -   
Mrs. Renu Modi  270,600  2.64  270,600  2.64  -   
M/S Magnum Computers Private Limited  1,327,211  12.94  1,327,211  12.94  -   

 7,540,305  73.53  7,540,305  73.53 

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters for Financial year ended on  31st March, 2022 is as follows:
Name of the shareholder As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 % Change 

during the 
year

No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding

Mr. Anil Kumar Khaitan  5,942,494  57.95  5,942,494  57.95  -   
Mrs. Renu Modi  270,600  2.64  270,600  2.64  -   
M/S Magnum Computers Private Limited  1,327,211  12.94  1,327,211  12.94  -   

 7,540,305  73.53  7,540,305  73.53 
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As at As at

31st Mar 2023 31st March 2022
15 Other Equity

Capital Redemption Reserve  7.50  7.50 
Retained Earnings  4,844.94  4,151.36 
Revaluation Reserve on Leasehold Land (Right of Use Asset)  294.63  294.63 

 5,147.07  4,453.49 

(i) Capital Redemption Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year  7.50  7.50 
Addition/ (Transfer) during the year  -  - 

 7.50  7.50 
(ii) Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year  4,151.36  3,479.65 
Add: Profit/(Loss) during the year  697.69  677.68 
Add: Remesurement of definied benefit plan  (4.11)  (5.97)

 4,844.94  4,151.36 
(iii) Revaluation Reserve on Leasehold Land (Right of Use Asset)

Balance at the beginning of the year  294.63  294.63 
Addition during the year  -  - 

 294.63  294.63 

Total Other Equity  5,147.07  4,453.49 

16 Borrowings - Non- current
Secured
Term Loans
From Banks  593.11  802.44 
From Financial Institution  280.68  226.98 

Vehicle Loans
From Banks  41.53  7.50 
From Financial Institutions  54.07  11.70 
Unsecured
Term Loans
From Banks  -  7.89 
       From Bodies Corporate  31.00  31.00 
       From Financial Institution  -  5.77 
From a Director  161.00  318.00 
Redeemable Preference Shares (refer note C)  115.77  100.46 

 1,276.86  1,511.74 
Less: Current Maturities of Non Current Borrowings 
Secured
Term Loans
From Banks  252.94  209.33 
       From Financial Institution  106.07  164.59 

Vehicle Loans
From Banks 8.74 7.50
From Financial Institution  7.73  4.25 

Unsecured
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Term Loans
       From Banks  -  7.89 
       From Financial Institution  -  4.44 
       From Bodies Corporate   - 31.00

375.48 429.00

 901.38  1,082.74 
Notes:
A. Security
1   Term loans  of Rs. 873.79 Lakhs are secured by specific movable or immovable plant, property and equipment financed by lender.
     The same is also personally guaranteed by Chairman cum Managing Director and his relatives. 

2  Vehicle loan are secured by specific vehicle financed by respective banks and financial Institution.

B.  Repayment of term loans and Rate of interest
1. Term loans of  Rs. 62.39 Lakhs (31st March2022 - Rs. 104 lakhs) from financial institution is repayable in 18 monthly installment (Previous 
year-30 Installment) and carries interest rate ranging 9.5% to 11.5% per annum. 
Term Loan of Rs 62.41 Lakhs from a financial Institution taken during the year is repayble in 36 monthly installments starting from July 
2024 and carries interest rate of 10% to 12.30% per annum. 
Term Loan of Rs 155.88 Lakhs from a financial Institution taken during the year is repayble in 26 monthly installments starting from May 
2023 and carries interest rate of 11.50% per annum. 
2 . Term Loan of Rs. 279.11 Lakhs (31st March,2021 - Rs. 488.44 lakhs) is repayable in 16 monthly installment (Previous year - 28 Installments) 
and carries interest rate 7.4%  to 9.5%per annum.
Term Loan of Rs 314.00 Lakhs from a Bank  taken during previous year is repayble in 36 monthly installments starting from November 
2023 and carries interest rate of 9.50% per annum. 
3.  Vehicle loan of  Rs. 54.07 Lakhs (31st March,2022 - Rs. 19.20 lakhs) is repayable in 26 monthly installment (Previous year - 24 Installments) 
and carries interest rate ranging 9.05 % per annum (Previous year - 9% to 15% per annum).
Vehicle loan of  Rs. 41.23 Lakhs (31st March,2022 - Rs.  Nil) taken during the year is repayable in 50  monthly installment and carries interest 
rate ranging 7.65 % per annum.
4. Unsecured  loan of  Rs. 161.00 Lakhs (31st March2022 - Rs. 318.00 lakhs) from a director are repayable in the year 2024 and carries 
interest rate ranging 9.25% per annum.
5. Unsecured  loan of  Rs. 31.00 Lakhs (31st March2022 - Rs. 31.00 lakhs) from a body corporate in the year 2024 and carries interest rate 
ranging 9.25% per annum.

As at As at
31st March 2023 31st March 2022

C. Terms/Right, Preferences and Restrictions attached to Preference 
shares
(i)  5,82,500 (31st March 2019 - NIL) Redeemable Non Cumulative and 
Non Participatory
Preference Shares of Rs 100/- each*

 582.50  582.50 

Premium on above preference shares*  582.50  582.50 
* Refer Note No 38(B)(ii)

(ii)  Reconciliation of Preference Shares outstanding at the 
beginning and at the end of year are given below:

2022-23       2021-22
    Numbers           Rs in  Lakhs          Numbers          Rs in  Lakhs

Preference Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year
Add: Issued during the year 
Preference Shares outstanding at the end of the year

      582,500                582.50                    582,500                582.50     
           -                               -                                -                             -
     582,500                582.50                    582,500                582.50

The Company has issued 5,82,500, 0.01% Redeemable non cumulative preference shares of Rs. 100 each at a premium of Rs. 100 each and 
are redeemable at a premium of Rs. 100 each which are redeemable at a premium of Rs. 100 each upon expiry of 20 years from the date 
of allotement i.e. 4th July, 2019. These preference share holders have priority over equity share holders on dividend payment and capital 
repayment in case of winding up of the Company. The voting rights of the persons holding the Preference Shares shall be in accordance 
with the provisions of Section 47 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013.  

17 Provisions - Non-Current 
Employees Benefits  160.46  207.31 

 160.46  207.31 
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

18 Deferred tax liabilities (net)

 A. Movement in deferred tax balances

Particulars As at 31st 
March 2022

Recognized 
in P&L

Recognized 
in OCI

As at 31st Mar 
2023

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Property, plant and equipments and intangible assets  923.11  (2.78)  -  920.33 

Fair Value of Redeemable Preference Shares  296.15  (4.25)  -  291.90 

Others  0.91  (0.91)  -  - 

Sub- Total (a)  1,220.17  (7.94)  -  1,212.23 

Deferred Tax Assets

Accrued expenses deductible on payment basis  87.92  14.24  (1.58)  75.26 

MAT credit entitlement  211.59  (73.86)  -  285.45 

Carryforward business losses including unabsorbred depreciation  188.21  188.21  - 

Provision for loss allowance  52.28  5.78  -  46.50 

Others  (0.53) (15.76)  -  15.23 

Sub- Total (b)  539.48  (118.62)  1.58 422.44

Net Deferred Tax Liability (a)-(b)  680.69  110.67  (1.58)  789.79 

Particulars As at 31st 
March 2021

Recognized 
in P&L

Recognized 
in OCI

As at 31st Mar 
2022

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Property, plant and equipments and intangible assets  903.28  19.83  -  923.11 

Fair Value of Redeemable Preference Shares  299.85  (3.70)  -  296.15 

Others  0.65  0.26  -  0.91 

Sub- Total (a)  1,203.78  16.39  -  1,220.17 

Deferred Tax Assets

Accrued expenses deductible on payment basis  84.55  (1.07)  2.30  87.92 

MAT credit entitlement  65.55  (146.04)  -  211.59 

Carryforward business losses including unabsorbred depreciation  436.44  (248.23)  -  188.21 

Provision for loss allowance  63.94  (11.66)  -  52.28 

Others  (1.75)  (1.22)  -  (0.53)

Sub- Total (b)  648.73  111.56  2.30  539.48 

Net Deferred Tax Liability (a)-(b)  555.04  127.95  (2.30)  680.69 

 The Group has unabsorbed depreciation, carry forward business losses and unutilised MAT Credit accumulation as on the reporting 
date. As per the approved business plan and projections of the Company, the Group expects to utilize business losses, unabsorbed 
depreciation and MAT Credit within precribed/reasonable period. Further, in view of unabsorbed depreciation and MAT credit entilement, 
the Group has not exercised option under section 115 BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and continue to recognise the taxes on income 
for the year and defer tax as per the normal tax rate at which management expect to recover or settle the defer tax . Group will review the 
above position at each year end. 
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 B. Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss

Particulars For the year 
ended  

 31st  March 
2023

For the year 
ended  

 31st March 
2022

Current tax expense

Current year  167.49  152.39 

Income tax for earlier year  -  (0.91)

 167.49  151.48 

Deferred tax expense Charge/(Credit)

Origination and reversal of temporary differences  110.68  127.95 

 110.68  127.95 

Total Tax Expense  278.17  279.43 

 C. Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars For the year 
ended  

31st March 
2023

For the year 
ended  

 31st March 
2022

Deferred Tax (Charge)/Credit

Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation  (1.58)  2.30 

Revaluation of leasehold land (Right of use assets)  -  - 

 (1.58)  2.30 

D. Reconciliation of Tax expense

Particulars For the year 
ended  

31st March 
2023

For the year 
ended  

31st March 
2022

Accounting profit/(loss) before tax  975.86  957.10 

Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate @ 27.82% (Previous Year- 
27.82%)

 271.48  266.27 

Tax effect of:

Non-deductible expenses  18.78  5.59 

MAT credit taken related to previous year  (6.35)  - 

Changes in estimates related to prior years  -  (0.91)

Others  (5.74)  8.49 

 278.17  279.43 
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As at As at

31st Mar 2023 31st March 2022

19 Borrowings - Current 

Secured

Working capital facilites from a bank  1,593.73  1,174.74 

   Buyer’s Import Credit  650.83  735.78 

 2,244.56  1,910.52 

Current Maturities of Non Current Borrowings

Secured  375.48  385.67 

Unsecured  -  43.33 

 375.48  429.00 

 2,620.04  2,339.52 

Note:

(a)     Working capital facilities (includig Buyers’ import credit) from bank is secured by first charge by way of hypothecation of inventories, 
receivables, bills, and other chargeable current assets of the Company (both present and future) and extension of first mortgage / 
hypothecation charge on the entire Property, Plant and Equipment of Company except those non current assets financed by the 
body corporates . The same is also personally guaranteed by Chairman cum Managing director and a relative and carries interest 
rate of 11.15% per annum linked with 1 year MCLR (previous year - 9.4% per annum linked with 1 year MCLR). 

(b)      The other unsecured loans from bodies corporate and directors carries interest rate of 8.50%-9.25% per annum (Previous year- 12%-
17%). 

20 Trade payables
Total Outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and Small enterprises*  143.35  213.61 
Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro enterprises and 
small enterprises#

 1,295.09  614.57 

 1,438.44  828.18 

* For MSME disclosure, refer Note No. 41.
#  Refer Note No. 37 for Related party disclosures.
Ageing for Trade Payables outstanding as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:

Particulars Unbilled Not Due Outstanding for following periods from  due date of 
payments  

Total

 Less Than 1 
Year 

 1-2 Years  2-3 Years  More Than 3 
Years 

1) MSME  45.74  92.81  4.80  -    -  143.35 
2) Others  130.50  935.38  227.90  1.16  0.15  1,295.09 
3) Disputed Dues - MSME  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
4) Disputed Dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total  130.50  981.12  320.71  5.96  0.15  -  1,438.44 

Ageing for Trade Payables outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is as follows:
Particulars Unbilled Not Due Outstanding for following periods from  due date of 

payments  
Total

 Less Than 1 
Year 

 1-2 Years  2-3 Years  More Than 3 
Years 

1) MSME  -    97.76  115.80  0.05  0.00  -    213.61 
2) Others  197.85  165.90  231.44  0.92  3.69  14.77  614.57 
3) Disputed Dues - MSME  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
4) Disputed Dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total  197.85  263.66  347.24  0.97  3.69  14.77  828.18 
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As at As at

31st Mar 2023 31st March 2022

21 Other Current Financial Liabilities

Interest Accrued but not due*  14.70  8.09 

Capital Creditors**  14.29  53.83 

 28.99  61.92 

*  Refer Note No. 38 for Related party disclosures.

** Capital Creditors includes MSME Creditors of Rs. 3.98 Lakhs 
( 31st March 2022- Rs.15.38 Lakhs)

22 Other Current Liabilities

Statutory dues  54.35  27.46 

Advances from customers  7.81  228.68 

Interest Payable on MSME Dues 15.34  6.52 

Accruals to employees and others  102.63  96.71 

 180.13  359.37 

23 Current Tax Liability(net)

Current Tax Liability(net)  48.12  24.75 

 48.12  24.75 

24 Provisions- Current 

Employees Benefits  110.07  108.71 

 110.07  108.71 
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the Period ended

31st March 
2023

31st March 
2022

25 Revenue from Operations:

Sale of Products

Empty Capsules  11,179.46  11,636.72 

Other Operating Revenue

Export Incentives  3.49  0.57 

 11,182.95  11,637.29 

As per the terms of the contract with its customers, all performance obligations are completed at point of time since the Company has 
a right to receive consideration from its customers for all completed performance obligations. Accordingly, the Company has availed 
the practical expedient available under paragraph 121 of Ind AS 115 and dispensed with the additional disclosures with respect to 
performance obligations that remained unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) at the balance sheet date. Further, since the terms of the 
contracts directly identify the transaction price for each of the completed performance obligations, in all material respects, there are 
no elements of transaction price which have not been included in the revenue recognised in the Financial Statement. Also, there is no 
difference between the contract price and the revenue from contract with customers.

a) For Unsatisfied performance obligation (contract liabilities), refer note no.22.

b) The above revenues have been recongnised at point of time.

c) Payment terms with customers generally ranges between 0 to 150 days from the completion of performance obligation. Considering 
the same, the Company elects to use practical expedient as given in IND AS 115 “Revenue from contracts with customers”, hence there 
are no significant financing component in any transaction with the customers.

d) Sale of the products within india Rs. 8,446.72 lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 8,784.96 lakhs) and outside india Rs. 2,736.23 lakhs (Previous Year 
Rs. 2,852.33 lakhs are mainly through intermediaries.

e) For contract assets and balances, refer note no. 7.

26 Other Income:

Interest Income  21.09  21.63 

Unspent liabilities written back  24.01  26.33 

Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translation  78.29  58.42 

Provision no longer required, written back  2.00  41.93 

Gain on fair valuation of mutual fund  -  0.94 

Profit on sale of Mutual Fund measured at fair value  0.49  5.33 

Net Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment  8.98  - 

Miscellaneous Income  28.06  0.84 

 162.92  155.42 

27 Cost of Materials Consumed:

Raw Material

Gelatine  4,798.87  4,099.88 

Colour & Chemical  199.68  216.48 

 4,998.55  4,316.36 

Less: Transfer to Capital Work-in-Progress/Capitalised  14.41  26.22 

 4,984.14  4,290.14 
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As At

31st March 
2023

31st March 
2022

28 Changes in Inventories of Finished goods and Work-in-progress

Opening Inventories                                       

Work-in-Progress  262.59  597.25 

Finished Goods                                          99.19  132.06 

Capsule Scrap*  10.06  3.25 

 371.84  732.56 

Less: Closing Inventories                                                      

Work-in-Progress  354.77  262.59 

Finished Goods                                          338.95  99.19 

Capsule Scrap  5.83  10.06 

                                                              699.55  371.84 

Change in inventories  (327.71)  360.72 

*Includes inventory generated Rs. 0.92 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 2.49 Lakhs) on commissioning of 
new product line.

*Includes figures include Rs. 0.92 lakhs transfer on commissioning of new product line on June 
1, 2022.

29 Employee Benefits Expenses:

Salaries and Wages  1,310.27  1,259.08 

Contribution to Provident and other Funds  89.39  82.42 

Gratuity Expense  32.85  30.48 

Employee Welfare 46.53 52.91

 1,479.04  1,424.89 

Less: Transfer to Capital Work-in-Progress/Capitalised  1.33  5.92

 1,477.71  1,418.97 

30 Finance Costs:

Interest Expenses                   308.84  245.04 

Interest on lease liabilities  13.63  4.33 

Unwinding charges of Preference Shares  15.30  13.28 

Other Borrowing Costs  68.21  80.17 

Interest on Statutory dues  10.77  6.06 

 416.75  348.88 
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As At

31st March 
2023

31st March 
2022

30.2 Depreciation and Amortization Expenses:

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipements  631.35  601.73 

Depreciation on Right of Use Assets  65.13  24.16 

Amortization on Intangiable Assets  4.52  4.69 

 701.00  630.58 

31 Other Expenses:

Consumption of Stores and Spares  71.88  89.60 

Power and Fuel  934.55  889.97 

Job Work charges  316.74 375.72

Packing Materials  302.89  273.31 

Repairs to Buildings  41.21  34.06 

Repairs to Machinery  221.65  306.11 

Repairs to Others  31.74  37.63 

Travelling & Conveyance  102.44  42.60 

Legal & Professional Charges  117.52  98.94 

Rates and Taxes                                     10.47  18.66 

Rent                                                          8.83  16.51 

Insurance                                             71.40  71.20 

Auditors’ Remuneration - (a)  9.38  11.93 

Freight and Forwarding Expenses (Net)  511.13  552.08 

Selling Commission  5.66  26.04 

Claim paid to Supplier  -  172.55 

Donation  7.97  - 

Directors’ Fee  4.85  4.34 

Loss on sale/ of property, plant and equipment (Net)  -  0.13 

Bad Debts Written off 31.81 319.34

Provision for Expected Credit Loss  (20.78)  - 

CSR expense - (b)  27.90  11.24 

Provision for Impairment of Investment in a Subsidiary  12.91  - 

Provision for Impairment of Loan and Interest thereon to a Subsidiary  40.30  - 

Sundry balances Written off  13.44  150.54 

Miscellaneous  279.30  255.11 

 3,101.98  3,757.61 

Less: Transfer to Capital Work-in-Progress/Capitalised  0.69  11.28 

                                                                  3,101.29  3,746.33 
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As At

31st March 2023 31st March 2022

(a). Details of Auditors' Remuneration are as follows:

Statutory Auditors:

For Audit  3.00  2.70 

    For consolidation  0.70  0.80 

For Quarterly Review  1.50  1.50 

For Tax Audit  1.25  1.35 

For Company Law matters  0.40  0.33 

For Certification & Others  2.37  4.85 

Reimbursement of expenses  0.16  0.40 

 9.38  11.93 

(b) Details of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure:

 For the year 
ended 31 March 

2023 

 For the year 
ended 31 March 

2022 

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year  8.82  0.03 

b) Amount spent during the year:

i) Construction /acquisition of any asset  -    - 

ii) On purposes other than (i) above  27.90  11.24 

c) Shortfall at the end of year  -    -   

d) Total of previous year shortfall  -    -   

e) Reason for shortfall  -    -   

f ) Nature of CSR activities - -

g) Details of related party transactions in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant 
Accounting Standard

32 Earning per Share (EPS) of  Rs. 10/- each

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders (after adjusting impact on profit of 
dilutive potential equity shares) by the aggregate of weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year and 
the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into 
equity shares.

Year ended Year ended

 31st March, 2023  31st March, 2022 

Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company  697.69  677.68 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year for 
basic and diluted EPS

10254750 10254750

Face value of per share  10.00  10.00 

Basic and Diluted EPS (in Rs.)  6.80  6.61 
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33 Contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments

Particulars  As at 31st 
March, 2023 

 As at 31st 
March, 2022 

A  Contingent liabilities in respect of:

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

(i) Demand for interest and penalty on delay deposit of provident fund under the Employees provident 
fund and miscallaneous provisions Act, 1952, disputed by the Company

2.72  2.72 

In the Opinion of the management, the Company has fair chances of success in the  above case and thus chances of liability devolving on 
the Company is not probable and hence no provision in respect thereof has been made in the books.

B Commitments 

(i) Estimated value of contracts (net of adavnces) remaining to be executed on capital account 
and not provided for (Advances paid Rs.6.28 Lakhs in current year(31 March 2022- Rs.98.28 Lakhs)) 

 6.28  53.44 

C Others, not considiered as Contingent liability

(i) The Company has procured  certain capital goods in earlier years under EPCG Scheme at concessional rate of duty against commitment 
to fullfill export obligation. As on 31st March, 2023 the Company is contingently liable to pay differential custom duty Rs. 123.55 lakhs (31 
March 2022- Rs. 123.55 lakhs) on balance fullfillment of export obligation. In view of past export performance and future projections, the 
management is hopeful of completing the export obligation within stipulated time and expect no cash outflow on this account.
(ii) The Company has procured  certain raw materials under advance license scheme without payment of custom duty against commitment 
to fullfill export obligation. As on 31st March, 2022 the Company is contingently liable to pay custom duty Rs. 24.86 Lakhs (31 March 2022- 
Rs.140.20 lakhs) on balance fullfillment of export obligation. In view of past export performance and future projections, the management 
is hopeful of completing the export obligation within stipulated time, and expect no cash outflow this account.

34 Disclosure required under Schedule V read with Regulation 34 (3) and 53 (f ) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) 
Regulation, 2015 and disclosure required under section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013

Particulars of disclosures as required under Schedule V read with Regulation 34 (3) and 53 (f) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and 
Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015 and disclosure required under section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013:

Particulars Purpose Rate of 
Interest

Outstanding as at 
31st March 2023

Maximum 
Amount 

Outstanding 
during the year 

ended 31st 
March, 2023

Outstanding 
as at 31st 

March 2022

Maximum 
Amount 

Outstanding 
during the 

previous year 
ended 31st 

March, 2022

Sunil Healthcare -North 
America

General purpose __  -  30.32  30.32  120.07 

Sunil Healthcare -Mexico General purpose  29.79  29.79  27.47  27.47 

Note:

Above includes Rs. 29.79 (31st March, 2022- Rs 27.47 Lakhs) pertaining to expenditure incurred by the company on behalf of the above 
subsidiaries which are fully recoverable.
During the current year, the Company has provided Rs. 30.32 lakhs against loans as doubtful.
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Details of Investments made (At cost or FVTPL) as required by Section 186(4) of Companies Act, 2013:
Particulars As at  

31st March 2023
As at  

31st March 2022
Sunil Healthcare Mexico SA.De. CV. 0.1  0.10 
Sunil Healthcare North America LLC* 0  12.91 
*During the year, the Company has provided for impairment of Rs. 12.91 lakhs.

Detail of loans or advances in nature of loans granted either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

Type of Borrower 

As at March 2023 As at March 2022
Total loans & 

advances in nature 
of loans

 Percentage to total 
loans & advances in 

nature of loans 

Total loans & 
advances in nature 

of loans

Percentage to 
total loans & 
advances in 

nature of loans
Promoters 0  - 0 0
Directors 0  - 0 0
KMPs 0  - 0 0
Other related parties 0  - 30.32 100%
Total 0 0 30.32 100%

35 Unhedged foreign exchange derivatives and exposures outstanding at the year-end:

Particulars  Amount (Foreign 
Currency in Lakhs) 

 Amount 
(Equivalent Rs. in 

Lakhs) 

 Amount (Foreign 
Currency in Lakhs) 

 Amount 
(Equivalent Rs. in 
Lakhs) 

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Derivatives
Forward contract  -  -  -  - 
Open Exposures
Receivables

USD  20.46 1,681.88  15.32  1,161.74 
EURO  1.39  124.55  0.05 4.60

Payables 
USD  13.61  1,118.59  12.92  979.25 

36 Employee benefits
The Company contributes to the following post-employment defined benefit plans in India.

(i) Defined Contribution Plans:
The Company makes contributions towards provident fund to a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for qualifying employees. 
Under the plan, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit plan to fund the 
benefits.

Particulars For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Contribution to Provident Fund  89.39  82.42 

(ii) Defined Benefit Plan:
The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous 
service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last 
drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. Gratuity liability  
is being contributed to the scheme formed and administrated by LIC.
The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried out 
as at 31 March 2023. The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were 
measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
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B. Plan assets 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Fund managed by insurer 100% 100%

100% 100%

In the absence of detailed information regarding plan assets which is funded with Insurance Company, the composition of each major 
category of plan assets, the percentage or amount for each category to the fair value of plan assets has not been disclosed.

C. Actuarial assumptions 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at 
the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages).

Discount rate 7.45% 7.25%

A. Movement in net defined benefit (asset) liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit 
(asset) liability and its components:

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Particulars  Defined 
benefit 

obligation 

 Fair value of 
plan assets 

"Net defined 
benefit 

(asset)/ liability"

 Defined benefit 
obligation 

Fair value of 
plan assets

"Net defined 
benefit 
(asset)/ 

liability"

Balance as at opening date of 
the year

 210.05  40.24  169.81  182.92  19.80  163.12 

Included in statement of 
profit and loss

Current service cost  20.55  -    20.55  19.48  -    19.48 

Interest cost / (income)  15.22  2.91  12.31  12.34  1.34  11.00 

 35.77  2.91  32.86  31.82  1.34  30.48 

Included in OCI

Remeasurements loss / (gain)

  -Actuarial loss / (gain) arising 
from:

 -Demographic assumptions  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -Financial assumptions  (10.68)  -    (10.68)  (8.21)  -    (8.21)

 -Experience adjustment  16.34  -    16.34  16.53  -    16.53 

 -On plan assets  -    (0.04)  0.04  -    0.05  (0.05)

 5.66  (0.04)  5.70  8.32  0.05  8.27 

Other

Contributions paid by the 
employer

 -    13.91  (13.91)  -    32.06  (32.06)

Benefits paid  (12.82)  (5.98)  (6.84)  (13.01)  (13.01)  -   

 (12.82)  7.93  (20.75)  (13.01)  19.05  (32.06)

Balance as at year end  238.66  51.04  187.61  210.05  40.24  169.81 
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Expected rate of future salary increase Nil for the first 
year and 3% 

thereafter

3.00%

Mortality 100% of IALM 100% of 
IALM

Assumptions regarding future mortality have been based on published statistics and mortality tables.

The company expects to pay Rs 204.10 187.61 Lakhs (31 March 2022- Rs. 169.81 Lakhs) in contribution to its defined benefit plans in the 
next year.

D. Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, 
would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount rate (-/+1% 
Movement)

 222.82  256.83  195.23  227.17 

Salary Growth rate (-/+1% 
Movement)

 257.55  221.96  227.75  194.52 

Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are insignificant & hence ignored. Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions 
in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement & life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement. 

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation 
of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

E. Description of Risk Exposures:

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such Company is exposed to various 
risks as follow - 

A) Salary Increases- Higher than expected increase in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.

B) Investment Risk – Assets / liabilities mismatch and actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last 
valuation date can impact the liability / Assets.

C) Discount Rate - Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

D) Demographic risk :  This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that includes mortality, withdrawals, 
disability and retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not straight forward and depends on the 
combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting criteria. It is important not to overstate withdrawals because in the financial 
analysis the employee benefit of a short career employee typically costs less per year as compared to a long service employee.

37 Related party Transactions

A. Related parties and their relationships as identified by 
the Company

i) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and their relatives

Name Designation and Relationship

Mr. Anil Kumar Khaitan Chairman cum Managing Director

Mrs. Sarita Khaitan Strategy officer, Wife of Key Management Personal

Mr. Ishan Khaitan President Operation and Marketing, Son of Key 
Management Personal
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Mrs. Aanchal Khaitan Manager Business Development, Daughter in law of 
Key Management Personal

Mr. Kahaan Khaitan President Procurement, Son of Key Management Personal

Mr. Rakesh Mohan Independent Director and KMP under IndAS

Mr. Sanjay kumar Kaushik Director and KMP under IndAS
Mr. Harish Pal Kumar Independent Director and KMP under IndAS
Mr. Krishna Venkatachalam Rajan Director and KMP under IndAS
Mr. Bejon Kumar Mishra Independent Director and KMP under IndAS
Mrs. Mudita Chaturvedi Independent Director and KMP under IndAS

Mr. Pawan Rathi Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Santosh Sharma Company Secretary (till 10th August, 2022)
Mr. Satyendu Pattnaik Compliance Officer/Company Secretary (w.e.f., 12th August, 2022)

ii) Subsidiary Companies
Sunil Healthcare North America LLC 
Sunil Healthcare Mexico SA De CV

B. Transactions with the above in the ordinary course of business

Nature of Transaction For the year ended
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

a) Payments to Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives
(i) Short-term Employee benefits 190.06 178.07
Mr. Anil Kumar Khaitan 29.05  29.63 
Mrs. Sarita Khaitan 29.18  28.29 
Mr. Ishan Khaitan 28.64  28.93 
Mr. Kahaan Khaitan 28.69  28.93 
Mrs. Anchal khaitan 5.68  5.68 
Mr. Pawan Rathi 35.98 32.75
Mr. Santosh Sharma 14.87 20.14
Mr. Satyendu Pattnaik 13.11 0

Directors’ Sitting Fee:
Mr. Rakesh Mohan  0.85  0.77 
Mr. Sanjay kumar Kaushik  1.19  1.02 
Mr. Harish Pal Kumar  1.11  0.94 
Mr. Krishna Venkatachalam Rajan  0.51  0.43 
Mr. Bejon Kumar Mishra  0.77  0.85 
Mrs. Mudita Chaturvedi  0.43 0.34

excludes provision in respect of gratuity, compensated absences etc. as the same is 
determined on an actuarial basis for company as whole.

(ii) Rent, Repair and Maintenance  45.43  24.78 
Mrs. Sarita Khaitan  45.43  24.78 

(iii) Loan Repayament  157.00  363.00 
Mr. Anil Kumar Khaitan  157.00  363.00 
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(iv) Interest paid/payable  21.91 46.03
Mr. Anil Kumar Khaitan  21.91 46.03

Closing balance at the year end:
Mr. Anil Kumar Khaitan 730.58 884.26
- Loan outstanding  161.00  318.00 
- Salary Payable 4.58  1.26 
- Payable against redeemable non - convertible preference shares  565.00  565.00 

Mrs. Sarita Khaitan 1.51  1.50 
- Salary Payable 1.51  1.50 

Mr. Ishan Khaitan 1.59  1.63 
- Salary Payable 1.59  1.63 

Mr. Kahaan Khaitan 1.67  0.15 
- Salary Payable 1.67  0.15 

Mrs. Anchal khaitan 0.41  0.41 
- Salary Payable 0.41  0.41 

Mr. Pawan Rathi 1.56 2.73
- Salary Payable 1.56 2.73

Mr. Santosh Sharma  - 1.27
- Salary Payable  - 1.27

Mr. Satyendu Pattnaik 1.31  -   
- Salary Payable 1.31  -   

b) With Subsidiary Companies are as under
Nature of Transaction For the year ended

3/31/2023 31-03-2022
Sunil Healthcare North America LLC 53.20 -
- Provision for Impairemnt of Loan Receivable  30.32  -   
- Provision for Impairemnt of Interest Receivable  9.97  -   
- Provision for Impairemnt of Investment made  12.91  -   

Closing balance at the year end: - 40.23
- Loan  Receivable  -  30.32 
- Interest Receivable  -  9.91 

Sunil Healthcare Mexico SA DE CV 344.50 267.04
- Sales  344.50  267.04 

Closing balance at the year end: 866.36 704.02
- Trade Receivables  836.57  676.55 
- Advance Receivable  29.79  27.47 

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties: 
Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash.Terms and 
conditions for Loan refer Note No.17 & 34. 
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38 Financial instruments – Fair values and risk 
management

I. Fair value measurements

A. Financial instruments by category

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value category of the Company’s financial instruments

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022

Amortised 
Cost

 FVTPL Amortised 
Cost

 FVTPL 

Financial assets 

Investments - Non Current  -  -  -  103.27 

Loans - Current  -  -  30.32  -   

Trade receivables  3,550.68  -  2,199.86  -   

Cash and cash equivalents  1.58  -  3.42  -   

Bank balances other than above  334.93  -  319.26  -   

Others

Non Current  199.37  -  99.28  -   

Current  54.90  -  59.48  -   

 4,141.46  -  2,711.64  103.27 

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings

    Non-current  901.38  -  1,082.74  -   

   Current  2,620.04  -  2,339.52  -   

Trade payables  1,438.44  -  828.18  -   

Other - Current  28.99  -  61.92  -   

Lease Liabilities  157.48  46.16 

 5,146.33  -  4,358.50  -   

B. Fair value hierarchy

The company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices /net asset value (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the company can access 
at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices (unadjusted) included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Company has assessed that the fair value of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other current financial 
assets, trade payables and other current financial liabilities approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities 
of these instruments. Where such items are non-current in nature, the same has been classified as Level 3 and fair value determined present 
value. Similarly, unquoted equity instruments in subsidiaries company have been considered at cost less impairement, if any, and has been 
excluded in the fair value measurement disclosed below.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current 
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to 
estimate the fair values:

- Borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates.
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- The fair value of other financial liabilities, is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar 
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

-  The fair values of the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using DCF method using discount rate that 
reflects the issuer’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. No own non- performance risk as at 31st March 2023 was assessed.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31st March 2023:

Particulars As at 31 March 2023  Total 

Carrying Value Quoted 
prices in 

active 
markets 
(Level 1)

Significant 
observable 

inputs 
(Level 2)

 Significant 
unobservable 
inputs (Level 

3) 

Financial assets

Investments - Non Current

Other Non-Current Financial Assets  199.37  -  -  199.37  199.37   

Leasehold Land  1,414.59  -  -  1,414.59  1,414.59 

Total financial assets  1,613.96  -  -  1,613.96  1,613.96 

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings

Non-current -  Redeemable Preference 
Shares (including interest component)

115.77  -  -  115.77  115.77 

Total financial liabilities 115.77  -  -  115.77  115.77 

There are no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during the year.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31st March 2022:

Particulars As at 31 March 2022  Total 

Carrying Value Quoted 
prices in 

active 
markets 
(Level 1)

Significant 
observable 

inputs  
(Level 2)

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs 
(Level 3)

Financial assets

Investments - Non Current  103.27  103  -  -    103.27 

Leasehold Land  99.28  -  -  99.28  99.28 

Other Non-Current Financial Assets  1,414.59  -  -  1,414.59  1,414.59 

Total financial assets  1,617.14 103.27 0  1,513.87  1,617.14 

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings

Non-current - Redeemable Preference 
Shares (including interest component)

 100.46 - -  100.46  100.46 

Total financial liabilities  100.46  -  -  100.46  100.46 

There are no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during the year
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Significant unobservable inputs considered in Level 3 Fair valuation are as under:-

(i) Valuation of lease hold Land (right of use Assets) was carried out by Market Approach uses prices and other relevant information generated 
by market transactions involving comaprable assets and considers qualitative and quantitative factors (Comparable companies valuation 
method) by using market multiples or matrix pricing (comapare with Benchmarks) in financial year 2019-20. It reveals that similar properties 
are available for sale in nearby area in the range of Rs 12,500  to Rs 14,000 per Square Yard depending upon various attributes such as size, 
shape, location, frontage, frontage to depth ration, marketability, demand & supply of similar properties in the said locality.

(ii) (a) In the year of issuance, valuation of preference shares was carried out by independent valuer using NPV of projected cash flows based 
on discounted cash flow method, wherein NPV of the preference shares measured based on security available, statement of credit rating 
of instruments, trading in stock exchange, etc. 
The estimated fair value of RPS is Rs 67.98 Lakhs as on allotement date i.e. 4th July 2019 considering repayment period of 20 years and 
market interest rate of 14.20%. 
(b) Rate of return considered 14.20% which includes risk free return of 7.20% based on 20 years bond rate and  Risk preminum of 7.00%.  
Risk premium has been considered due to the reasons like lack of liquidty due to unquoted instruments, declining operations since March 
2019, customer concentration Risk, other business risk as per credit rating which has also downgraded.

II.       Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities,  comprise borrowings, trade and other payables and lease liabilities. The main purpose of these 
financial liabilities is to finance and support the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and 
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances that derive directly from its operations. The Company also holds 
FVTPL investments and investment in subsidiary companies measured at cost , unless otherwise as stated.

i. Risk management framework

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management 
framework. The board of directors has established the processes to ensure that executive management controls risks through the 
mechanism of property defined framework. 

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk 
limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed by the board annually  
to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards 
and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and 
obligations.

The Company’s Audit Committee oversees  compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the 
adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight 
role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results 
of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

ii. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial 
loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, 
including Loans, deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also 
considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which 
customers operate.

The Company establishes a provision for expected credit losses that represents its expected credit losses in respect of trade receivables. 
The management uses a simplified approach for the purpose of computation of expected credit loss for trade receivables.
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The Company has taken the credit insurance policy for its domestic customers to mitigate the financial loss in case default in payment. Risk 
on export customers is covered through the ECGC Ltd. 

The gross carrying amount of trade receivables is Rs. 3,717.82 Lakhs (31 March 2022 – Rs.2,387.78 Lakhs ).

Reconciliation of provision for expected credit losses – Trade receivables

Particulars 3-31-2023 31-03-2022

Opening balance  187.92  229.85 

Less: Reversed during the year  20.78  41.93 

Closing balance  167.14  187.92 

The following table provides information about exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss for trade receivables for customers for the 
year ended 31st March 2023:

Gross Carrying 
Amount

 Weighted-
Average 

Loss Rate 

 Loss 
Allowance 

Not Due 1780.16 0%  - 

Less Than 6 Months 1120.66 0%  - 

6 Month to 1 Year 315.04 4%  13.57 

1-2 Years 320.4 2%  5.82 

2-3 Years 32.88 0%  0.04 

More Than 3 Years 148.68 99%  147.71 

3717.82  167.14 

The following table provides information about exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss for trade receivables for customers for the 
year ended 31st March 2022:

Gross Carrying 
Amount

 Weighted-
Average 

Loss Rate 

 Loss 
Allowance 

Not Due 1515.64 0%  - 

Less Than 6 Months 198.77 13%  25.28 

6 Month to 1 Year 146 0%  - 

1-2 Years 133.37 12%  15.69 

2-3 Years 177.07 4%  7.20 

More Than 3 Years 216.93 64%  139.75 

 2387.78  187.92

iii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are 
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it 
will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are fallen due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring 
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through 
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic 
nature of the underlying businesses, Company treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit 
lines.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position (comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities) and cash and 
cash equivalents on the basis of expected future cash flows. In addition, the Company’s liquidity management strategy  involves projecting 
cash flows in major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios 
against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.
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Maturities of financial liabilities

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross 
and undiscounted, and exclude contractual interest payments and the impact of netting agreements.

Carrying 
Amount 

31st March, 
2023

Contractual undiscounted cash flows

Particulars On demand Less than 1 
Year

 1-5 Years  More 
than 5 
years 

 Total 

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 3,405.65 1,593.73   1,026.31 785.61 -  3,405.65 

Redeemable Preference shares  115.77  -  -  -  1,165.00  1,165.00 

Trade payables  1,438.44  -  1,438.44  -  -  1,438.44 

Other current financial liabilities 28.99 28.99 - -  28.99 

Lease Liability 157.48 -  89.76 84.08 -  173.84 

Total Financial  liabilities  5,146.33  1,593.73 2,583.50  869.68 1,165.00  6,211.91 

Particulars Carrying 
Amount 

31st March, 
2022

Contractual undiscounted cash flows

  
 

On demand Less than 1 
Year

1-5 Years M o r e 
than 5 
years

Total

Financial Liabilities

Non-current Borrowings
 

3321.800  1,174.74 1,164.78 982.28 - 3,321.80

Redeemable Preference 
shares

100.46 - - -  1,165.00  1,165.00

Trade payables  828.18 - 828.18 - - 828.18

Other current financial 
liabilities

61.92 - 61.92 - - 61.92

Lease Liability  46.16  - 24.41 21.75 46.16

Total Financial  
liabilities

 4,358.52  1,174.74  2,079.29  1,004.03  1,165.00 5,423.06

iv. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. 
Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk. Financial instruments 
affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits. The Company is not effected by equity price risk.
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a. Currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily with respect to the USD 
and small exposure in Euro . Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities 
denominated in a currency that is not the company’s functional currency (Rs.). The risk is measured through a forecast of highly 
probable foreign currency cash flows.  Currency risks related to the principal amounts of the Company’s foreign currency payables, have 
been partially hedged using forward contracts taken by the Company, whenever necessary.The objective of the hedges is to minimise 
the volatility of the Rs. cash flows of highly probable forecast transactions by hedging the foreign exchange inflows on regular basis. 
 
In respect of other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Company’s policy is to ensure that its net exposure 
is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates when necessary to address short-term imbalances.

Exposure to currency risk

The summary quantitative data about the Company’s exposure to currency risk as reported to the management of the Company is as 
follows:
Particulars As at 31 

March 2023
As at 31 

March 2022
 USD (US 

Dollar) 
 EUR (Euro) USD (US 

Dollar)
 EUR (Euro) 

Receivables 20.46  1.39 15.32  0.05 

Payables 13.61 - 12.92 -

Net statement of 
financial position 
exposure

 6.85  1.39  2.41  0.05 

The following significant 
exchange rates have been 
applied
Particulars Year end spot rates

 31 March 
2023 

 31 March 
2022 

USD 1  82.22  75.81 

EUR 1  89.61  84.66 

Sensitivity analysis

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD and EUR exchange rates, with all other variables 
held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit before tax due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities is given 
below.  The Company’s exposure to other foreign currency is not material.

Particulars  Impact on Statement of 
Profit and loss 

Impact on Equity, net of tax

 Strengthening  Weakening  Strengthening Weakening

31st  March 2023

USD (10% movement)   (56.33) 56.33 (40.66)  40.66

Euro (10% movement) (12.46)  12.46  (8.99) 8.99

31st March 2022

USD (10% movement)  (18.25)  18.25  (13.17)  13.17

Euro (10% movement)  (0.46)  0.46  (0.33)  0.33
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Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest 
rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the loan given and  borrowings taken.
Currently the Company’s borrowings are within acceptable risk levels, as determined by the management, hence the Company has not 
taken any swaps to hedge the interest rate risk.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the management of the Company is as 
follows.

Nominal Amount

Particulars 31st March, 
2023 

 

 31st March, 
2022

Fixed-rate instruments

Borrowings 287.30 381.84  

Variable-rate instruments

Borrowings 3,234.12 3,040.41  

Cash flow sensitivity 
analysis for variable-
rate instruments

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of borrowings affected, 
with all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, present 
rate is 7.12% (P.Y. Nil), the impact of change in rate is as follows:

Particulars Impact on Statement of 
Profit and loss

Impact on Equity, net 
of tax

 50  bp 
Decrease 

 50 bp 
Increase 

 50  bp 
Decrease 

50 bp 
Increase 

31st  March 2022

Variable-rate instruments  16.17  (16.17)  11.67  (11.67)

Cash flow sensitivity  16.17  (16.17)  11.67  (11.67)

31st March 2022

Variable-rate instruments  15.20  (15.20)  10.97  (10.97)

Cash flow sensitivity  15.20  (15.20)  10.97  (10.97)

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

The Company does not account for any financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, the company shall not be affected 
due to change in interest rates at the reporting date.

 39 Segment information

Information about geographical areas

The board of directors of the Company which have been identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), 
evaluate the Company’s performance. Based on identical products the Company deals in, which have similar risks and rewards, 
the entire business has been considered as a single segment i.e. Empty Capsules, in terms of Ind AS-108 on segment reporting.  
The Empty Capsules segment is managed on a worldwide basis, but manufacturing facilities and sales offices are primarily in India. 
The geographic information analyses, the Company’s revenue and non-current assets by the Company’s country of domicile and other 
countries. In presenting the geographic information, segment revenue has been based on the geographic location of customers and 
segment assets were based on the geographic location of the assets.
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Particulars For FY 2022-23 For FY 2021-22

 Within India Outside India  Total Within 
India 

Outside 
India 

Total

Revenue from Operations  8,446.72  2,736.23  11,182.95 8,784.96  2,852.33 11,637.29

All non current assets except trade 
receivables are located in India.

Major Customer

 Two major customers has individually contributed more than 10% of 
the revenue from operation of the Company.

 40 Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves 
attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the 
shareholder value.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of 
the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return 
capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital 
plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2023

 As at 
31st March, 2022

Equity Share Capital (Note-14)
  

1,025.48  1,025.48

Other Equity (Note-15)  5,147.07  4,453.49 

Total Equity (A)  6,172.55  5,478.97 

Non-Current Borrowings (Note-16)
 

 901.38 1,082.74

Current Borrowings (Note-19)  2,620.04  2,339.52 

Total Debts (B)  3,521.42  3,422.25 

Total Equity and Debts (C=A+B)  9,693.97  8,901.22 

Gearing Ratio (D=B/C)  0.36  0.38 

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial 
covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the 
financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants 
of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current year and previous year.
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 41 Based on the information available, as identified by the management there are certain vendors who have confirmed that they are covered 
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Disclosures relating to dues of Micro and Small enterprises under 
section 22 of ‘The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, are given below:

Particulars As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier 
as at the end of accounting years.
 - Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises  143.35  210.53 

 - Interest due on above  15.34  6.52 

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of   section 16, of the Micro Small and 
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment 
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year.

Nil Nil

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but   without 
adding the interest specified under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development 
Act, 2006.

3.74 Nil

The amount of interest accrued and remaining 
unpaid at the end of each accounting year, and 

15.34 6.52

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 
periods, until such date  when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small 
enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 
23 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

15.34 6.52

 42 Group information

Information about subsidiaries

S. No.  Principal Activities %  Equity  Interest Method of 
accounting of 
investment

 As at  31 March 
2023 

 As at  31 March 
2022 

1  Trading of Capsules 99.97% 99.97% Cost

2  Trading of Capsules 100.00% 100.00% Cost

43 The Company incurred Rs. 8.83 lakhs (31st March 2022-Rs. 16.51 lakhs) for the year ended March 31, 2023 towards expenses relating to short-
term leases.
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44 Movement of Liabilities covered under Financing Activities as per IND AS - 7 - “Statement of Cash Flows” is as follows:

Particulars Borrowings Lease 
Liabilities

Interest 
accrued but 

not due
Balance as on 31st March 2021  4,913.22  68.82  10.88 
Cash Flow movement  (1,503.53)  (22.66)  (329.78)
Non Cash movement  - 
- Interest Expense  -  348.88 
- Unwinding charges on preference shares  13.28  -  (13.28)
- Others  (0.71)  -  - 
Balance as on 31st March 2022  3,422.27  46.16  16.70 
Cash flows movement:
- Proceeds/(repayment) of liabilities  78.37  (52.60)  (400.31)
Non Cash movement  - 
- Interest Expense  -  416.75 
- Initial Recognition of Lease Liabilities  - 
- Unwinding charges on preference shares  15.30  163.92  (15.30)
- Others
 

5.49  (3.14)

Balance as on 31st March 2023  3,521.42  157.48  14.70 

45 Analytical Ratios

The following reflects the ratios and the data used in its computation:
Particulars Numerator Denominator Ratios % Change Reason for Varriance

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Current Ratio Current Assets Current 

Liabilities 
 1.19  1.02 16.02% Due to increase in Current 

Assets and decease in 
Current Liabilites

Debt-Equity Ratio Total debt  Shareholder’s 
Equity

 0.57  0.62 -8.66% Due to reduction of Debts.

Debt Service Coverage 
Ratio

Earnings 
available for 
debt service

Debt Service  0.51  0.49 5.56% Due to increase in EBITA 
and decrease in debts.

Return on equity Ratio Net Profits after 
taxes

 Avg. 
Shareholder’s 
Equity

 0.11  0.12 -8.62% Due to inrease in net profit 
after tax and increase in 
shareholder’s equity

Inventory Turnover Ratio Sales  Average 
Inventory 

 9.99  10.98 -9.05% Due to decrease in sales 
and increase in inventory.

Trade Receivable 
Turnover Ratio
 

Sales Average 
Accounts 
Receivable 

 3.89  4.67 -16.83% Due to increase in trade 
receivables. 

Trade Payable Turnover 
Ratio

Purchases Average Trade 
Payables

 6.54  5.67 15.39% Due to increase in trade 
payables. 

Net Capital Turnover 
Ratio

Sales Working Capital  24.45  147.27 -90.91% Due to increase in working 
Capital. 

Net Profit Ratio Net Profit Sales  0.06  0.06 7.16% Due to increase in net 
profit after tax and sales.

Return on Capital 
Employed Ratio
 

Earning before 
interest and 
taxes 

Capital 
Employed

0.22  0.28 -21.83%

Return on Investment 
ratio

Return on 
Mutual fund

Average 
Investment in 
mutual fund

 0.01  0.06 -84.14% Due to decrease in 
Investment in mutual fund.



136

SUNIL HEALTHCARE LIMITED

47 Additional regulatory information required by Schedule III to be disclosed in the financial statements:

i) The Company has no transaction and/or outstanding balance with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or 
section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956 as identified to the extent of struck off companies details available on the public domain.

ii) No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Amendment Act, 2016 and rules made thereunder.

iii) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.
iv) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.
v) There is no undisclosed income under the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 for the year ending March 31, 2023 and March 

31, 2022 which needs to be recorded in the books of account.
vi) The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

vii) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium:-
a) The Company during the year has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on 
behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries. 

b) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding 
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

viii) Borrowings obtained by the Company from banks and financial institutions have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were 
was taken.

ix) All charges creation and satisfaction thereof are registered with ROC within the statutory period.

48 The Company having borrowing facility from banks on the basis of security of current assets, the amount shown in quarterly returns or 
statement were derived from the unaudited and provisional books of account. As regards the disclosure of discrepancies, if any, envisgaed 
to be disclosed as part of additional information were not made due to unfinished summary of reconciliation in this regards. However, 
the management of company do not foresee any reasons for material discrepancies nerertheless figures submitted in quarterly returns or 
statement were provisional and unaudited in nature and subject to reconcilation.

49 Interest Payable on MSMSE dues were earlier classified under Other Current Financial Liabilities. Since interest payable on MSME dues is 
statutory in nature, these are not financial instrumnets, accordingly, in order to give more appropriate presentation, the Compnay has 
reclassified previous year figures, amounting Rs. 6.52 lakhs, to Other Current Assets to conform current year classification.

The Accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements

46 Capital Work in Progress Ageing:
Ageing for Capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:
Period Less than 1 

Year
1-2 years 2-3 years  More than 

3 years 
Total

Amount in Lakhs  0.02  -  -  0.70  0.72 

Ageing for Capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2022 is as follows:
Period Less than 1 

Year
1-2 years 2-3 years  More than 

3 years 
Total

Amount in Lakhs  174.36  -  -  0.70  175.06

*Project execution plans are modulated basis capacity requirement assessment on an annual basis and all the projects are 
executed as per rolling annual plan.

As per our report attached of even date  For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 302049E

Bimal Kumar Sipani Anil Khaitan Harish Pal  Kumar
Partner Chairman Cum Managing Director Director
Membership No. 088926 DIN No. 00759951 DIN No. 01826010

Satyendu Pattnaik Pawan Rathi
Place: New Delhi Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date: 29th May, 2023 Mem No.: F7736
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Sunil Healthcare Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Sunil Healthcare Limited (“the Parent Company”) and 
its subsidiaries (the Parent Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date, and a 
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated 
financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and 
fair view in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group 
as at March 31, 2023, the consolidated profit, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its 
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified 
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance 
with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. The 
components are not required to audit in their respective countries. Therefore, key audit matters reported below by us is included 
in the audit report on standalone financial statement of parent company audited by us. 

S.N. Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response 

1 Revenue Recognition 
The accounting policies for revenue recognition are set 
out in Note 1.7.H to the consolidated financial statements 
of the Company and revenue streams have been disclosed 
in Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements. We 
have identified sales cut-off to be significant because of 
the high volume of transactions and the varying sales, 
contractual, commercial and billing terms. Revenue 
recognition is susceptible to the higher risk that the 
revenue is recognized when the control of goods has not 
been transferred to the customers. 

How our audit addressed the key audit matter: 
We assessed the overall sales process and the relevant 
systems and the design of controls over the capture 
and recording of revenue transactions. We have tested 
the effectiveness of controls on the processes related to 
revenue recognition relevant to our audit. We performed 
sample testing on revenue and checked that the revenue 
recognition criteria are appropriately applied. We have 
also performed cut-off tests to ensure the Company has 
complied with proper cut-off procedures and revenue is 
recognized in the appropriate accounting period. We found 
the Company’s revenue recognition to be consistent with 
its accounting policy. We are satisfied that the Company’s 
revenue has been appropriately recognized and in the 
relevant accounting period.



138

SUNIL HEALTHCARE LIMITED

S.N. Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response 

2. Valuation of inventories
We refer to Note 1.7.I and 6 to the consolidated financial 
statements. The assessment of impairment of inventories 
involves significant estimation uncertainty, subjective 
assumptions and the application of significant judgment. 
Reviews are made periodically by management on 
inventories for obsolescence and decline in net realizable 
value below cost. Allowances are recorded against the 
inventories for any such declines based on historical 
obsolescence and slow-moving history. Key factors 
considered include the nature of the stock, its ageing and 
turnover rate.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter:
We have analyzed the ageing of the inventories, reviewed 
the historical trend on whether there were significant 
inventories written off or reversal of the allowances for 
inventory obsolescence. We conducted a detailed discussion 
with the key management and considered their views on 
the adequacy of allowances for inventory obsolescence 
considering the current economic environment. We 
have also reviewed the subsequent selling prices in the 
ordinary course of business and compared against the 
carrying amounts of the inventories on a sample basis at 
the reporting date. We found management’s assessment of 
the allowance for inventory obsolescence to be reasonable 
based on available evidence.

Other Information 

The Parent Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. We 
have obtained all other information prior to the date of this auditor’s report.
 
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the  consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated 
financial performance, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section  133 of the Act, read  
with  the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group and associates are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the respective companies included in the Group and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements by the Directors of the Parent Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are 
responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting 
process of the companies included in the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Group has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management. 

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the ability of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease 
to continue as a going concern. 

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation. 

•	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities or business activities within 
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements, of which we are the independent Auditors. For 
the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, financial statement of which have been certified by the 
management and therefore management remain responsible for the direction, supervision and preparation of the financial 
statements. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion based on management certified account and such other 
information provided to us. Our responsibilities in this regard are further described in the section titled ‘Other Matters’ in this 
audit report. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes 
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be 
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating 
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent Company regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance 
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter 
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements of two foreign subsidiary companies for the year ended March 31, 2023, whose financial 
statements include total assets of Rs. 513 Lakhs as at March 31, 2023, total revenues from operations of Rs. 211 lakhs, total net 
Profit/(loss) after tax of Rs. (30) Lakhs, total comprehensive income of Rs. (90) Lakhs and net cash inflows of Rs. 34 Lakhs for the 
year ended on that date included in the consolidated financial statements. There is no requirement of audit under the regulation 
of respective countries of their incorporation. These financial statements have been prepared, converted into reporting currency 
and certified by the management and our opinion on financial statements, in so far as it relates to amount and disclosures in 
respect of these foreign subsidiary companies, is based solely on the financial statements prepared, converted and certified by the 
management. These Financial Statements are not material to the Group.

The comparative financial information of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2022 are based on the previously issued financial 
statements prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards referred in section 133 of the Companies Act’2013 audited by 
the predecessor auditor whose report for the year ended March 31, 2022 dated May 06, 2022 expressed an unmodified opinion on 
those financial statements.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, 
is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and other financial information 
certified by the management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1)	 As required by the companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms 
of Section 143(11) of the Act, the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order are not applicable to the consolidated 
financial statement.

2)	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditors on 
separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph, we 
report, to the extent applicable, that:

a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and report to our auditors;
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c)	 The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, 
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report 
are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements;

d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
specified under Section 133 of the Act; 

e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors of the Parent Company as on March 31, 2023 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company, none of the Directors of the Parent company is disqualified as 
on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

f )	 With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to these 
consolidated financial statements of the Parent company and its subsidiary companies, since none of the subsidiary 
companies are incorporated in India, no separate report is being issued with reference to these consolidated financial 
statements of the Parent Company. Also refer Annexure B to the independent auditors’ report dated  May 29, 2023 issued 
on the standalone financial statements of the Parent Company regarding internal financial controls with respect to 
standalone financial statements;

g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the separate financial statements of subsidiary companies as 
also the other financial information of the subsidiaries as described in the ‹Other matter› paragraph:

i.	 The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its consolidated financial 
position of the Group in its consolidated financial statements – Refer Note 33 to the consolidated financial 
statements; 

ii.	 The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including derivative contracts; 

iii.	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Group.

iv.	 (A)The managements of the Parent Company has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, 
as disclosed in the Note 46 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned 
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) during the 
year by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities («Intermediaries»), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediaries shall, whether, directly 
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Company («Ultimate Beneficiaries») or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries

(B)The managements of the Parent Company has represented, that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as 
disclosed in the Note 46 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, no funds have been received by the Company 
from any persons or entities, including foreign entities («Funding Parties») during the year, with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest 
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party («Ultimate 
Beneficiaries») or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
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c)	 Based on such audit procedures, we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing 
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (iv)(A) and (iv)(B) 
contain any material mis-statement.

h)	 The Parent Company has not declared/paid any dividend during the year therefore reporting regarding compliance of 
section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

i)	 Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using accounting software 
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023, 
and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2023.

j)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid/provided during 
the year by the Parent Company to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act;

												            For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 302049E

Bimal Kumar Sipani
Partner

Place: Noida (Delhi-NCR)   Membership No. 088926

Date:	  29th May 2023                       UDIN: 23088926BGXBBZ3514 
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023
(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes As at 31st Mar 2023
(Consolidated)

As at 31st Mar 2022
(Consolidated)

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 2(i)  5,473.33 5521.259
Capital work-in-progress  0.72 175.06
Right of Use Assets 2(ii)  1,557.63 1458.843
Other Intangible assets 2(iii)  12.27 16.79
Financial Assets
(i) Investments 3  - 103.27
(ii) Other financial assets 4  199.37  99.28 
Other non-current assets 5  25.03  113.96 
Total Non-Current Assets  7,268.35  7,488.46 

Current assets
Inventories 6  1,360.43  1,105.49 
Financial Assets
(i)Trade receivables 7  2,841.04  1,889.18 
(ii)Cash and cash equivalents 8  58.67  26.60 
(iii) Bank balance other than (ii) above 9  334.93  319.26 
(v) Other financial assets 10  26.74  23.49 
Current Tax Assets (net) 11  -  3.84 
Other current assets 12  188.87  112.81 
Total Current Assets  4,810.68  3,480.67 

Total Assets  12,079.03  10,969.13 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 13  1,025.48 1025.48
Other Equity 14  4,574.21 3970.007
Total Equity attributable to holders of the Company  5,599.69  4,995.49 

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15  901.38  1,082.74 
(ii) Lease Liabilities  79.25  21.75 
Provisions 16  160.46  207.31 
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 17  789.79  680.69 
Total Non-Current Liabilities  1,930.88  1,992.49 

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18  2,620.04  2,339.52 
(ii) Trade payables 19
Total Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Total Outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

 143.35  213.61 
 1,331.79  649.74 

(iii) Lease Liabilities  78.23  24.41 
(iv) Other financial labilities 20  28.99  61.92 
Other current liabilities 21  183.41  558.49 
Current tax liabilities (Net) 22  52.58  24.75 
Provisions 23  110.07  108.71 
Total Current Liabilities  4,548.46  3,981.15 

Total Equity and Liabilities  12,079.03  10,969.13 
Significant Accounting Policies and Other Notes on Consolidated Financials Statements. 1 -46
The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our report attached of even date  For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 302049E

Bimal Kumar Sipani Anil Khaitan Harish Pal  Kumar
Partner Chairman Cum Managing Director Director
Membership No. 088926 DIN No. 00759951 DIN No. 01826010

Satyendu Pattnaik Pawan Rathi
Place: New Delhi Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date: 29th May, 2023 Mem No.: F7736
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Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss  for the year ended 31st March, 2023
(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes As on 31st, March 2023
 (Consolidated) 

 As on 31st March 2022
(Consolidated)

INCOME
I. Revenue from Operations 24  11,049.10  11,916.41 
II. Other Income 25  449.64  167.55 
III. Total Income (I+II)  11,498.74  12,083.96 

IV. EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 26  4,984.14  4,290.14 
Purchases of Stock in Trade  16.83  39.99 
Changes in Inventories of Finished goods and Work-in-progress 27  (279.67)  515.15 
Employee Benefits Expense 28  1,477.71  1,418.97 
Finance Costs 29  416.75  348.88 
Depreciation and Amortization expense 29.1  701.18  630.73 
Other Expenses 30  3,233.47  3,913.63 
Total Expenses (IV)  10,550.41  11,157.49 

V. Profit/(Loss) before Tax (III-IV)  948.33 926.474

VI. Tax Expenses:
(1) Current Tax
    Current Year  169.44  156.00 
    For earlier year  -  0.46 
(2) Deferred Tax  110.68  127.95 

VII. Profit/(Loss) for the year (V-VI)  668.21 642.06

VIII. Other Comprehensive Income 
(A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit & loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan  (5.69)  (8.27)
Tax relating to above item  1.58  2.30 
(B) Items that will be reclassified to profit & loss  (59.90)  (12.33)
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year  (64.01)  (18.30)

IX. Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VII+VIII)  604.20  623.76 

Earnings per Equity Share (nominal value of share is Rs. 10/-) 31
Basic & Diluted (in Rs.)  6.52  6.26 

Significant Accounting Policies and Other Notes on Consolidated 
Financials Statements.

1 -46

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements.

As per our report attached of even date  For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 302049E

Bimal Kumar Sipani Anil Khaitan Harish Pal  Kumar
Partner Chairman Cum Managing Director Director
Membership No. 088926 DIN No. 00759951 DIN No. 01826010

Satyendu Pattnaik Pawan Rathi
Place: New Delhi Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date: 29th May, 2023 Mem No.: F7736
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2023
(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  Consolidated For the 
Period ended 

31st March 2023 

Consolidated For the year 
ended 31st Mar 2022

A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Profit before Tax from continued business 948.33 926.47
Adjustment for :
Finance Costs 416.75 348.88
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 701.18 630.73
Reversal of provision for expected credit loss (20.78) (41.93)
Sundry balances written off 13.44 150.54
Net (Gain)/Loss on sale of Property ,Plant and Equipment (8.98) 0.13
Interest Income (21.10) (21.63)
Gain on fair valuation of mutual fund 0 (0.94)
Gain on sale of Mutual Fund measured at fair value (0.49) (5.33)
Bad Debts written off 31.81 319.34
Unspent liabilities written back (261.17) (26.57)
Unrealised (gain)/loss foreign currency transactions and translation/FCTR (113.38) (26.93)
Operating profit before working capital changes 1685.60 2252.76
Changes in working Capital:
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (254.94) 267.39
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and other Receivables (992.78) 195.46
Increase /(Decrease) in Trade and other payable 446.65 (345.14)
Cash generation from Operation 884.54 2370.47
Refund/(Payment) of Direct Taxes (137.77) (119.15)
Net Cash generated/ (used) - Operating Activities 746.77 2251.32

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets including CWIP (420.08) (904.01)
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 72.31 1.96
Investment in Mutual Funds 0 (100.00)
Sale of Mutual Funds 103.76 110.33
Movement in Term Deposits (115.67) 453.36
Interest Received  19.52 14.40
Net Cash Generated/ (Used) - Investing Activities (340.16) (423.96)

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Receipts from Non Current Borrowings  370.50 314.00
Repayment of Non Current Borrowings (463.68) (500.77)
Loan repaid to Director (157.00) (363.00)
Receipts/(Repayment) of Current Borrowings (Net) 328.55 (953.75)
Payment of lease liability (52.60) (22.66)
Finance Cost Paid (400.31) (329.78)
Net Cash Generated/ (Used) - Financing Activities (374.54) (1855.96)
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 32.07 (28.597)
Add : Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 26.60 55.20
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents 58.67 26.60

Components of Cash & Cash equivalents
Cash in hand 1.12 3.01
Balances with Schedule Banks
In Current Accounts 57.55 23.59

58.67 26.60
Note:
a)  The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the “Indirect Method”as set out in Ind AS – 7 “Statement of Cash Flows” 

As per our report attached of even date  For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 302049E

Bimal Kumar Sipani Anil Khaitan Harish Pal  Kumar
Partner Chairman Cum Managing Director Director
Membership No. 088926 DIN No. 00759951 DIN No. 01826010

Satyendu Pattnaik Pawan Rathi
Place: New Delhi Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date: 29th May, 2023 Mem No.: F7736
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Consolidated Statement of Change in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2023

(All amounts are in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

 No. of 
Shares 

 Amount  No. of Shares  Amount 

(a) Equity Share Capital & Reconciliation of number of shares 
outstanding at the beginning and end of the year :

Balance at the beginning of the year  10,254,750  1,025.48  10,254,750  1,025.48 

Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors  -  -  -  - 

Changes in equity share capital during the year  -  -  -  - 

Balance at the end of the reporting period  10,254,750  1,025.48  10,254,750  1,025.48 

(b) Other Equity

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive Income Total

Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve

Retained 
earnings

Revaluation 
Reserve on 
Leasehold 

Land (Right 
of Use 

Assets)

Foreign 
Currency 

Transalation 
Reserve

Balance at April 1, 2021*  7.50  3,080.00  294.63  (35.88)  3,346.25 

Profit/(Loss) for the year  642.06  -  642.06 

Other Comprehensive Income for the year  (5.97)  -  (12.33)  (18.30)

Total Comprehensive Income for the 
year

 -  636.09  -  (12.33)  623.76 

Balance at March 31, 2022*  7.50  3,716.09  294.63  (48.21)  3,970.01 

Profit/(Loss) for the year  -  668.21  668.21 

Other Comprehensive Income for the year  -  (4.11)  -  (59.90)  (64.01)

Total Comprehensive Income for the 
year

 -  664.10  -  (59.90)  604.20 

Balance at March 31, 2023  7.50  4,380.19  294.63  (108.11)  4,574.21 

* There has been no changes due to prior period errors.

Capital Redemption Reserve: It represents the redemption of Preference Shares and can be utilized in accordance with the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013.

Retained Earnings: Retained earnings are profits earned by the Group after transfer to general reserve and payment of dividend to 
shareholders.

Revaluation Reserve on Leasehold Land (Right of Use Assets): It respresents gain on revaluation of leasehold land (refer note no. 36 
(B) (i).

As per our report attached of even date  For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 302049E

Bimal Kumar Sipani Anil Khaitan Harish Pal  Kumar
Partner Chairman Cum Managing Director Director
Membership No. 088926 DIN No. 00759951 DIN No. 01826010

Satyendu Pattnaik Pawan Rathi
Place: New Delhi Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date: 29th May, 2023 Mem No.: F7736
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1.1 Reporting Entity

Sunil Healthcare Limited referred as “the Company” or “the Parent Company” is domiciled in India. The registered office of the Company 
is at  38E/252A, Vijay Tower, Shahpurjat, New Delhi. Equity shares of the Company are listed in India on the BSE Limited and the Calcutta 
stock exchange.

The Company has manufacturing plant in Alwar (Rajasthan), India . The Company is a manufacturer of Empty Hard Gelatin , HPMC 
Capsule Shells & Ayurvedic Medicines.

1.2 Significant Accounting Policies

Accounting Policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standards is initially adopted or a revision 
to an existing accounting standard.

1.3 Status of Compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed 
under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 as amended time to 
time. 
 
Accounting Policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued Ind AS is initially adopted or a revision to an existing 
accounting standard required a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. 
 
The Board of Directors approved the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 and authorised for issue on May 29, 2023. 
However, the shareholders of the Company have the power to amend the Financial Statements after the issue.

1.4 Basis of Consolidation

The Consolidated Ind AS Financials Statements incorporate the financial Statements of the Company and entities controlled by the 
Company. Control is achieved when only if the Group: 
• Has power over the investee; 
• Is exposed or has rights to variable return from its involvement with the investee, and 
• Has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns. 
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee, if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more 
of the three elements of control listed above. 

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Company considers all relevant facts and 
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including: 
• The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee. 
• Rights arising from other contractual arrangements. 
• The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights 
• The size of the Parent Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights 
holders.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the 
subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the Consolidated 
Consolidated financial Statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary. 

Consolidated financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar 
circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the financial Statements for like 
transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member’s financial Statements in 
preparing the Consolidated financial Statements to ensure conformity with the Group’s accounting policies. The financial Statements 
of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the Company, i.e., year ended on  
March 31.
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Consolidation procedure:

(a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses, other comprehensive income and cash flows of the parent with 
those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities 
recognised in the Consolidated Financial Statements at the acquisition date.

(b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of each 
subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill.

(c) Eliminate in full intra group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities 
of the Group (profits or losses resulting from intra group transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, 
are eliminated in full). Intra group losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the Consolidated financial Statements. 
Appropriate adjustments for deferred taxes are made for temporary differences that arise from the elimination of unrealised profits and 
losses from intra group transactions or undistributed earnings of Group’s entity included in consolidated profit and loss, if any.

1.5 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for the followings : 

- Non-current borrowings are initially measured at amortized cost.

 - Investments other than investment in subsidiaries are measured at fair value at each reporting date.

- Derivative instruments are measured at fair value

- Defined benefit plans and Other long-term employee benefits are measured at fair value at each reporting date.

- Revaluation of leasehold land (Right of use assets)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation 
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability, 
if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value 
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions 
that are within the scope of Ind AS 116 – Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such 
as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 – Inventories or value in use in Ind AS 36 – Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which 
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, 
which are described as follows:

- Level 1 : inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the company can access at the 
measurement date;

- Level 2 : inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; 
and

- Level 3 : inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

1.5 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian National Rupee (‘INR’), which is the Company’s functional currency. All amounts have 
been rounded to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

1.6 Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of the Company’s standalone financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the 
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised prospectively.

Judgements

Information about the judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts 
recognised in the financial statements have been given below:

- assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

- Classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets are held and assessment of whether the 
contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the 
financial statements for the every period ended is included below:

- Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

- Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which carry-forward tax losses can be used;

- Impairment test: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts;

- Useful life and residual value of Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible Assets and Right of Use assets; 

- Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow 
of resources.

- Uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic

- Assessment of recoverablity of receivables and advances and such assessment requires significant management judgement based on 
financial position of the counter-parties, market information and other relevant factors.

1.7 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements are listed below. Such 
accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these financial statements, unless otherwise indicated.

A. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash and Cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period, or 

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

- Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

 -there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

All other assets/liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and non-current liabilities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The 
Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

The Company has ascertained the operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and 
liabilities.

B. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Recognition and Measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. For 
this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which represents the carrying value of property, plant and equipment recognised as at 1st April, 
2015 measured as per the previous Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). Cost includes all direct costs and expenditures 
incurred to bring the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Borrowing costs incurred during the period of 
construction is capitalised as part of cost of qualifying asset.

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the 
item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. This recognition principle is applied to costs incurred initially to 
acquire an item of property, plant and equipment and also to costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of. All other repair and 
maintenance costs, including regular servicing, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. When a replacement occurs, 
the carrying value of the replaced part is derecognised. Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises major components 
having different useful lives, these components are accounted for as separate items.
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Subsequent Measurement

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that there is a future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will 
flow to the Company and the cost can be measured reliably.

Depreciation

Depreciation on all assets commences from the dates the assets are available for their intended use and are spread over their estimated 
useful economic lives. The estimated useful lives of assets and residual values are regularly reviewed and, when necessary, are revised.

Depreciation is provided on straight line method using the rates arrived at on the basis of estimated useful lives given in Schedule II of 
the Companies Act, 2013 or assessed by the Company on technical evaluation, as given below.

 Plant and Machinery                   

Capsule Manufacturing Machines         - 40 Years (single shift)

Capsule Printing Machines                   - 40 Years (single shift)

Electrical Installation                   

33KV Transformer                                 - 40 Years (single shift)

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress comprises of assets in the course of construction for production or/and supply of goods or services or 
administrative purposes, are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. At the point when an asset is operating at management’s 
intended use, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment. Costs associated with 
the commissioning of an asset are capitalised where the asset is available for use and commissioning has been completed.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise 
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment 
is determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement 
of Profit & Loss.

C Intangible assets 

Intangible Assets (Other than Goodwill) acquired separately are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment loss, if 
any. Cost includes deemed cost w.r.t assets acquired prior to April 1, 2015 which represents the carrying value of property, plant and 
equipment as at April 1, 2017 measured as per the previous Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).Intangible assets are 
amortized on straight line method basis over the estimated useful life. Estimated useful life of the Software is considered as 6 years and 
Patent is considered as 10 years.

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and changes, if any, are accounted for 
prospectively.

An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or 
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held-for sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than 
through continuing use.

Such assets are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. An impairment loss is recognised 
for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair 
value less costs to sell of an asset, but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously 
recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset is recognised at the date of de-recognition. 

Once classified as held-for-sale, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are no longer amortised or depreciated.
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D Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than inventories and deferred tax 
assets) to determine whether there is any indication on impairment. If any such indication exists, then the recoverable amount of assets 
is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use 
that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or Cash Generating Unit (CGUs).

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the 
estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or 
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment loss in respect of assets other than goodwill is reversed only to the extent that the assets carrying amount does not exceed 
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised 
in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

E Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets 
upto the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. 

The loan origination costs directly attributable to the acquisition of borrowings (e.g. loan processing fee, upfront fee) are amortised on 
the basis of the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method over the term of the loan.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs includes unwinding charges of redeemable preference shares.

F Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing 
at the date of the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated 
to the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss with the 
exception of the following:

- exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings included in the borrowing cost when they are regarded as an adjustment to 
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date of initial 
transactions. Non-monetary items measure at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when 
the fair value is determined.

G Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed in the year in which the related services are provided. A liability is recognised for the amount 
expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided 
by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined contribution plans

Employee benefits in the form of Provident Fund (with Government Authorities)  is defined as contribution plan and charged as expenses 
during the period in which the employees perform the services.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations 
being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by 
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using market yields available on government bonds.
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The effect of the remeasurement changes (comprising actuarial gains and losses) to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on 
plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in 
the period in which they occur.  
Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the 
period in which they occur, directly in OCI and such re-measurement gain / loss are not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss 
in the subsequent periods. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity. 
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in other equity and will not be reclassified to 
the Statement of Profit & Loss. Past service cost is recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net 
interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined 
benefit costs are categorised as follows:

• service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);

• net interest expense or income; and

• remeasurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in the statement of profit and loss in the line item employee 
benefits expense.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company’s defined 
benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of 
refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company has long term employment benefit plans i.e. accumulated leave. Accumulated leave is encashed to eligible employees at 
the time of retirement. The liability for accumulated leave, which is a defined benefit scheme, is provided based on actuarial valuation as 
at the Balance Sheet date, based on Projected Unit Credit Method, carried out by an independent actuary.

H Revenue Recognition

Revenue from sales of goods

The Company recognizes revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation in accordance with the provisions of contract with the 
customer. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price allocated to that 
performance obligation. This is achieved when control of the product has been transferred to the customer, which is generally determined 
when title, ownership, risk of obsolescence and loss pass to the customer and the Company has the present right to payment, all of which 
occurs at a point in time upon shipment or delivery of the product. The Company considers shipping and handling activities as costs 
to fulfill the promise to transfer the related products and the customer payments for shipping and handling costs are recorded as a 
component of revenue component of revenue.

The majority of the Company’s contracts related to product sales include only one performance obligation, which is to deliver products 
to customers based on orders received.

Revenue from sales of products is recognized at a point in time when control of the products is transferred to the customer, generally 
upon delivery, which the Company has determined when physical possession, legal title and risks and rewards of ownership of the 
products transfer to the customer or its agent and the Company is entitled to receive payment. The timing of the transfer of risks and 
rewards varies depending on the individual terms of the sales agreements.

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the transaction price. Transaction price represents net value of goods and services provided 
to customers after deducting for certain incentives including, but not limited to discounts, volume rebates, incentive programs etc.  
For incentives offered to customers, the Company makes estimates related to customer performance and sales volume to determine the 
total amounts earned and to be recorded as deductions. The estimate is made in such a manner, which ensures that it is highly probable 
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur. The actual amounts may differ from these 
estimates and are accounted for prospectively. No element of significant financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit 
term, which is consistent with market practice.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the 
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time proprtionate basis, by reference to the principal 
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through 
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividends

Dividend income is recognised when the company’s right to receive dividend is established.

Goods and service tax (GST) on above, whenever applicable, is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected 
on value added to the goods and services by the Company on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.
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I Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of manufactured finished goods and  work  in progress is determined 
by taking cost of material consumed, labour and related overheads. Cost of raw materials and packing materials, stock in trade and stores 
& spares are computed on weighted average basis. Purchases cost of raw materials and packing materials, stock in trade and stores & 
spares are net of input tax credits, rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 
business, less estimated costs of completion and to make the sale. However, materials and other items held for use in the production of 
finished goods are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or 
above cost. Provision for cost of obsolescence and other anticipated losses, wherever considered necessary, are recognised in the books 
of account.

J Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

Based on the best estimate provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event 
and it is probable (“more likely than not”) that it is required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount 
of the obligation at reporting date. 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from a past event, with the resolution of the contingency dependent on uncertain 
future events, or a present obligation where no outflow is probable. Major contingent liabilities are disclosed in the financial statements 
unless the possibility of an outflow of economic resources is remote. 

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

K Measurement of fair value

a) Financial instruments 

The estimated fair value of the Company’s financial instruments is based on market prices and valuation techniques. Valuations are made 
with the objective to include relevant factors that market participants would consider in setting a price, and to apply accepted economic 
and financial methodologies for the pricing of financial instruments. References for less active markets are carefully reviewed to establish 
relevant and comparable data. 

b) Marketable and non-marketable equity securities

Fair value for quoted securities is based on quoted market prices as of the reporting date. Fair value for unquoted securities is calculated 
based on commonly accepted valuation techniques utilizing significant unobservable data. If fair value cannot be measured reliably 
unlisted shares are recognized at cost.

c) Leasehold land

Fair valuation of leasehold land at revaluation date is estimated by the independent valuer in accordance with measurement principles 
as prescribed in Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS).

L Financial instruments

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets (except trade receivables) are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, except for those carried at 
fair value through profit or loss which are measured initially at fair value. However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant 
financing component are measured at transaction price.

Classifications and Subsequent measurement

The Company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value depending on the Company’s 
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit and loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost only if both of the following conditions are met:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.

- the contractual terms of the financial assets represent contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (‘EIR’) 
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral 
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance income in the Statement of Profit & Loss. The losses arising from impairment 
are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss.
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Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

Financial assets with contractual cash flow characteristics that are solely payments of principal and interest and held in a business model 
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets are classified to be measured at FVOCI.

Financial assets at fair value through Profit & Loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, are classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to classify a Financial assets, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTPL criteria, as at FVOCI. 
However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 
‘accounting mismatch’).

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit & 
Loss.

Equity Instruments

All equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. On initial recognition an equity investment that is not held for 
trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis.

All other Financial Instruments are classified as measured at FVTPL except investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries which are 
carried at cost less provision for impairment, if any.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised 
(i.e. removed from the company’s balance sheet) when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay 
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either  
(a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or  
(b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of 
the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it 
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially 
all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognize the transferred asset to 
the extent of the company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred 
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying 
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be required to repay.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the 
portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability 
assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and 
FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

With regard to trade receivable, the Company applies the simplified approach as permitted by Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, which 
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from the initial recognition of the trade receivables.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, amortised cost, as 
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of amortised cost, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
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Classifications and subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. 
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of 
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value 
through Statement of Profit or Loss. 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of 
recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains! losses attributable to 
changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains! loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may 
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expired.

M Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognised directly in equity or in Other Comprehensive Income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax 
payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted enacted at the reporting date. Current tax assets 
and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:

a) Has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and

b) Intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet and the corresponding 
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. 
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits 
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if 
the temporary difference arises from initial recognition of goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) 
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or 
the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. 

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company 
will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized 
as an asset, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and included in deferred tax assets. 
The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT entitlement to the extent there 
is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.
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N Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of 
the lease. The arrangement is (or contains) a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets 
and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating 
leases. Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs 
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over 
the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned. 
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred from the Company to the lessee. 
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income 
is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease. 

Company as a lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Company recognises a 
right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except 
for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these 
leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, 
unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased 
assets are consumed. Contingent and variable rentals are recognised as expense in the periods in which they are incurred.

Lease Liability

The lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. 
If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Company, the lessee’s incremental 
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an 
asset of similar value as that of right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

• Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments) payable during the lease term and under reasonably certain extension 
options, less any lease incentives;

• Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date;

• The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

• The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

• Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the Balance Sheet.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the effective 
interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The Company remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

• The lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is 
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

• A lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease liability is 
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

Right of Use (ROU) Assets

The ROU assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before the commencement 
day and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.  
Whenever the company incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is located or 
restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and measured 
under Ind AS 37- Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. The costs are included in the related right-of-use asset. 
ROU assets are depreciated over the shorter period of the lease term or useful life of the underlying asset. If the company is reasonably 
certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. The depreciation 
starts at the commencement date of the lease. Premium on Leasehold land is being amortised over the period of lease tenure. 
Leasehold land is revalued at interval of every 4 years to reflect current fair value.  Refer foot note “Revaluation Reserve on Leasehold 
Land (Right of Use Assets)” in Statement of change in Equity.
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The ROU assets are presented as a separate line in the Balance Sheet and details of assets are given ROU note under “Notes forming part 
of the Financial Statement”.
The Company applies Ind AS 36- Impairment of Assets to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any 
identified impairment loss as per its accounting policy on ‘property, plant and equipment’.

As a practical expedient, Ind AS 116 permits lessee not to separate non-lease components when bifurcation of the payments is not 
available between the two components, and instead account for any lease and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement. 
The Company has used this practical expedient.

Extension and termination options are included in many of the leases. In determining the lease term the management considers all facts 
and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option.

O Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

P Segment Reporting 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The 
board of directors of the Company has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker by the Management of the company. 

Q Government Grants

Government grants are recognised at its fair value, where there is a reasonable assurance that such grants will be received and 
compliance with the conditions attached therewith have been met.  
Government grants related to expenditure on property, plant and equipment are credited to the statement of profit and loss over 
the useful lives of qualifying assets or other systematic basis representative of the pattern of fulfilment of obligations associated with 
the grant received. Grants received less amounts credited to the statement of profit and loss at the reporting date are included in the 
balance sheet as deferred income.

R Earning Per Share (EPS)

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its equity shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit 
or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number 
of equity shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

S Standard issued but not yet effective 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 – Material accounting policies - The amendments mainly related to shifting of disclosure of erstwhile “significant accounting 
policies” in the notes to the financial statements to material accounting policy information requiring companies to reframe their 
accounting policies to make them more “entity specific. This amendment aligns with the “material” concept already required under 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its 
financial statement.

Ind AS 8 – Definition of  accounting estimates - The amendments specify definition of ‘change in accounting estimate’ replaced with 
the definition of ‘accounting estimates’. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial 
statement.

Ind AS 12 – Income taxes – Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021) - The amendment clarifies that in cases of transactions where equal 
amounts of assets and liabilities are recognised on initial recognition, the initial recognition exemption does not apply. Also, If a company 
has not yet recognised deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability on right-of-use assets and lease liabilities or has recognised deferred 
tax asset or deferred tax liability on net basis, that company shall have to recognise deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities on gross 
basis based on the carrying amount of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities existing at the beginning of 1 April 2022. The Company 
does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statement.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023
(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

2 (i) Property, Plant and Equipment
 

Particulars Leasehold 
land

Buildings Plant and 
Equipment

Electric 
Installations

Furniture 
and Fixtures

Office 
Equipments

Art 
Work

Vehicles  Total Capital in 
Progress

Gross Block

As at 31st March 2021  -  556.95  6,328.58  343.77  346.06  41.63  -  481.43  8,098.42  0.69 

Additions  -  58.28  461.95  51.74  47.80  11.39  5.04  12.79  648.99  786.04 

Deductions/ 
Adjustments

 -  1.57  0.67  7.08  9.32  611.67 

As at 31st March 2022  -  615.23  6,788.96  395.51  393.19  45.94  5.04  494.22  8,738.09  175.06 

Additions  -  98.75  307.28  17.70  58.93  3.50  -  161.24  647.40  249.39 

Deductions/ 
Adjustments

 -  2.17  8.21  0.23  249.40  260.01  423.73 

As at 31st March 2023  -  711.81  7,088.03  413.21  452.12  49.21  5.04  406.06  9,125.48  0.72 

Accumulated Depreciation

As at 31st March 2021  - 114.57  1,898.68  141.33  166.91  30.46  -  269.26  2,621.21  - 

Additions  - 23.27  450.67  33.86  35.09  4.54  -  54.46  601.88  - 

Deductions/ 
Adjustments

 -  (0.83)  0.64  6.46  -  6.27  - 

As at 31st March 2022  -  137.84  2,350.18  175.19  201.36  28.54  -  323.72  3,216.83  - 

Additions  -  27.24  465.91  38.05  34.93  4.41  -  60.99  631.53  - 

Deductions/ 
Adjustments

 -  0.40  (0.52)  -  0.15  -  196.18  196.21  - 

As at 31st March 2023  -  164.68  2,816.61  213.24  236.29  32.80  -  188.53  3,652.15  - 

Net block

As at 31st March 2022  -  477.39  4,438.78  220.32  191.83  17.40  5.04  170.50  5,521.26  175.06 

As at 31st March 2023  -  547.13  4,271.42  199.97  215.83  16.41  5.04  217.53  5,473.33  0.72 

Note:

(i)Assets pledged and Hypothecated against borrowings: (Refer note no.15 and 18)

(ii) Vehicle Includes Rs. 127.02 lakhs (31st March 2022- Rs. 130.85 Lakhs) are hypothecated against the finance scheme from banks.

(iii) For Capital work in progress aging refer note no 44.
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2 (ii) Right of Use Assets
Particulars Leasehold Land Buildings  Total 
Gross Block
As at 31st March 2021  1,414.64  72.44  1,487.08 
Recognised as on 01st April 2020  -  -  - 
Deductions/ Adjustments  -  - 
As at 31st March 2022  1,414.64  72.44  1,487.08 
Additions  -  163.91  163.91 
Transfer from PPE  -  - 
Additions on revaluation #  - 
Deductions/ Adjustments  - 
As at 31st March 2023  1,414.64  236.35  1,650.99 

Accumulated Depreciation  - 
As at 31st March 2021  0.04  4.04  4.08 
Additions  0.01  24.15  24.16 
Deductions/ Adjustments  -  -  - 
As at 31st March 2022  0.05  28.19  28.24 
Transfer from PPE  -  - 
Additions  -  65.13  65.13 
Deductions/ Adjustments  -  - 
As at 31st March 2023  0.05  93.31  93.36 

Net block  - 
As at 31st March 2022  1,414.59  44.25  1,458.84 
As at 31st March 2023  1,414.59  143.04  1,557.63 

2 (iii) Intangible Assets

Particulars Software Patent Total
Gross Block
As at 31st March 2021  30.54  20.43  50.97 
Additions  1.40  -  1.40 
Deductions/ Adjustments  -  -  - 
As at 31st March 2022  31.94  20.43  52.37 
Additions  -  -  - 
Deductions/ Adjustments  -  -  - 
As at 31st March 2023  31.94  20.43  52.37 

Accumulated Depreciation
As at 31st March 2021  22.30  8.59  30.89 
Additions  2.65  2.04  4.69 
Deductions/ Adjustments  -  -  - 
As at 31st March 2022  24.95  10.63  35.58 
Additions  2.48  2.04  4.52 
Deductions/ Adjustments  -  -  - 
As at 31st March 2023  27.43  12.67  40.10 

Net block
As at 31st March 2022  6.99  9.80  16.79 
As at 31st March 2023  4.51  7.76  12.27 
Note:
(i) Patent is pending for registration with respective department.
(ii) There were no temporarily suspended projects and/or no time overrun and/or cost overrun for the intangible assets under development 
as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st Mar, 2023    

(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)    

   As at 

                      31st Mar 
2023

31st March 
2022

3 Investments      

   

A. Investment in Mutual Fund (Unquoted) (valued at fair value through profit & loss)    

  Nil Units (31st March 2022 - 4,99,975.01 units) of Rs. 10 each of SBI Saving Fund (652G)                                
-   

                      
51.43 

  Nil Units (31st March 2022- 2,49,262.15 Units) of Rs. 10 each of SBI Balance Advantage Fund-Regular Fund                                
-   

                      
25.69 

  Nil Units (31st March 2022 - 43,479.57 Units) of Rs. 57.50 each of SBI Blue Chip Fund-Regular Plan-Growth                                
-   

                      
26.15 

                                 
-   

                   
103.27 

  a. Aggregate amount of investments are given below:    

  Aggregate book value of quoted investments                                
-   

                   
103.27 

     

4 Other Non-Current Financial Assets    

  (Unsecured, Considered Good Unless Stated Otherwise)    

  Security Deposits                         
99.37 

                      
99.28 

  Term Deposits with remaining maturity of more than 12 months Pledged against Guarantee / Margin 
money

                      
100.00 

                             
-   

                        
199.37 

                      
99.28 

5 Other Non-Current Assets    

  Deposit under protest 0.81 0.81 

  Capital Advances 6.28 98.28 

  Prepaid Expenses 17.94 14.87 

  25.03 113.96 

6 Inventories    

  (Valued at Lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value)    

  Raw materials 328.44 367.71 

  Work in progress 354.77 262.59 

  Finished goods 454.59 211.25 

  Capsule - Scrap 5.83 10.06 

  Stores and spares 216.80 253.88 

  1,360.43 1,105.49 

  a. Inventories are hypothecated to secure short-term borrowings. Refer to Note No. 18.    

  b. As taken, Valued and Certified by the Management    
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7 Trade Receivables    

  Trade receivables from others 3,008.18 2,077.10 

  Less : Provision for expected credit losses 167.14 187.92 

  2,841.04 1,889.18 

     

  Unsecured Considered Good 2,841.04 1,889.18 

         Have Significant increase in Credit Risk 167.14 187.92 

  3,008.18 2,077.10 

  Less : Provision for expected credit losses 167.14 187.92 

  2,841.04 1,889.18 

     

  Ageing for Trade Receivables - Non current outstanding as at March 31 2023 is as follows:    

 
Particulars

 
 

 Not Due 
 

 Outstanding for following periods from  due date of payments   

 Total 
    Less 

Than 6 
Months 

 6 Month 
to 1 Year

 1-2 Years 2-3 Years  More Than 
3 Years

  1) Undisputed Trade Receivables-
Considered Goods

1,722.09 950.75 71.98 50.67  3.33  42.22 2,841.04 

  2) Undisputed Trade Receivables-
Which have Significant Increase 
in Credit Risk

-   -    13.57 5.82 0.04 147.71 167.14 

  3) Undisputed Trade Receivables-
Credit Impaired

-   -   -                         -                         -    - -

  4) Disputed Trade Receivables-
Considered Goods

 -    -   -                       -                         -   -   -   

  5) Disputed Trade Receivables-
Which have Significant Increase 
in Credit Risk

                      -                         
-   

                      
-   

                      -                         -                                  
-   

                             
-   

  6) Disputed Trade Receivables-
Credit Impaired

-   -   -                         -                         -   -   -   

  Total 1,722.09 950.75 85.55 56.49  3.37 189.93 3,008.18 

  Unbilled trade receivables is Nil as at March 31, 2023.                                
-   

     

  Ageing for Trade Receivables - Non current outstanding as at March 31 2022 is as follows:    

  Particulars
 
 
 

 Not Due

 Outstanding for following periods from  due date of payments   

 Total    Less 
Than 6 
Months

 6 Month 
to 1 Year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years  More Than 
3 Years

  1) Undisputed Trade Receivables-
Considered Goods

1,722.04 79.34 20.88                  4.75                
36.19 

25.98 1,889.18 

  2) Undisputed Trade Receivables-
Which have Significant Increase 
in Credit Risk

-   25.28 -   15.69                  
7.20 

139.75 187.92 
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  3) Undisputed Trade Receivables-
Credit Impaired

-       -   -                         -                         -   -   -   

  4) Disputed Trade Receivables-
Considered Goods

                      -         -    -                         -                         -       -     -   

  5) Disputed Trade Receivables-
Which have Significant Increase 
in Credit Risk

                      -    -      -                         -                         -     -        -   

  6) Disputed Trade Receivables-
Credit Impaired

                      -         -       -                         -                         -       -      -   

  Total 1,722.04 104.62 20.88 20.44     43.39 165.73 2,077.10 

  Unbilled trade receivables is Nil as at March 31, 2022.    

     

8 Cash and Cash Equivalents    

  Cash on hand 1.12 3.01 

  Balances with Banks    

      On Currents Accounts 57.55 23.59 

  58.67 26.60 

9 Other Bank Balances    

  Term Deposits having remaining maturity less than 12 months 207.63 -   

  Term Deposits pledged against Guarantee / Margin money 227.24 319.20 

  Less: Transfer to Other Non-Current Financial Assets (More than 12 months) 100.00 -   

  334.87 319.20 

  Deposit with Post Office 0.06 0.06 

  334.93 319.26 

     

10 Other Current Financial Assets    

  Accrued Interest 22.68 21.16 

  Other receivables 2.43 0.94 

  Security deposits 1.63 1.39 

  26.74 23.49 

     

11 Current Tax Assets (Net)    

  Advance tax and TDS deducted at source (Net of provision of income tax) -   3.84 

  -   3.84 

     

12 Other Current Assets    

  Prepaid Expenses 40.97 35.77 

  Export Incentive Receivable 0.81 -   

  Other Advances 97.48 53.79 

  Input Tax Credit 22.67 15.20 

  Others * 26.94 8.05 

  188.87 112.81 

  * Others includes advance against expenses and advance to employees.      
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13 Equity Share Capital    

A. Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital                     

  Authorized:    

  1,08,00,000  (31st March 2022 - 1,08,00,000) equity Shares of Rs 10 /-each. 1,080.00 1,080.00 

  6,20,000 (31st March 2022 - 6,20,000) Redeemable Non Cumulative and Non Participatory Preference 
Shares of Rs 100/- each #

620.00 620.00 

     

  1,700.00 1,700.00 

  Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:                   

  1,02,54,750 (31st March 2022 - 1,02,54,750) Equity Shares of Rs  10 /-each fully paid up 1,025.48 1,025.48 

  1,025.48 1,025.48 

  # For subscribed and paid up (Refer Note No 15C)    

     

B Reconciliation of Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of year are given 
below:

   

     

                   2022-23  2021-22 

                   Numbers  Rs in  
Lakhs 

 Numbers  Rs in 
Lakhs

  Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year    1,02,54,750  1,025.48 10254750  1,025.48 

  Addition during the year                       -                         -      

  Equity Shares outstanding at the end of the year       1,02,54,750 1,025.48 10254750 1025.48

     

C Terms/Right, Preferences and Restrictions attached to equity shares    

  The Parent Company has single class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally 
with regard to dividends and share in the Group’s residual assets on winding up. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as 
declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion to his/its share 
of the paid-up equity share capital of the Parent Company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or 
other sums presently payable has not been paid. Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to their forfeiture.

 

 

D List of shareholders holding more than 5% of the Equity Share Capital of the Parent Company (In numbers)  

                   As at 31st March 2023  As at 31st March 2022 

  Name of shareholder
 

       No. of Shares 
held 

 Percent-
age of 

Holding  

 No. of 
Shares held 

 Percent-
age of 

Holding  

  Mr. Anil Kumar Khaitan                59,42,494 57.95% 59,42,494 57.95%

  M/S Magnum Computers Private Limited            13,27,211 12.94% 13,27,211 12.94%

  M/S Sunloc Foods Pvt Ltd                  5,43,690 5.30% 5,43,690 5.30%

     

E No shares have been allotted without payment of cash or by way of bonus shares during the period of five years immediately preceed-
ing the balance sheet date.
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F Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters    

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters for Financial year ended on  31st March, 2023 is as follows:    

Name of the shareholder

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 % Change 
during the 

yearNo. of 
Shares

% of Holding No. of 
Shares

% of Hold-
ing

Mr. Anil Kumar Khaitan 59,42,494                57.95  59,42,494 57.95 -   

Mrs. Renu Modi 2,70,600                  2.64    2,70,600 2.64 -   

M/S Magnum Computers Private Limited 13,27,211                12.94  13,27,211 12.94 -   

75,40,305                73.53   75,40,305 73.53 - 

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters for Financial year ended on  31st March, 2022 is as follows:    

Name of the shareholder

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 % Change 
during the 

yearNo. of 
Shares

% of Holding No. of 
Shares

% of Hold-
ing

Mr. Anil Kumar Khaitan 59,42,494                57.95   59,42,494 57.95 -   

Mrs. Renu Modi 2,70,600                  2.64    2,70,600 2.64 -   

M/S Magnum Computers Private Limited 13,27,211                12.94     13,27,211 12.94 -   

75,40,305                73.53    75,40,305 73.53 - 

   

14 Other Equity    

(i) Capital Redemption Reserve    

  Balance at the beginning of the year 7.50 7.50 

  Addition/ (Transfer) during the year    

  7.50 7.50 

(ii) Retained Earnings    

  Balance at the beginning of the year 3,716.09 3,080.00 

  Add: Profit/(Loss) during the year 668.21 642.06 

  Add: Remesurement of definied benefit plan (4.11) (5.97)

  4,380.19 3,716.09 

  Total Reserve and Surplus (i to ii) 4,387.69 3,723.59 

     

(iii) Other Comprehensive Income    

  Revaluation Reserve on Leasehold Land (Right of Use Asset)/FCTR    

  Balance at the beginning of the year 294.63 294.63 

  Addition during the year   -   

  294.63 294.63 

  Foreign Currency Translation Reserve    

  Balance at the beginning of the year (48.21) (35.88)

  Addition during the year (59.90) (12.33)

  Balance at the end of the year (108.11) (48.21)
     
  Total Other Equity 4,574.21 3,970.01 
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15 Borrowings - Non- current    

  Secured    

  Term Loans    

  From Bank 593.11 802.44 

  From Financial Institution 280.68 226.98 

     

  Vehicle Loans    

  From Bank 41.23 7.50 

  From Financial Institution 54.07 11.70 

     

  Unsecured    

  Term Loans    

  From Bank -   7.89 

         From Body Corporate 31.00 31.00 

         From Financial Institution -   5.77 

  From a Director 161.00 318.00 

  Redeemable Preference Shares (refer note C) 115.77 100.46 

  1,276.86 1,511.74 

  Less: Current Maturities of Non Current Borrowings    

  Secured    

  Term Loans    

  From Bank 252.94 209.33 

         From Financial Institution 106.07 164.59 

     

  Vehicle Loans    

  From Bank 16.47 7.50 

         From Financial Institution -   4.25 

  Unsecured    

  Term Loans    

  From Bank -   7.89 

         From Financial Institution -   4.44 

         From Body Corporate -   31.00 

     

  375.48 429.00 

     

  901.38 1,082.74 

  Notes:  

  A. Security
  1 Term loans  of Rs. 873.79 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 1,029.42 Lakhs) are secured by specific movable or immovable plant, property 

and equipment financed by lender. The same is also personally guaranteed by Chairman cum Managing Director and his rela-
tives. 

  2 Vehicle loan are secured by specific vehicle financed by respective banks and financial Institution.
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  B. Repayment of term loans and Rate of interest

  1 Term loans of  Rs. 62.39 Lakhs (31st March2022 - Rs. 104 lakhs) from financial institution is repayable in 18 monthly installment 
(Previous year-30 Installment) and carries interest rate ranging 9.5% to 11.5% per annum. 

  Term Loan of Rs 62.40 Lakhs from a financial Institution taken during the year is repayble in 36 monthly installments starting from 
July 2024 and carries interest rate of 10% to 12.30% per annum. 

  Term Loan of Rs 155.88 Lakhs from a financial Institution taken during the year is repayble in 26 monthly installments starting 
from May 2023 and carries interest rate of 11.50% per annum. 

  2 Term Loan of Rs. 279.11 Lakhs (31st March,2021 - Rs. 488.44 lakhs) is repayable in 16 monthly installment (Previous year - 28 
Installments) and carries interest rate 7.4%  to 9.5%per annum.

  Term Loan of Rs 314.00 Lakhs from a Bank  taken during the year is repayble in 36 monthly installments starting from November 
2023 and carries interest rate of 9.50% per annum. 

  3 Vehicle loan of  Rs. 54.07 Lakhs (31st March,2022 - Rs. 19.20 lakhs) is repayable in 26 monthly installment (Previous year - 24 
Installments) and carries interest rate ranging 9.05 % per annum (Previous year - 9% to 15% per annum).

  Vehicle loan of  Rs. 41.23 Lakhs (31st March,2022 - Rs.  Nil) taken during the year is repayable in 50  monthly installment and car-
ries interest rate ranging 7.65 % per annum.

  4  Unsecured  loan of  Rs. 161.00 Lakhs (31st March2022 - Rs. 318.00 lakhs) from a director are repayable in the year 2024 and carries 
interest rate ranging 9.25% per annum.

  5  Unsecured  loan of  Rs. 31.00 Lakhs (31st March2022 - Rs. 31.00 lakhs) from a body corporate in the year 2024 and carries interest 
rate ranging 9.25% per annum.

 

   As at 

  31st March 
2023

31st March 
2022

  C. Terms/Right, Preferences and Restrictions attached to Preference shares

  (i) 5,82,500 (31st March 2022 - 5,82,500) Redeemable Non Cumulative and Non Participatory

  Preference Shares of Rs 100/- each* 582.50 582.50 

  Premium on above preference shares* 582.50 582.50 

  * Refer Note No 36(B))(ii)    

     

  (ii) Reconciliation of Preference Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of year are given below:
 

 

                 2022-23  2021-22 

                 Numbers  Rs in Lakhs  Numbers Rs in Lakhs 

  Preference Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year          5,82,500   582.50 582500 1,025.48 

  Add: Issued during the year                       -                         -      

  Preference Shares outstanding at the end of the year
 

         5,82,500 582.50 5,82,500 1025.48

  The Parent Company has issued 5,82,500, 0.01% Redeemable non cumulative preference shares of Rs. 100 each at a premium of 
Rs. 100 each and are redeemable at a premium of Rs. 100 each upon expiry of 20 years from the date of allotement i.e. 4th July, 
2019. These preference share holders have priority over equity share holders on dividend payment and capital repayment in case 
of winding up of the Parent Company. The voting rights of the persons holding the Preference Shares shall be in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 47 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013.  
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16 Provisions - Non-Current    

  Employees Benefits 160.46 207.31 

  160.46 207.31 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2023  

(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)  

17 Deferred tax liabilities (net)  

 A. Movement in deferred tax balances  

  Particulars               As at 31st March 
2022

Recognized in 
P&L

Recognized in 
OCI

As at 31st Mar 
2023

  Deferred Tax Liabilities  

  Property, plant and equipments, intangible assets and right 
of use assets

           923.11                 (2.70)                            -                      920.41 

  Fair Value of Redeemable Preference Shares            296.15                 (4.25)                            -                      291.90 

  Others                 0.91                 (0.91)                            -                               -   

  Sub- Total (a)        1,220.17                 (7.86)                            -                  1,212.31 

  Deferred Tax Assets  

  Accrued expenses deductible on payment basis              87.92                 14.24               (1.58)                      75.26 

  MAT credit entitlement            211.59               (73.86)                            -                      285.45 

  Carryforward business losses including unabsorbred 
depreciation

           188.21               188.21                             -   

  Provision for loss allowance              52.28                    5.78                            -                        46.50 

  Others              (0.53)               (15.83)                            -                        15.30 

  Sub- Total (b)            539.48               118.54               (1.58)                    422.52 

   

  Net Deferred Tax Liability (a)-(b)            680.69               110.68                  1.58                    789.79 

 

 
Particulars

              As at 31st March 
2021

Recognized in 
P&L

Recognized in 
OCI

As at 31st Mar 
2022

  Deferred Tax Liabilities  

  Deferred Tax Liabilities            903.28                 19.83                            -                      923.11 

  Fair Value of Redeemable Preference Shares            299.85                 (3.70)                            -                      296.15 

  Others                 0.65                    0.26                            -                           0.91 

  Sub- Total (a)        1,203.78                 16.39                            -                  1,220.17 

  Deferred Tax Assets  

  Accrued expenses deductible on payment basis              84.55                 (1.07)             (2.30)                      87.92 

  MAT credit entitlement              65.55             (146.04)                            -                      211.59 

  Carryforward business losses including unabsorbred 
depreciation

           436.44               248.23                            -                      188.21 

  Provision for loss allowance              63.94                 11.66                            -                        52.28 

  Others              (1.75)                 (1.22)                            -                        (0.53)

  Sub- Total (b)            648.74               111.56              (2.30)                    539.48 
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  Net Deferred Tax Liability (a)-(b)            555.04               127.95                 2.30                    680.69 

   The Group has unabsorbed depreciation, carry forward business losses and unutilised MAT Credit accumulation as on the reporting date. 
As per the approved business plan and projections of the Group, the Group expects to utilize business losses, unabsorbed depreciation and 
MAT Credit within precribed/reasonable period. Further, in view of unabsorbed depreciation and MAT credit entilement, the Group has not 
exercised option under section 115 BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and continue to recognise the taxes on income for the year and defer 
tax as per the normal tax rate at which management expect to recover or settle the defer tax . Group will review the above position at each 
year end. 

 

 

   

 B. Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss  

   

 

Particulars

                  For the year 
ended  

 31st March 
2023

For the year 
ended  

 31st March 
2022

  Current tax expense  

  Current year 169.44                    156.00 

  Income tax for earlier year -                           0.46 

             169.44                    156.46 

  Deferred tax expense Charge/(Credit)  

  Origination and reversal of temporary differences 110.68                    127.95 

  110.68                    127.95 

  Total Tax Expense 280.12                    284.41 

   

 C. Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income  

   

 

Particulars

                  For the year 
ended  

 31st March 
2023

For the year 
ended  

 31st March 
2022

  Deferred Tax (Charge)/Credit  

  Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation 1.58                         2.30 

  Revaluation of leasehold land (Right of use assets) -                               -   

  1.58                         2.30 

   

D. Reconciliation of Tax expense  

 
Particulars

                For the year 
ended  

31st March 2023

 For the year 
ended  

31st March 2022 

  Accounting profit/(loss) before tax            948.33            926.47 

  Tax using the Group’s domestic tax rate @ 27.82% (Previous Year- 27.82%)               63.82 257.74 

  Tax effect of:  

  Non-deductible expenses               15.19                5.59 

  Changes in estimates related to prior years                        -                    0.46 

  Others                 1.11              20.62 

             280.12           284.41 
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18 Borrowings - Current    

  Secured    

  Working capital facilites from a bank 1,593.73 1,174.74 

  Buyer’s Import Credit 650.83 735.78 

                    
2,244.56 

                
1,910.52 

  Current Maturities of Non Current Borrowings    

  Secured 375.48 385.67 

  Unsecured -   43.33 

  375.48 429.00 

  2,620.04 2,339.52 

  Note:    

  (a) Working capital facilities (including Buyers’ import credit) from bank is secured by first charge by way of hypothecation of 
inventories, receivables, bills, and other chargeable current assets of the Company (both present and future) and extension 
of first mortgage / hypothecation charge on the entire Property, Plant and Equipment of Company except those non current 
assets financed by the bodies corporate. The same is also personally guaranteed by Chairman cum Managing director and a 
relative and carries interest rate of 11.15% per annum linked with 1 year MCLR (previous year - 9.4% per annum linked with 1 
year MCLR). 

     

19 Trade payables    

  Total Outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and Small enterprises* 143.35 213.61 

  Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro enterprises and small enterprises# 1,331.79 649.74 

  1,475.14 863.35 

   

* For MSME disclosure, refer Note No. 39.

   

Ageing for Trade Payables outstanding as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:    

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from  due date of 
payments  

Total
 Unbilled 

  
 Not 
Due 

 Less Than 
1 Year 

 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More Than 3 
Years

1) MSME   45.74 92.81                  4.80                       -   -   143.35 

2) Others 131.20 943.52 246.15                  3.14                 1.58 6.20 1,331.79 

3) Disputed Dues - MSME -   -   -                         -                         -   -   -   

4) Disputed Dues - Others -   -   -                         -                         -   -   -   

Total 131.20 989.26 338.96                  7.94                 1.58 6.20 1,475.14 
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Ageing for Trade Payables outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is as follows:    

Particulars
  

    Outstanding for following periods from  due date of 
payments  

Unbilled 
Not 
Due 

Less Than 
1 Year 

1-2 Years 2-3 Years  More Than 
3 Years Total

1) MSME -   97.76 115.80                  0.05                 0.00 -   213.61 

2) Others 209.22 171.43 233.98                  1.78                 7.39 25.94 649.74 

3) Disputed Dues - MSME -   -   -                         -                         -   -   -   

4) Disputed Dues - Others -   -   -                         -                         -   -   -   

Total 209.22 269.19 349.78                  1.83                 7.39 25.94 863.35 

   

20 Other Current Financial Liabilities    

  Interest Accrued* 14.70 8.09 

  Capital Creditors** 14.29 53.83 

  28.99 61.92 

     

  *  Refer Note No. 35 for Related party disclosures.    

  ** Capital Creditors includes MSME Creditors of Rs. 3.98 Lakhs ( 31st March 2022- Rs.15.38 Lakhs)    

     

21 Other Current Liabilities    

  Statutory dues 54.35 27.49 

  Advances from customers  11.08 427.77 

  Interest Payable on MSME Dues 15.34 6.52 

  Accruals to employees and 
others

102.64 96.71 

  183.41 558.49 

     

22 Current Tax Liability(net)    

  Current Tax Liability 52.58 24.75 

  52.58 24.75 

     

23 Provisions- Current    

  Employees Benefits 110.07 108.71 

  110.07 108.71 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st Mar, 2023    

(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)    

  For the year ended

        31st March 2023 31-Mar-2022
           
24 Revenue from Operations:    

  Sale of Products    

  Empty Capsules                 11,045.61 11,915.84 

  Other Operating Revenue    

  Export Incentives                            3.49 0.57 

     

                  11,049.10 11,916.41 

   

  As per the terms of the contract with its customers, all performance obligations are completed at point of time since the Group has a 
right to receive consideration from its customers for all completed performance obligations. Accordingly, the Group has availed the 
practical expedient available under paragraph 121 of Ind AS 115 and dispensed with the additional disclosures with respect to perfor-
mance obligations that remained unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) at the balance sheet date. Further, since the terms of the contracts 
directly identify the transaction price for each of the completed performance obligations, in all material respects, there are no elements 
of transaction price which have not been included in the revenue recognised in the Financial Statement. Also, there is no difference 
between the contract price and the revenue from contract with customers.

 
 
 
 

  a) Unsatisfied performance obligation (contract liabilities) Refer note no.21.

  b) The above revenues have been recongnised at point of time.

  c) Payment terms with customers generally ranges between 0 to 150 days from the completion of performance obligation. Consider-
ing the same, the Group elects to use practical expedient as given in IND AS 115 “Revenue from contracts with customers”, hence there 
are no significant financing component in any transaction with the customers.

  d) Sale of the products within india Rs. 8,446.72 lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 8,784.96 lakhs) and outside india Rs. 2,602.38 lakhs (Previous 
Year Rs. 3,131.45 lakhs). 

  e) For contract assets and balances, refer note no. 7.

     

25 Other Income:    

  Interest Income                          21.10  21.63 

  Unspent liabilities written back                       261.16 26.57 

  Net Gain on foreign currency transactions and translation                        127.85   70.63 
  Provision no longer required, written back                            2.00  41.93 
  Gain on fair valuation of mutual funds                                 -   0.94 

  Gain on sale of Mutual Fund measured at fair value                            0.49 5.33 

  Net Gain on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment                            8.98 - 

  Misc. Income                          28.06 0.51 

                        449.64 167.55 

     
26 Cost of Materials Consumed:    

  Raw Material    

  Gelatine                    4,798.87 4,099.88 

  Colour & Chemical                       199.68 216.48 

                     4,998.55 4,316.36 

  Less: Transfer to Capital Work-in-Progress/Capitalised                          14.41 26.22 

                     4,984.14 4,290.14 
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27 Changes in Inventories of Finished goods and Work-in-progress    
  Opening Inventories                                          

  Work-in-Progress                       262.59 597.25 

  Finished Goods                                                               211.25 378.67 

  Capsule Scrap*                          10.06 3.25 

                        483.90 979.17 

     

  Less: Closing Inventories                                                         
  Work-in-Progress                       354.77 262.59 

  Finished Goods                                                               454.59 211.25 

  Capsule Scrap                            5.83 10.06 

  Transition adjustments                       (51.62) (19.88)

                                                                                     763.57 464.02 

  Change in inventories                     (279.67) 515.15 

     

  *Includes inventory generated Rs. 0.92 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 2.49 Lakhs) on commissioning of new product line.
     

28 Employee Benefits Expenses:    

     

  Salaries and Wages                    1,310.27 1,259.08 

  Contribution to Provident fund                          89.39 82.42 

  Gratuity Expense                          32.85 30.48 

  Employee Welfare                                                             46.53 52.91 

                     1,479.04 1,424.89 

  Less: Transfer to Capital Work-in-Progress/Capitalised                            1.33 5.92 
                     1,477.71 1,418.97 
     
29 Finance Costs:    

     

  Interest Expenses                                        308.84 245.04 

  Interest on lease liabilities                          13.63 4.33 

  Unwinding charges of Preference Shares                          15.30 13.28 
  Other Borrowing Costs                          68.21 80.17 

  Interest on Statutory dues                          10.77 6.06 

                        416.75 348.88 

     

29.1 Depreciation and Amortization Expenses:    
     

  Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipements                       631.53 601.88 
  Depreciation on Right of Use Assets                          65.13 24.16 

  Amortization of Intangiable Assets                            4.52 4.69 

                        701.18 630.73 

   

30 Other Expenses:    

     

  Consumption of Stores and Spares                          71.88 89.60 

  Power and Fuel                       934.55 889.97 

  Job Work charges                       316.74 375.72 
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  Packing Materials                       302.89                         273.31 

  Repairs to Buildings                          41.21 34.06 

  Repairs to Machinery                       221.65 306.11 

  Repairs to Others                          31.74 37.63 

  Travelling & Conveyance                       103.19 42.83 

  Legal & Professional Charges                       159.88 156.35 

  Rates and Taxes                                                             10.47 18.66 

  Rent                                                                                  13.78 19.88 

  Insurance                                                                     71.40 71.20 

  Auditors’  Remuneration - (a)                            9.38 11.93 

  Freight and Forwarding Expenses (Net)                       622.00 651.35 

  Selling Commission                            7.43 31.64 

  Claim paid to a Supplier                                 -   172.55 

  Donation                            7.97 - 

  Directors’  Fee                            4.85 4.34 

  Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment                                 -   0.13 

  Provision for expected credit loss                       (20.78) (41.93)

  Baddebts Written off                          31.81 319.34 

  CSR expense                          27.90 11.24 

  Sundry balances Written off                          13.44 150.54 

  Miscellaneous                       288.42 298.46 

                     3,271.80 3,924.91 

  Less: Transfer to Capital Work-in-Progress/Capitalised                            0.69 11.28 
                                                                                      3,271.11 3,913.63 

     

31 Earning per Share (EPS) of  Rs. 10/- each    

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of the Group by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders (after adjusting impact on profit of 
dilutive potential equity shares) by the aggregate of weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year and the 
weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity 
shares.

 31st March, 2023  31st March, 2022 

Profit/(Loss) for the year                       668.21 642.06 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year for basic 
and diluted EPS

             1,02,54,750 1,02,54,750 

Face value of per share                          10.00 10.00 

Basic and Diluted EPS (in Rs.)                            6.52 6.26 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st Mar, 2023

(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)      

32 Contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments

Particulars      As at 31st 
March, 

2023 

 As at 31st 
March, 

2022 

A  Contingent liabilities in respect of:

(i) Demand for interest and penalty on delay deposit of provident fund under the Employees 
provident fund and miscallaneous provisions Act, 1952, disputed by the Group

2.72           2.72 

In the Opinion of the management, the Group has fair chances of success in the  above case and thus chances of liability devolving on 
the Group is not probable and hence no provision in respect thereof has been made in the books.

B Commitments 

(i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided 
for

6.28              53.44

(Advances paid Rs.6.28 Lakhs (31 March 2022- Rs.98.28 Lakhs))

C Others 

(i) The Group has procured  certain capital goods in earlier years under EPCG Scheme at concessional rate of duty against 
commitment to fullfill export obligation. As on 31st March, 2023 the Group is contingently liable to pay differential custom 
duty Rs. 123.55 Lakhs  (31 March 2022- Rs. 123.55 lakhs) on balance fullfillment of export obligation. In view of past export 
performance and future projections, the management is hopeful of completing the export obligation within stipulated time 
and expect no cash outflow on this account.

(ii) The Group has procured  certain raw materials under advance license scheme without payment of custom duty against 
commitment to fullfill export obligation. As on 31st March, 2022 the Group is contingently liable to pay custom duty Rs. 24.86 
Lakhs (31 March 2022- Rs.140.20 lakhs) on balance fullfillment of export obligation. In view of past export performance and 
future projections, the management is hopeful of completing the export obligation within stipulated time, and expect no 
cash outflow this account.

33 Unhedged foreign exchange derivatives and exposures outstanding at the year-end:

Particulars

           Amount 
(Foreign 

Currency in 
Lakhs) 

 Amount 
(Equiva-

lent Rs. in 
Lakhs) 

 Amount 
(Foreign 

Currency in 
Lakhs) 

 Amount 
(Equiva-

lent Rs. in 
Lakhs) 

              31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Open Exposures (Unhedged)

Receivables

USD 9.92     815.51 5.51 417.49 

EURO 1.39    124.55 0.05 4.60 

Payables (inculding borrowings)

USD                                
13.61 

                         
1,118.59 

                               
12.92 

                              
979.25 
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34 Employee benefits

The Group contributes to the following post-employment defined benefit plans in India.

(i) Defined Contribution Plans:

The Group makes contributions towards provident fund to a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for qualifying employees. 
Under the plan, the Group is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit plan to fund the 
benefits.

Particulars                For the year ended 

                  31st March, 
2023

31st March, 
2022

Contribution to Provident Fund    89.39 82.42 

(ii) Defined Benefit Plan:

The Group provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous 
service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees 
last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. Gratuity 
liability  is being contributed to the scheme formed and administrated by LIC.

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried out 
as at 31 March 2023. The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, 
were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

A. Movement in net defined benefit (asset) liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit 
(asset) liability and its components:
          31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Particulars

 

   Defined 
benefit 

obligation 

 Fair value 
of plan 
assets 

Net defined 
benefit 
(asset)/ 
liability

 Defined 
benefit 

obligation 

Fair value 
of plan as-

sets

Net defined 
benefit 
(asset)/ 
liability

Balance as at 1 April 210.05 40.24 169.81 182.92 19.80 163.12 

Included in profit or loss

Current service cost        20.55 -   20.55 19.48 -   19.48 

Interest cost / (income)      15.22 2.91 12.31 12.34 1.34  11.00 

      35.77 2.91 32.86 31.82 1.34 30.48 

Included in OCI

Remeasurements loss / (gain)

  -Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from:

 -Demographic assumptions            -   -   -   -   -   -   

 -Financial assumptions (10.68) -   (10.68) (8.21) -   (8.21)

 -Experience adjustment  16.34 -   16.34 16.53 -   16.53 

 -On plan assets               -   (0.04) 0.04 -   0.05 (0.05)

             5.66 (0.04) 5.70 8.32 0.05 8.27 

Other

Contributions paid by the employer -   13.91 (13.91) -   32.06 (32.06)

Benefits paid (12.82) (5.98) (6.84) (13.01) (13.01) -   

(12.82) 7.93 (20.75) (13.01) 19.05 (32.06)

Balance as at 31 March    238.66 51.04 187.61 210.05 40.24 169.81 
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B. Plan assets 31/03/2023 31/03/2022

Fund managed by insurer 100% 100%

100% 100%

In the absence of detailed information regarding plan assets which is funded with Insurance Group, the composition of each major 
category of plan assets, the percentage or amount for each category to the fair value of plan assets has not been disclosed.

C. Actuarial assumptions 31/03/2023 31/03/2022

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted 
averages).
Discount rate 7.45% 7.25%

Expected rate of future salary increase Nil for the 
first year 
and 3% 

thereafter

3.00%

Mortality 100% of 
IALM

100% of 
IALM

Assumptions regarding future mortality have been based on published statistics and mortality tables.

The Group expects to pay Rs 187.61 Lakhs (31 March 2022- Rs. 169.81 Lakhs) in contribution to its de-
fined benefit plans in the next year.

D. Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, 
would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

Particulars           31-03-2023 31-03-2022

              Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount rate (-/+1% Movement) 222.82 256.83 195.23 227.17 

Salary Growth rate (-/+1% Movement)      257.55 221.96 227.75 194.52 

Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are insignificant & hence ignored. Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of 
pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement & life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on 
retirement.

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approxima-
tion of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

E. Description of Risk Exposures:

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such Group is exposed to various risks 
as follow - 
A) Salary Increases- Higher than expected increase in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.

B) Investment Risk – Assets / liabilities mismatch and actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last 
valuation date can impact the liability / Assets.
C) Discount Rate - Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

D) Demographic risk :  This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that includes mortality, withdraw-
als, disability and retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not straight forward and depends on 
the combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting criteria. It is important not to overstate withdrawals because in the financial 
analysis the employee benefit of a short career employee typically costs less per year as compared to a long service employee.
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35 Related party Transactions

A. Related parties and their relationships as identified by the Group

i) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and 
their relatives
Name Designation and Relationship

Mr. Anil Kumar Khaitan Chairman cum Managing Director

Mrs. Sarita Khaitan Strategy officer, Wife of Chairman cum Managing Director

Mr. Ishan Khaitan President Operation and Marketing, Son of Key Management Personal

Mrs. Aanchal Khaitan Manager Business Development, Daughter in law of Key Management 
Personal

Mr. Kahaan Khaitan President Procurement, Son of Key Management Personal

Mr. Rakesh Mohan Independent Director and KMP under IndAS

Mr. Sanjay kumar Kaushik Director and KMP under IndAS

Mr. Harish Pal Kumar Independent Director and KMP under IndAS

Mr. Krishna Venkatachalam 
Rajan

Director and KMP under IndAS

Mr. Bejon Kumar Mishra Independent Director and KMP under IndAS

Mrs. Mudita Chaturvedi Independent Director and KMP under IndAS

Mr. Pawan Rathi Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Santosh Sharma Compnay Secretary (till 10th August, 2022)

Mr. Satyendu Pattnaik Compliance Officer/Compnay Secretary (w.e.f. 12th August, 2022)

B. Transactions with the above in the ordinary course of business

Nature of Transaction        For the year ended

                  31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

a) Payments to Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives

(i) Short-term Employee benefits

Mr. Anil Kumar Khaitan 29.05 29.63 

Mrs. Sarita Khaitan 29.18 28.29 

Mr. Ishan Khaitan 28.64 28.93 

Mr. Kahaan Khaitan 28.69 28.93 

Mrs. Anchal khaitan 5.68 5.68 

Mr. Pawan Rathi 35.98 32.75 

Mr. Santosh Sharma 14.87 20.14 

Mr. Satyendu Pattnaik 13.11 -   

Directors’ Sitting Fee:

Mr. Rakesh Mohan 0.85 0.77 

Mr. Sanjay kumar Kaushik 1.19 1.02 

Mr. Harish Pal Kumar 1.11 0.94 

Mr. Krishna Venkatachalam Rajan 0.51                 0.43 

Mr. Bejon Kumar Mishra 0.77 0.85 

Mrs. Mudita Chaturvedi 0.43 0.34
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excludes provision in respect of gratuity, compensated absences etc. as the same is determined on an actuarial basis for Group as whole.

(ii) Rent, Repair and Maintenance

Mrs. Sarita Khaitan 45.43 24.78 

(iii) Loan Repayament 

Mr. Anil Kumar Khaitan 157.00 363.00 

(iv) Interest paid/payable 

Mr. Anil Kumar Khaitan 21.91 46.03

Closing balance at the year end:

Mr. Anil Kumar Khaitan 

-Loan outstanding 161.00 318.00 

-Salary Payable 4.58 1.26 

-Payable against redeemable preference shares 565.00 565.00 

Mrs. Sarita Khaitan

-Salary Payable 1.51 1.50 

Mr. Ishan Khaitan 

-Salary Payable 1.59 1.63 

Mr. Kahaan Khaitan 

-Salary Payable 1.67 0.15 

Mrs. Anchal khaitan 

-Salary Payable 0.41 0.41 

Mr. Pawan Rathi

- Salary Payable 1.56 2.73 

Mr. Santosh Sharma

- Salary Payable -   1.27 

Mr. Satyendu Pattnaik

- Salary Payable 1.31 -   

‘Summary of payment made to KMP

‘Short term employee benefits* 190.06 178.70 

*excludes provision in respect of gratuity and compensated absenses as the same is determined on an actuarial basis for Group as whole.
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36 Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management

I. Fair value measurements

A. Financial instruments by category

Particulars          As at 31st March, 2023  As at 31st March, 2022 

              Amortised 
Cost

 FVTPL Amortised 
Cost

 FVTPL 

Financial assets 

Investments - Non Current -        -   -   103.27 

Loans - Current -   -   -   -   

Trade receivables 2,841.04 -   1,889.18 -   

Cash and cash equivalents 58.67 -   26.60 -   

Bank balances other than above 334.93 -   319.26 -   

Others

Non Current 199.37 -   99.28 -   

Current 26.74 -   23.49 -   

3,460.76 -   2,357.81 103.27 

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings

    Non-current 901.38 -   1,082.74 -   

   Current 2,244.56 -   1,910.52 -   

Trade payables 1,475.14 -   863.35 -   

Other - Current 28.99 -   61.92 -   

Lease Liability - Current 157.48 46.16 

  4,807.54            -         3,964.68             -   

B. Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices /net asset value (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access 
at the measurement date;
Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices (unadjusted) included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly or indirectly; and
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group has assessed that the fair value of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other current financial 
assets, trade payables and other current financial liabilities approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturi-
ties of these instruments. Where such items are non-current in nature, the same has been classified as Level 3 and fair value determined 
present value. Similarly, unquoted equity instruments in subsidiaries Group have been considered at cost less impairement, if any, and 
has been excluded in the fair value measurement disclosed below.
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current 
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to 
estimate the fair values:
- Borrowings are evaluated by the Group based on parameters such as interest rates.

- The fair value of other financial liabilities, is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar 
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
-  The fair values of the Group’s interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using DCF method using discount rate that re-
flects the issuer’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. No own non- performance risk as at 31st March 2023 was assessed.
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s assets and liabilities.
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Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31st March 2023:

Particulars         As at 31 March 2023

            Carrying 
Value

Level 1 Level 2  Level 3  Total 

Financial assets

Investments - Non Current -   -   -   

Other Non-Current Financial Assets 199.37 199.37 199.37 

Leasehold Land 1,414.59 -   -   1,414.59 1,414.59 

Total assets 1,613.96 -   -   1,613.96 1,613.96 

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings

Non-current - Redeemable Preference Shares (including 
interest component)

115.77                        -                          -                115.77            115.77 

Total liabilities          115.77                        -                            -              115.77            115.77 

There are no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during the year.

Fair value measurements as at 31st March, 2022

Particulars           As at 31 March 2022

            Carrying 
Value

Level 1 Level 2  Level 3  Total 

Financial assets

Investments - Non Current 103.27 -   103.27 -    103.27 

Other Non-Current Financial Assets 99.28 99.28 99.28 

Leasehold Land 1,414.59 -   -   1,414.59 1,414.59 

Total assets 1,617.14 -   103.27 1,513.87 1,617.14 

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings

Non-current - Redeemable Preference Shares (including 
interest component)

100.46 -   100.46 100.46 

Total liabilities   100.46 -   -   100.46 100.46 

There are no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during 
the year
Significant unobservable inputs considered in Level 3 Fair valuation 
are as under:-

(i) Valuation of lease hold Land (right of use Assets) was carried out by Market Approach uses prices and other relevant information gener-
ated by market transactions involving comaprable assets and considers qualitative and quantitative factors (Comparable companies val-
uation method) by using market multiples or matrix pricing (comapare with Benchmarks) in financial year 2019-20. It reveals that similar 
properties are available for sale in nearby area in the range of Rs 12,500  to Rs 14,000 per Square Yard depending upon various attributes 
such as size, shape, location, frontage, frontage to depth ration, marketability, demand & supply of similar properties in the said locality.

(ii) (a) In the year of issuance, valuation of preference shares was carried out by independent valuer using NPV 
of projected cash flows based on discounted cash flow method, wherein NPV of the preference shares mea-
sured based on security available, statement of credit rating of instruments, trading in stock exchange, etc.  
The estimated fair value of RPS is Rs 67.98 Lakhs as on allotement date i.e. 4th July 2019 considering repayment period of 20 years and 
market interest rate of 14.20%. 

(b) Rate of return considered 14.20% which includes risk free return of 7.20% based on 20 years bond rate and  Risk preminum of 7.00%.  
Risk premium has been considered due to the reasons like lack of liquidty due to unquoted instruments, declining operations since 
March 2019, customer concentration Risk, other business risk as per credit rating which has also downgraded.

II. Financial risk management
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The Group principal financial liabilities,  comprise borrowings, trade and other payables and lease liabilities. The main purpose of these 
financial liabilities is to finance and support the Group operations. The Group principal financial assets include loans, trade and other 
receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances that derive directly from its operations. The Group also holds FVTPL 
investments and investment in subsidiary companies measured at cost , unless otherwise as stated.’

i. Risk management framework

The Group’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework. 
The board of directors has established the processes to ensure that executive management controls risks through the mechanism of 
property defined framework. 

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits 
and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed by the board annually  
to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and 
procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and 
obligations.

The Group’s Audit Committee oversees  compliance with the Group’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the ad-
equacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role 
by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of 
which are reported to the Audit Committee.

ii. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 
obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers and investments in debt securities.

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers 
the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate. 
The Group  Management  has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthi-
ness before the Group’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Group’s review includes market check, 
industry feedback, past financials and external ratings, if they are available, and in some cases bank references. Sale limits are estab-
lished for each customer and reviewed quarterly. Any sales exceeding those limits require approval from the President of the Group. 
More than 60 % of the Group’s customers have been transacting with the Group for over four years, and no impairment loss has been rec-
ognized against these customers. In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are reviewed  according to their credit characteristics, in-
cluding whether they are an individual or a legal entity, their geographic location, industry and existence of previous financial difficulties.
The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its expected credit losses in respect of trade and other receivables. 
The management uses a simplified approach for the purpose of computation of expected credit loss for trade receivables.

The Group has taken the credit insurance policy for its domestic customers to mitigate the financial loss in case default in payment. Risk 
on export customers is covered through the ECGC Ltd. 
The gross carrying amount of trade receivables is Rs. 3,008.18 Lakhs (31 March 2022 – Rs. 2,077.10 Lakhs ).

Reconciliation of provision for expected credit loss

Particulars               31-03-2023 31-03-2022

Opening balance 187.92 229.85 

Changes in provision for expected credit loss (20.78) (41.93)

Closing balance       167.14 187.92 
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The following table provides information about exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss for trade receivables for customers for 
the year ended 31st March 2023:

     Gross 
Carrying 
Amount 

 Weight-
ed-Aver-

age 
Loss Rate 

 Loss 
Allowance 

 Not Due 1,722.09 0%                               
-   

 Less Than 6 
Months 

950.75 0%                               
-   

 6 Month to 1 
Year 

85.55 16% 13.57 

 1-2 Years 56.49 10% 5.82 

 2-3 Years 3.37 1% 0.04 

 More Than 3 
Years 

189.93 78%                       
147.71 

3,008.18   167.14 

The following table provides information about exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss for trade receivables for customers for 
the year ended 31st March 2022:
     Gross 

Carrying 
Amount 

 Weight-
ed-Aver-

age 
Loss Rate 

 Loss 
Allowance 

 Not Due 1,722.04 0%                               
-   

 Less Than 6 
Months 

104.62 24%                         
25.28 

 6 Month to 1 
Year 

20.88 0%                               
-   

 1-2 Years 20.44 77% 15.69 

 2-3 Years 43.39 17%                           
7.20 

 More Than 3 
Years 

165.73 84% 139.75 

2,077.10   187.92 

iii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are 
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it 
will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are fallen due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring 
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through 
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic 
nature of the underlying businesses, Group treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit 
lines.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity position (comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities) and cash and cash 
equivalents on the basis of expected future cash flows. In addition, the Group’s liquidity management strategy  involves projecting cash 
flows in major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios 
against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undis-
counted, and exclude contractual interest payments and the impact of netting agreements.
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          Contractual undiscounted cash flows

Particulars       Carrying 
Amount 

31st March, 
2023

On de-
mand

Less than 1 
Year

 1-5 Years  More than 
5 years 

 Total 

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 3,405.65 1,593.73 1,026.31 785.61 -   3,405.65 

Redeemable Preference shares 115.77 -   -   -   1,165.00 1,165.00 

Trade payables 1,475.14 -   1,475.14 -   -   1,475.14 

Other current financial liabilities 28.99 -   28.99 -   -   28.99 

Lease Liabilities 157.48 -   89.76 84.08 173.84 

Total Financial  liabilities 5,183.02 1,593.73 2,620.20 869.69 1,165.00 6,248.62 

Particulars  Contractual undiscounted cash flows

          Carrying 
Amount 

31st March, 
2022

On de-
mand

Less than 1 
Year

 1-5 Years  More than 
5 years 

 Total 

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings                             
3,321.80 

                             
1,174.74 

                         
1,164.78 

                            
982.27 

                                      
-   

                          
3,321.80 

Redeemable Preference shares                                 
100.46 

                                      
-   

                                      
-   

                         
1,165.00 

                          
1,165.00 

Trade payables                                 
863.35 

                            
863.35 

                                      
-   

                                      
-   

                              
863.35 

Other current financial liabilities                                   
61.92 

                               
61.92 

                                      
-   

                                      
-   

                                
61.92 

Lease Liabilities                                   
46.16 

                               
24.41 

                               
21.75 

                                
46.16 

Total Financial  liabilities                             
4,393.69 

                             
1,174.74 

                         
2,114.47 

                         
1,004.02 

                         
1,165.00 

                          
5,458.23 

iv. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices – such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates – will affect the Group’s income or 
the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk expo-
sures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

a. Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily with respect to the USD 
and small exposure in Euro . Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and li-
abilities denominated in a currency that is not the Group’s functional currency (Rs.). The risk is measured through a fore-
cast of highly probable foreign currency cash flows. Group’s export earnings and payables in foreign currencies are natu-
rally hedged, therefore, the Group generally donot take forward contract seperately to hedge the foreign currency risk. 
In respect of other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Group’s policy is to ensure that its net exposure 
is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates when necessary to address short-term imbalances.
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Exposure to currency risk

The summary quantitative data about the Group’s exposure to currency risk as reported to the management of the Group is as follows:

Particulars           As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

               USD  EUR  USD  EUR 

Receivables                                  
9.92 

                                 
1.39 

                                 
5.51 

                                   
0.05 

Payables 13.61                        -                  
12.92 

   -   

Net statement of financial position exposure              (3.69)                1.39          (7.41)                0.05 

The following significant exchange rates have been applied

Particulars              Year end spot rates 

                   31 March 
2023 

 31 March 
2022 

USD 1  82.2169 75.81 

EUR 1  89.6076 84.66 

                     

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Rs. against USD at reporting date would have affected the measurement of 
financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This 
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

Particulars      Impact on Profit or loss  impact on Equity, net 
of tax 

 Strength-
ening 

 Weakening  Strength-
ening 

 Weakening 

31st  March 2023

USD (10% movement) 30.31 (30.31) 21.88 (21.88)

Euro (10% movement) (12.46) 12.46 (8.99) 8.99 

31st March 2022

USD (10% movement) 56.18 (56.18) 40.55 (40.55)

Euro (10% movement) (0.46) 0.46 (0.33) 0.33 

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk on financial liabilities such as borrowings, both Non-current  and Current. It maintains a bal-
ance of fixed and floating interest rate borrowings and the proportion is determined by current market interest rates, projected debt 
servicing capability and view on future interest rates. 

Currently the Group’s borrowings are within acceptable risk levels, as determined by the management, hence the Group has not taken 
any swaps to hedge the interest rate risk.
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Exposure to interest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the management of the Group is as follows.

                   Nominal Amount 

Particulars                31st March, 
2023 

 31st 
March, 

2022 
Fixed-rate instruments

Borrowings 287.30   381.84 

Variable-rate instruments

Borrowings 3,234.11 3,040.41 

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 50 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity and 
profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates, 
remain constant.

               Impact on Profit or loss  Impact on Equity, net 
of tax 

Particulars            50  bp 
Decrease 

 50 bp 
Increase 

 50  bp 
Decrease 

 50 bp 
Increase 

31st  March 2023

Variable-rate instruments 16.17 (16.17) 11.67 (11.67)

Cash flow sensitivity 16.17 (16.17) 11.67 (11.67)

31st March 2022

Variable-rate instruments 15.20 (15.20) 10.97 (10.97)

Cash flow sensitivity 15.20 (15.20) 10.97 (10.97)

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

The Group does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a 
change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

     37 Segment Reporting

Information about geographical areas

The board of directors of the Company which have been identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluate the 
Company’s performance. Based on identical products the Company deals in, which have similar risks and rewards, the entire business 
has been considered as a single segment i.e. Empty Capsules, in terms of Ind AS-108 on segment reporting.  
The Empty Capsules segment is managed on a worldwide basis, but manufacturing facilities and sales offices are primarily in India. 
The geographic information analyses, the Company’s revenue and non-current assets by the Company’s country of domicile and other 
countries. In presenting the geographic information, segment revenue has been based on the geographic location of customers and 
segment assets were based on the geographic location of the assets.

Particulars        2022-23  2021-22 

           Within 
India 

 Outside 
India 

 Total  Within 
India 

 Outside 
India 

 Total 

Revenue from Operations  8,446.72 2,602.38 11,049.10 8,517.91 3,398.49 11,916.41 

All non current assets except trade receivables are located in India.

Major Customer

 Two (previous year - two) major customers has individually contributed more than 10% of the revenue from operation of the  Group.
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     38 Capital management

For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves 
attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise the share-
holder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of 
the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return 
capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital 
plus net debt. The Group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.

The following table summarises the capital of the Group:

Particulars             31st March, 
2023

31st March, 
2022

Equity Share Capital (Note-14) 1,025.48 1,025.48 

Other Equity (Note-15) 4,574.21 3,970.01 

Total Equity 5,599.69 4,995.49 

Non-Current Borrowings (Note-16) 901.38 1,082.74 

Current Borrowings (Note-19) 2,620.04 2,339.52 

Total Debts 3,521.41 3,422.26 

Total Equity and Debts 9,121.10 8,417.75 

Gearing Ratio         0.39 0.41 

        39 Based on the information available, as identified by the management there are certain vendors who have confirmed that they are 
covered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Disclosures relating to dues of Micro and Small enter-
prises under section 22 of ‘The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, are given below:

Particulars As at 31st 
March 2023

As at 31st 
March 2022

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at 
the end of accounting years.
 - Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 143.35 210.53 

 - Interest due on above 15.34 6.52 

     

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of   section 16, of the Micro Small and 
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made 
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year.

Nil Nil

     

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which 
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but   without adding the 
interest specified under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

3.74 Nil

     

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year, 
and 

15.34 6.52

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding periods, 
until such date  when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise 
for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the Micro 
Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

15.34 6.52
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     40 Group information

Information about subsidiaries

S. No.       Name

 

 Principal 
Activities 

Country of 
Incorpora-

tion 

%  Equity  Interest 

               As at  31 
March 2023 

 As at  31 
March 2022 

1 Sunil Healthcare Mexico SA.De. CV.  Trading of 
Capsules 

 Mexico 99.97% 99.97%

2 Sunil Healthcare North America LLC  Trading of 
Capsules 

 USA 100.00% 100.00%

41 The Group incurred Rs. 13.78 lakhs (31st March 2022-Rs. 19.88 lakhs) for the year ended March 31, 2023 towards expenses relating to 
short-term leases.

42 Statutory Group Information

Name of the 
entity in the 
Group

Net Assets, i.e., total 
assets minus total li-
abilities

Share in profit and loss Share in other Compre-
hensive income

Share in total Compre-
hensive income

As % of 
consoli-

dated 
net  

assets

Amount As % of 
con-

solidated 
profit and 

loss

Amount As % of 
con-

solidated 
other 

compre-
hensive 
income

Amount As % of 
total com-

prehensive 
income

Amount

Parent

Sunil Healthcare Limited

Balance as at 
31 March, 2023

110% 6,172.55 104% 697.70 8.6% (4.11) 115% 693.59 

Balance as at 
31 March, 2022

110% 5,478.97 106%  677.68 101.0% (5.97) 108% 671.71 

Foreign Subsidiary

Sunil Healthcare Mexico SA.De. CV. 

Balance as at 
31 March, 2023

-7% (398.51) -52% (346.71) 100.0% (47.78) -65% (394.49)

Balance as at 
31 March, 2022

-2% (93.96) 0% 0.13 100.0% (5.91) -1% (5.78)

Sunil Healthcare North America LLC

Balance as at 
31 March, 2023

0% 0.98 34% 226.91 25.4% (12.12) 36% 214.79 

Balance as at 
31 March, 2022

-4% (200.69) -1% (6.71) 108.6% (6.42) -2% (13.13)

Eliminations/Consolidation Adjustments

Balance as at 
31 March, 2023

-3% (175.33) 14% 90.31 0.0% 0.00 15% 90.31 

Balance as at 
31 March, 2022

-4% (188.83) -5% (29.04) 0.0% (0.00) -5% (29.04)

Total Balance as at 31 
March, 2023 

100% 5,599.69 100% 668.21 134%   (64.01) 100% 604.20 

Balance as at 31 
March, 2022 

100% 4,995.49 100% 642.06 310% (18.30) 100% 623.76 
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43 Balances of certain trade receivables, advances and trade payables are in the process of confirmation and/or reconciliation. The manage-
ment does not expect any material change in the carrying value of these assets and liabilities. 

44 Capital Work in Progress Aging:

Aging for Capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:

Amount in Capital Work in progress for a period of  Amount in 
Lacs

Less than 1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 years  More than 
3 years 

Total

0.02 -          -   0.70 0.72 

Aging for Capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2022 is as follows:

Amount in Capital Work in progress for a period of  Amount in 
Lacs

Less than 1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 years  More than 
3 years 

Total

        174.36                                      -                -                 0.70            175.06 

*Project execution plans are modulated basis capacity requirement assessment on an annual basis and all the projects are 
executed as per rolling annual plan.

45 Additional regulatory information required by Schedule III to be disclosed in the financial statements:

i) The Group has no transaction and/or outstanding balance with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or 
section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956 as identified to the extent of struck off companies details available on the public domain.

ii) No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Group for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Amendment Act, 2016 and rules made thereunder.

iii) The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.
iv) The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.
v) There is no undisclosed income under the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 for the year ending March 31, 2023 and March 

31, 2022 which needs to be recorded in the books of account.
vi) The Group has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

vii) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium:-

a) During the year, the Group  has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identi-
fied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like to or 
on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries. 

b) During the year, the Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with 
the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

viii) Borrowings obtained by the Group from banks and financial institutions have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were 
was taken.

ix) All charges creation and satisfaction thereof are registered with ROC within the statutory period.

46 Interest Payable on MSMSE dues were earlier classified under Other Current Financial Liabilities. Since interest payable on MSME dues is 
statutory in nature, these are not financial instrumnets, accordingly, in order to give more appropriate presentation, the Parent Compnay 
has reclassified previous year figures, amounting Rs. 6.52 lakhs, to Other Current Liabilities to conform current year classification.
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